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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies fo which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main Board. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
affer due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
fraded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities tfraded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities fraded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as fo its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the "Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that fo the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the "Board”) of directors (the "Directors”)
of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the "Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, referred to as the “"Group”), | would
like to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
30 June 2019 (the “Year”) together with the Group’s strategy and
prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$90,735,000 for
the Year (2018: Loss of HK$90,460,000).

The Group’s consolidated loss attributable to the owners
of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$78,728,000 (2018: Loss of HK$77,975,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing Operation

E-commerce and provision of online sales platform
The Group engaged in the businesses of e-commerce
mainly through its Business-to-customer ("B2C") foreign
trade e-commerce on-line sales platform, namely DX.com.
The e-commerce business of the Group has been adversely
affected by the increasingly intensifying competition within
the e-commerce industry in recent years. The Group’s
platform recorded a continuous decrease in revenue, from
HK$238,519,000 for the previous year to HK$107,143,000 for
the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 55.1%.
Gross profit margin decrease from approximately 24.4% to
approximately 22.0%.

To cope with the adverse business environment, the Group has
adopted fiscal austerity policies to control its cost and extended
the range of its trading products. Further, the Group will develop
its back-end system and shopping process optimization as well
as its mobile devices applications.

The e-commerce business of the Group is carried on through
its wholly-owned subsidiary EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited
("EPRO") and its subsidiaries (the "EPRO Group”). By the
intfroduction of a new investor of EPRO in August 2017, the
Group'’s equity interest in EPRO was reduced from 100% to 51%,
accordingly. With the joining of the new investor, the Group
expects to lessen its funding commitment to the EPRO Group in
the foreseeable future.
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Money-lending business

During the Year, the revenue of money-lending business
amounted to HK$9,201,000 (2018: HK$8,985,000). Further, the
Group offered loans to clients at an interest rate ranging from
8% to 12%. The impairment of loan receivable amounted fo
HK$23,595,000 as at 30 June 2019 (2018: HK$20,000,000). The
Group will continue to review ifs loan portfolio so as to control the
risks of debt default while continue to explore opportunities to
maintain a balance.

Intellectual Property ("IP”) rights licensing and
international IP development, media integrated
marketing and distribution agency and frading of
sports and related products business

The Group commenced the IP rights licensing and international
IP development and the media integrated marketing business
upon the completion of the acquisition of Sense Media Group
Limited (fogether with its subsidiaries, the “Sense Media Group”)
("Sense Acquisition”). The Sense Media Group positioned itself
as a comprehensive operation platform for IP rights, specialising
in media infegrated marketing business, including provision of
infegrated marketing, planning and design service for brands.
It capitalises on the abundant resources available within the
Greater China region and the strong operational flexibility of
the Company, and conducts product design and commercial
operation in respect of licensed IP rights and brands. Sense
Media Group is also a pioneer of the “Infellectual Property +
Augmented Reality + Food & Beverage” business concept in
China. The licensed IP rights “Le Petit Chef” and "'‘Dinner Time
Story’: Marco Polo” were licensed ouf by the Sense Media Group
to various users and had generated new business opportunities
and revenue to the Group. During the year, the revenue of
approximately HK$50,266,000 was generated from Sense Media
Group.

Further, in January 2018, the Group acquired Strong Network
International Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the "Strong
Network Group”), a service provider for distribution agency,
sales and marketing channel of licensed IP products, with ifs
distribution channel within the PRC through engagement with
various cooperation partners which cover different provinces of
the PRC (the "Strong Network Acquisition”). In addition, Strong
Network Group commenced its business of distribution agency
and frading of sports and related products in February 2018.
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During the Year, the business has been adversely affected by the
business environment which include the decrease in the number
of distributors from 17 for the year ended 30 June 2018 to 4 for the
year ended 30 June 2019 causing limitations to the distribution
network in reaching the end-customers; and the decrease in
revenue growth due to the adverse effect of the China-United
States trade war on the PRC economy causing decline in the
end-consumers’ appetite affecting businesses which rely on the
usage or consumption of IP-related products or licenses.

In response to the current business environment, the board of
directors adopts various cost confrol management measures
such as restructuring the Shanghai and Hong Kong office so as
to reduce the labour cost. At the same time, we aim fo widen
our income source and customer base through investments and
acquisitions during the Year.

However, the business failed to meet the profit guarantee of
HK$10,000,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2018,
hence, the remaining of HK$30,000,000 of the consideration is
waived. Contfingent consideration payable of approximately
HK$25,870,000 has been written off and impairment on goodwill
of approximately HK$49,540,000 has been made during the Year
in view of the latest development and lowered projected profit.
Strong Network Group contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$62,067,000 to the Group during the Year.

Discontinued Operation - Property management
and property agency services

The property management and property agency services
business has been adversely affected by the intensifying
competition within the industry. During the Year, the Group has
ceased its operatfion in view of the latest development and
prospect of the segment. As at 30 June 2019, a further provision
of impairment loss on goodwill of HK$8,158,000 (30 June 2018:
HK$8,251,000) has been made by the Group in relation to the
property management and property agency services business.
During the Year, the revenue of property management and
property agency services decreased from approximately
HK$6,768,000 for the year ended 30 June 2018 to HK$30,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2019.
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PROSPECT

The Group continued to explore different business opportunities
outside the field of e-commerce, money-lending and IP rights
related businesses to widen its business scope and enhance its
reputation.

As affected by domestic economic downturn, weakening of
consumption power and industry competition, our e-commerce
business recorded a decrease in revenue and profit for the
Year. However, the Group will continue implement various
measures, improve efficiency, control cost and broaden its
income source. Strong Network Group maintained ifs position
as the key integratfion of downstream distribution channels and
actively explored other different agency and channel distribution
businesses, while Sense Media Group focused on the sourcing
and procurement of IP with the capabilities to disseminate its IP
portfolio within certain major cities in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"), and at the same time seeking for new categories
of IP agency distribution business. The progress achieved by
Strong Network Group and Sense Media Group in the IP rights
licensing and distribution business during the Year is encouraging
and made due contributions to the Group's revenue.

The Group continued to cooperate with David Cheng Autosport
Limited (of which the founder, Mr. David Cheng, is the founder
and racing driver of the 24 hours of Le Mans race champion
tfeam in 2017 - Jackie Chan DC Racing), and heavily involved in
the propaganda, promotion and planning activities for Mr. David
Cheng and his feam, including but not limited to IP development
and operation rights of Mr. David Cheng. The Group will contfinue
to explore the possibility of incorporating the existing IP related
business with Mr. David Cheng to create more new commercial
potentials, develop potential new retail market and explore new
commercial value of IP.

The Board believes that the outlook of licensed IP rights is still
promising with huge potential for development, in particular,
by leveraging on the development of internet technology and
the adjustment and upgrade of domestic consumer industries.
Being a pioneer and practitioner in the IP commercialisation
industry will benefit the financial performance of the Group and
the Group’s commencement of operations in the areas of media
integrated marketing and distribution agency of sports goods will
further diversify the sources of income of the Group.
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Looking ahead, in respect of the e-commerce business, the
Group will strive to conftrol its costs and expand its clientele in
order fo maintain its competitiveness, while at the same time
minimizing the adverse impact of the commercial infringement
cases on such business.

The Board is of the view that the new measures and acquisitions
have laid a solid foundation for the diversification and further
development of the Group’s business which benefit the long-term
development of the Group. The Group will continue to widen its
clientele and source of income to generate fruitful returns for its
shareholders.
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Review of Operations
£V AEI)=

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

During the Year, the Group has expanded its business of the
IP rights licensing and international IP development, media
infegrated marketing and distribution agency and frading of
sports and related products and has discontinued its business
of provision of property management and property agency
services.

Continuing Operation

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$228,677,000
(2018: approximately HK$301,471,000), representing a drop of
approximately 24.1%.

The consolidated revenue for the Year was mainly contributed
by the revenue from (i) the e-commerce and provision of on-line
sales platform business of approximately 46.9% (2018: 79.1%); (ii)
the money-lending business of approximately 4.0% (2018: 3.0%);
and (iii) the franchise income arising from IP rights licensing,
international IP development, media infegrated marketing, and
distribution agency and frading of sports and related products of
approximately 49.1% (2018: 17.9%).

The intense competition in the e-commerce industry has led fo
a decline in the revenue of the Group, which outweighed the
income growth and contribution from IP-related business of the
Group.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit dropped from approximately HK$95,246,000 for
the previous year to approximately HK$61,130,000 for the Year,
representing a drop of approximately 35.8%, while the gross profit
margin recorded a decrease to approximately 26.7% (2018:
approximately 31.6%). The impact of the drop in gross profit was
mainly contributed by the IP and the media infegrated marketing
business.
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Selling and Distribution Costs

The expenses are mainly attributable to the selling and
distribution costs from the Group’s e-commerce business. There
has been a drop in the expenses during the Year due to (i)
the decrease in revenue of e-commerce business leading to
less sales and distribution resources required for e-commerce
business; and (i) the decrease of fransportation cost due to the
change in sales mix during the Year.

Administrative and Other Expenses

The decrease in the administrative and other expenses during
the Year was mainly due to a series of fiscal austerity policies
adopted by the Group.

Impairment loss on goodwill
The impairment loss on goodwill during the year amounted to
approximately HK$49,540,000 which was contributed by Strong
Network Group. The Strong Network Group has been adversely
affected by the business environment and was projected to
generate lower profit than expected.

Finance Costs

The finance costs during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$12,937,000 (2018: HK$10,024,000). The increment was
attributable to the imputed interest expense of the convertible
bonds issued during the Year.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$90,735,000
for the Year which is comparable with that of last year of
approximately HK$90,460,000. During the Year, the Group also
recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$78,728,000 (2018: loss of
approximately HK$77,975,000).
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Review of Operations
£V AEI)=

Financial Key Performance Indicators BRAERRER

The Board monitored a number of financial key performance EEZSERZEHFERERE ((HBERRE
indicators ("KPIs") to measure the Group’s performance over 12 ]) st AR EEE —BREHEANKRE - GHAME
time. The KPIs may subject to refinement in accordance with  RIEIEZHAREESEEREB MM - AEEH
the needs and changes of business. Details of the Group’s  RIEHEE B SRR ERIBHEZNE BB
performance against each of the finance-related KPIs are set out AT :

below:
KPI measures 2019 2018 Definition/Calculation Comments
BRRREEME —E-nE “E-0\F ERHE ER
Basic loss per share (2.62) Cents (2.81) Cents A basic earing per share is based  The porfion of a company’s loss
BREXER AL Ml onthe loss for the year atfributable  allocated to each outstanding
to ordinary equity holders of the share of common stock
Company and the weighted BREBRAGODABELS
average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year
BREABANDEAL DL ARESR R
BABREZEREE  ARFREBT
LR METFIEAE
Refurn on investments (60%) (42%) It divides net loss by net assets A profitability measures that
REBH FEREFEELE evaluates the performance of @
business by dividing net profit by
net worth
BBFFERAFEHE-ALE
KBS
Gearing ratio 48% 50%  Aratio of net debt (liabilities less Degree of leverage
EXRBELE pledged deposits and cash and BIREE
cash equivalents) over total capital
plus net debt
B HHE(BEREERERRR SR
ReZEER)RUEERN LEBF
&
Current ratio 427% 306% A ratio of current assets over current It measures a company’s ability
BN & liabilities to pay short-term obligations
RBEEHRDEEMLE 8 N EIMX T2 BMERKNE
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Capital Structure

The Group mainly finances its operation with infernal resources
and proceeds from various fund raising. The Group continues to
exert stringent control over treasury policies.

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no material change to capital structure of
the Group.

Dilution effect of the full conversion of all outstanding
convertible bonds as at 30 June 2019

The following table sets out the dilution effect in the event of full
conversion of (i) the August 2017 CB; (i) the December 2017 CB;
and (iii) all outstanding convertible bonds.

Review of Operations
E Sy 3EI)=

BB
REBETEUANFERSTIRNEE R ZFER
BEREEBEE AEEEBEYEBBR TGRS
S o

ﬁa%%*&%ﬁ;w%%ﬁ@l\ CAKEZE
$ S EmE A

R-B-NAFERA=ZT+HEBHELRRE
HAREBURRESF2BETE
TREMEHERG -2 —HFN\ATREE
% (h=FT—tE+-AMmBRES  R(i)FE
EEXCI-DES IS Tod 2R

Immediately after
Immediately after Immediately after the full conversion of
the full conversion of the full conversion of all outstanding
Shareholder As at 30 June 2019 the August 2017 CB (Note a) the December 2017 CB (Noteb)  convertible bonds (Note o, b)
FHEER-E-LENA SHEEHEBR-Z-tF+28 SHEEBARAHARE
KR RZE-AERBZTH TARES% (Wia) TRRES % (Wib) TRRESE (WEa b)
No. of Shares % No.of Shares % No.of Shares % No.of Shares %
! % B OEE! % BOEE! % RRh#E %
Great Capital (HK) Limted %2 (%) AR 27 198,288,000 647 198,288,000 6.04 198,288,000 548 198,288,000 517
Mr. Xia Boyu EfTRE 69,264,000 226 69,264,000 211 69,264,000 191 69,264,000 181
Mr. Wang He Tifks 21,920,000 071 21,920,000 067 21,920,000 061 21,920,000 057
Sense Capifal Investment
Limited 882,639,072 2879 1,100,030376 3350 882,639,072 2439 100030376 268
Excel Acfion Global Limited - - - 552,486,187 16.21 552,486,187 14.40
Other public Shareholders £ AR E 1,893,959,424 6177 1893959424 5768  1,893959.424 5234 1,893,959.424 10937
Total &t 3,066,070.496 10000 3,283,461,800 10000 3,618,556,683 10000 3,835,947.987 100.00
Notes: ks
a. Assuming conversion of August 2017 CB at the initial conversion  a. BEZENSHBRECIBB TEHKL T —LF)\A
price of HK$0.138 AR E S
b. Assuming conversion of December 2017 CB at the initial conversion  b. BRI PR B0 B TE R —_T—+F 4=

price of HK$0.181

AR EH
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Review of Operations
£V AEI)=

Dilution impact on loss per share

There will be no dilutive impact on the loss per share if the
conversion shares of 769,877,491 (30 June 2018: 1,059,732,563)
were converted as at 30 June 2019.

Financial and liquidity position of the Company

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had net current assets of
HK$163,460,000. The Company is not required to repay all the
outstanding convertible bonds at one time as the maturity dates
of the convertible bonds are different. Based on the financial and
liquidity position of the Company, to the best knowledge of the
Company, the Company expects that it will be able to meet its
redemption obligations under the outstanding convertible bonds
issued by the Company.

Bondholders to convert or redeem

The price of the shares of the Company at the future dates
at which it would be equally financially advantageous for the
bondholders to convert or redeem the August 2017 CB and the
December 2017 CB based on their implied internal rate of return,
respectively, were as follows:

HERBEZBERE
769,877,491 (=2 —N&EXA=+A -
1,059,732,563) BB —E—AFRA=T

AEER  STeHEREBERESTMEETE -

ERFEZHBERARBESRKR
—NEFANAZTE  AEERBEEFEAR
163,460,000/ T ° EWT%%F%Zﬂ%EKE~
AUt AR TLTBE—RIEEIEFTAE MR B %
BB - AR R - %#¢ AZHBRES
ASRR - AREBAHBEBIARTNETZH
REBTARBESAT 2 BEKM -

BHEFEABRNED
ADEREHBEAERLE L NHEREHRL
BE - LF\ATRRESR - —LF+=
A AR 5 I 1S IR 5 .2 48 B R 0 K ok B
B BRGEENT

August 2017 CB ZE—+F VAR ES
30 June 6 August
Date 2020 2020*
- _~' - q—: — 7 — ﬂi
H ~NA=1+H NAXRHBE*
(HKS per share) (HKS per share)
(&8 Er) (&% Er)
Share price f& 7 B 1& 0.137 0.138
December 2017 CB ZE—tF 1 HABRRES
30 June 30 November
Date 2020 2020 *
- 7 - ﬂ—: — 7 — ﬂi
B & ANA=+H +—-BA=+8*
(HKS per share) (HKS per share)
(BRET) (&)
Share price AR B 0.179 0.186
* maturity date * Efp:il=
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Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant

Review of Operations
E Sy 3EI)=

EARBEER HESEREARE

Investments
() Acquisitions and Disposals () WEEERHEEHE
The Group did not have materials acquisitions and REBRKESTES AWERHESE -
disposals during the year.
(i) Significant Investment () BARE
The Directors consider that individual investment with EEZA MEGRNEENBLSER S BE
a market value that accounts for more than 5% of the ERiBES% T AR B EBNEARE R
Group’s fotal assets as at the end of the reporting period T HENA=STEVERRIRE S FHEML
as significant investments. No individual investment with NEE Y BB EBB5% -
a market value that accounts for more than 5% of the
Group's total assets as at 30 June 2019.
Percentage of Percentage of
total issued Percentage fo total issued Percentage to
share capital the Group’s share capital the Group’s
Number of  of the investee Carrying audited Numberof  of the invesfee Carrying auolfed
shares held company amount  fotalassets  shares held company amount fofal assefs
as at os af as of os ot osof osof osaf osof
Description of investment 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30June 30June 30June 30June
2019 219 219 2019 218 218 2018 218
tRREAR AEE {bHRERT hAEE
R-B-1E HZZ-n% RIZ-N\E RZE-NE
HZZ-nE RRBZTR  HZE-nf RAZTR RIENE RAZTR RZE-\E RAZTH
ABZTH BRfTRE ABZTH B8R FA=TE BEARA NAZTH 2850
Refd FRRf®E  AEZEMY ZBREE HBEEZEAM  FRRREE  BEZESM JEEE SEELEAM
HK$'000 HKS'000
TR Fin
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
ROVEHALBREUE ERER
Unlisted investments, ot cost
FETRE BHA
Flowerfruit Limited - - - - % 2.00% 10,000 219%
Other investments
LU - 3,000 0.66%
- 13,000
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
RAVEFABEEREE
Listed investments, at fair value
LRE RATE
Season Pacific Holdings Limited
EERERERAR - - - - 35,002,000 3N% 21,001 4.60%
Yadea Group Holdings Limifed
EHETRRERLA - - - - 4,000,000 0.13% 11,640 255%
Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited
REEERRERAA 21,390,000 223 14,759 4.63% - - - -
Other listed equity invesiments
Afp EARE N/ARER N/ATER 2,238 0.70% N/ATER N/ATER 8,354 1.83%
Unlisted fund investment, ot fair value
FITESRE BATE NATER  NATER 14,624 459% - - - -

31,621

40,99
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Review of Operations
£V AEI)=

Performance of the Group’s significant investments
for the Year and its future prospects

Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited ("Wan Kei”)
As at 30 June 2019, the Company held 21,390,000 shares of Wan
Kei at investment cost of approximately HK$16,840,000.

Wan Kei (the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1718)) is principally engaged in
the provision of foundation construction; ground investigation
services; and financial services.

As disclosed in the annual report of Wan Kei for the year ended
31 March 2019, Wan Kei recorded a decrease in revenue
from HK$226,225,862 to HK$202,893,907, and loss aftributable
to the equity shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2019
decreased from HK$70,247,482 to HK$55,228,625.

The Directors consider that although the growth of the overall
foundation construction industry in Hong Kong may slow down
in the coming years with infense competition contfinued to
impact the foundation construction industry in Hong Kong, the
Directors are still optimistic as to the market demand for public
sector construction works. The Directors are confident that the
investment will diversify ifs income portfolio which ultimately
contribute to increasing shareholder value.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by internally
generated cash flow and proceeds from issuance of convertible
bonds.

As at 30 June 2019, the consolidated shareholders’ equity, current
assets and net current assets of the Group were approximately
HK$152,146,000 (2018: HK$213,217,000), HK$213,466,000 (2018:
HK$284,799,000) and HK$163,460,000 (2018: HK$191,873,000),
respectively.
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ZRFEBERER LA ([FE])
R=—Z—NE<A=+R ARQFH%21,390,000
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HNEEBE_ZE-NAF=ZRA=+—HLF
BEZEBAEE ZERBE_T-NF=A
=+ —BEFEHSZ KA H226,225862% T
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70,247,482 7% LR > 2= 55,228,625 TT
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RBEERMBER
REER  AEBURBELE RS RERETT
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MEEBE R RBEEFED K R152,146,000
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213,466,000 7T (== —J\4F : 284,799,000/8 7T)
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In respect of the Group’s total current assets, inventories
accounts for approximately 0.1% (2018: 0.6%), trade receivable
(net of impairment loss on frade receivables) accounted for
approximately 5.8% (2018: 8.9%), loan and inferest receivables
(net of impairment loss on loan and interest receivables)
accounted for approximately 40.1% (2018: 31.3%), Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss accounted for
14.8% (2018: 14.4%) whilst pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents accounted for approximately 11.5% (2018: 15.2%).
As at 30 June 2019, the Group holds no pledged deposits (2018:
HK$310,000) and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$24,587,000 (2018: HK$43,046,000).

The Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Pound sterling, Euro,
Renminbi, Canadian dollars, Swiss Franc, Australian dollars,
Mexican Peso, and United States dollars.

In August 2017, the Group issued HK$70,000,000 zero coupon
redeemable convertible bonds as part of the consideration for
the Sense Acquisition.

In December 2017, the Group issued HK$100,000,000 convertible
bonds in order to enhance the liquidity of the Company.

As at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, there were no borrowings
or revolving loan facility from any bank or other financial
institution.

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio of
the net debt divided by the total capital plus the net debt, was
approximately 48% (2018: 50%). The net debt includes trade
payables and other payables, deposits received and accruals,
deposit received in advance, confract liabilities, convertible
bonds and confingent consideration payable less pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Review of Operations
E Sy 3EI)=

RAREZRBEERRN S FELOE0I%(Z
T N\F:06%)  BREZERFNBREEES
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Review of Operations
£V AEI)=

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi, Euro and United States dollars.

In accordance with the Group'’s stringent treasury policy, the
Group did not entfer intfo any forward contract for hedging during
the Year. The Group will keep on monitoring the foreign currency
risk and will consider any tool for hedging if necessary.

As at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Group has no
outstanding forward foreign exchange contract.

Contingent Liabilities

Except as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no significant contfingent liability as
at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2019, the number of staff of the Group was
96 (2018: 231). Staff remuneration is reviewed once a year,
or as the management considers appropriate. Changes in
remuneratfion are based on a range of factors including the
Group’s performance, the competitiveness of remuneration with
the external market, and individual employee’s performance
during the Year. Employees were entitled to fixed remuneration,
with discretionary bonus and other benefits including medical
insurance, mandatory provident fund, share options and all
other necessary training.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and of the senior
management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Al Kuiyu, aged 36, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Ai obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Spanish from
the Communication University of China in 2005 and a Master of
Arts Degree in journalism from the Renmin University of China in
2014. He obtained the qualifications of class 2 broadcaster and
journalist from the Radio, Film and Television Talents Exchange
Centre under the State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio,
Film and Television of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").
Mr. Ai has extensive experience in international communication
and journalism. From 2005 to 2016, he had worked as an anchor,
moderator, producer and news reporter in the PRC. Mr. Ai joined
the Group on 27 March 2017.

Mr. LO Pak Ho, aged 37, is an executive Director. Mr. Lo has over
ten years of experience in auditing, faxation, internal control and
management, corporate governance and financial advisory.
Mr. Lo graduated from Monash University, with a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy. He is currently a practising member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
worked in an international accounting firm from February 2007 to
September 2010 where he his position was senior associate. He is
the founder of Goted CPA Limited for which he has been acting
as a director since ifs incorporation in February 2014. During the
period from 14 December 2015 to 1 March 2018, Mr. Lo served
as an independent non-executive director of Changgang
Dunxin Enterprise Company Limited, a company listed on the
main board (the "Main Board”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “"Stock Exchange”) with stock code 2229, and
from 5 March 2018 to 3 April 2018, he served as an independent
non-executive director of Moody Technology Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Wang Tai Holdings Limited), a company listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 1400.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

E=kafEEEREE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LIU Pui Shan, aged 32, is an independent non-executive
Director. Ms. Liu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She holds a bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) from Hong
Kong Baptist University and has over 6 years of experience in
audit and assurance field. She currently serves as the financial
confroller of Far East Hotels and Enfertainment Limited, a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock
code 00037. From 10 May 2017 to 14 June 2019, She served as
the financial controller and company secretary of Shenzhen
Mingwah Aohan High Technology Corporation Limited* (& 3l i
B ZRZ B R 5 B R 2 Al), the H shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange with stock code 8301.

Mr. LOU Sai Tong, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lou has over 25 years of professional experience
working in international audit firms and as chief financial officer/
company secretary in various publicly listed companies. Mr. Lou
has extensive experience in providing financial management,
corporate finance and company secretarial services to listed
companies. Mr. Lou graduated from University of South Australia
and received a master's degree in business administration. He is
a member of Association of International Accountants as well as
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has worked as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of various companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the main board of the Singapore Exchange.
He also has worked as the chief executive officer of a subsidiary
in Hong Kong of a Spanish listed group.

Mr. Tong Kar Hing, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tong obtained the higher
certificate in communication, advertising and marketing from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic in November 1991. Mr. Tong has
over 30 years of experience in advertising, marketing and brand
management. He has worked in various entities within such
industry including enterprises and listing companies in both Hong
Kong and the PRC. Mr. Tong joined the Group on 5 September
2018.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHEUNG Kai Fung, aged 45, is a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Cheung holds the Degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration in information and systems management
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and
graduated from the Master of Business Administration in finance
programme jointly offered by the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in collaboration with the Tsinghua University. Mr. Cheung
was the group financial controller, qualified accountant and joint
company secretary of China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 2002, from August 2007 to April 2009.
Mr. Cheung worked for Kiu Hung International Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with stock code 381, as the chief financial officer from March
2010 to May 2019, as an executive director from August 2013
to June 2015 and as the company secretary from March 2010
to November 2015. Mr. Cheung has over 20 years of finance,
investor relations and audit experience.
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Report of the Directors
EFGRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
Group was principally engaged in (i) e-commence and provision
of on-line sales platform; (i) money-lending business; and (iii)
intellectual property (*IP) rights licensing and international IP
development, media integrated marketing and distribution
agency and trading of sports and related products business.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties regarding
the future of the Group, particulars of important events that
have occurred and affected the Group since the end of the
financial year ended 30 June 2019, an indication of likely
future developments of the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are set out in the
paragraphs headed "Risks and Uncertainties”,"Chairman’s
Statement” and "Review of Operations” of this annual report and
notes 43 and 45 to the consolidated financial statements. The
review forms part of this directors’ report.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are the keys fo the sustainable development fo the Group. The
Group is committed o build a close and caring relationship with
its employees and suppliers, and improves the quality of services
and products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated, and continues fo improve, review and update its
policies on remuneration and benefits, fraining, occupational
health and safety on a regular basis.

The Group is always proactive in its ongoing communication with
its customers and suppliers through various channels such as
telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2019 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements from pages 65 to 227.

The Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 228.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set outf in notes 32 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has identified principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces with respect to economic risks, operational
risks, regulatory risks, credit risks and financial risks. The
Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be materially and adversely affected by those risks and
uncertainties. The following highlights the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group, and it is not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks and uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but turn out to
be material in the future.
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Economic risks
- A severe or prolonged downturn of the global economy.

- Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, inflation
and fluctuations of interest rates would adversely affect the
customers’ spending sentiment.

- Advent of infernational frade protectionism.

Operational risks
- Failure fo compete in the competitive environment which
the Group operates in.

- Unable to keep pace with the technological advances in a
fimely and cost-efficient manner.

- Unexpected network inferruptions or undetected
programming errors or defects.

- Any technical interruption or inadequacy to the system
of the payment gateways may cause delay in receipt of
customers’ payment.

Regulatory risks

- Infringement of valid patents, copyrights or other
infellectual property rights held by third parties may lead to
significant penalties.

- Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain
or maintain all applicable permits and approvals.

- Any change in laws and regulations in different customers’
countries may affect its business.

Credit risks

- The borrowers cannot repay or delay in repayment of
loan which may have a significant impact to the financial
position to the Group.

Financial risks

- Details of financial risks are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had distributable reserves of
approximately HK$399,496,000 (2018: HK$359,063,000). under the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus and share premium of the Company of approximately
HK$95,192,000 (2018: HK$95,192,000) and approximately
HK$304,304,000 (2018: HK$263,871,000), respectively, at 30
June 2019 are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed fo be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 29% (2018: approximately 17%) of
the total sales for the Year and the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 8% (2018: approximately 7%).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 73% (2018: approximately 71%) of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 40% (2018:
approximately 50%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital or
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Al Kuiyu (Chairman)
Mr. LO Pak Ho
(appointed on 2 April 2019)
Mr. POON Man Sum
(resigned on 11 June 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
(resigned on 16 November 2018)
Mr. HUANG Zhiying
(resigned on 24 May 2019)
Ms. LIU Pui Shan
(appointed on 16 November 2018)
Mr. LOU Sai Tong
(appointed on 24 May 2019)
Mr. TONG Kar Hing

Pursuant to the Bye-laws 83(2), 84(1) and 84(2), four of the
existing Directors, namely, Mr. Al Kuiyu, Mr. LO Pak Ho, Ms. LIU
Pui Shan and Mr. LOU Sai Tong, shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. All the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election af the
said meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year. The
Company has maintained appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are recommended by
the Company’s Remunerafion Commiftee and determined by
the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the result of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as the related party fransactions disclosed in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements, no Director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance fo the business of the Group to which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entfered into or existed during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Issuance of convertible bonds

Details of the issuance of convertible bonds are set out in
"Review of Operations” of this annual report and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 34 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as the above, the Company has no other equity-linked
agreements entered during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE “SFO")

A. Directors and Chief Executives

As at 30 June 2019, the inferests of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant fo Section 352 of the SFO, or as
ofherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors
of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Interests in shares of the Company
No such interest was reported by the Directors.

2. Inferests in underlying shares of the Company
(physically setfled equity derivatives)

RIR 5 &5 R B R IR0 ([58 55 ) 2B
B&G11) XV I B RS

A.

EERFERTHRAE
RZZ-NFRA=1TH ARFAEEKE
ZTHABRA QR S E A HEHEE (G
BEREBESFRABEKRIEXVE) 2 kH - HH
Bty RESTEERLARRFTREBEES R
HEERAIE 352FFEZ Bz EMiEs -
HARIECEM LT AR RIS 5. 46 (F PR A 2 7]
BEEETEBECAERERMG AR M
PRI

. RERFGRDZ #z
EEL 2 ML

2. RARGIEBRG.Z #E
(BEYXREALTETA)

Percentage
Number of of the underlying
underlying shares shares over the
in respect of the Company’s issued

Name of director Capacity options granted share capital*
CRHBRESR HERGEEALQT

EERE 14 ZHEERDEE ERITREABES*
Mr. Ai Kuiyu Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.8%

NEFr4E BEmBEAA

Details of the above share options as required to
be disclosed by the GEM Listing Rules have been
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying
shares inferested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant fo Section 352 of the SFO, or as
ofherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors
of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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Substantial Shareholders B.

As at 30 June 2019, the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required fo be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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(1) Ordinary shares of the Company (1) ARE]EER
Name of substantial Long position/ Number of ordinary Percentage of
shareholder Capacity Short position shares interested issued share capital*
TERRER &t #E/ %R BEEREERYE HERTRABL*
Great Capital (HK.) Limited  Beneficial owner Long 198,288,000 6.47%
BE(BE)BRAF ERABA HE (note (iy) (& (i)
Swift Success Enterprises Inferest of controlled Long 198,288,000 6.47%
Limited corporation e (note (1)) (3 i)
REtERER
Mr. XIA Boyu Interest of controlled Long 198,288,000 6.47%
BEFEE corporations HE (note (iy) (P& (i)
REtERRE
Beneficial owner Long 69,264,000 2.26%
BRABA 8
Sense Capital Beneficial owner Long 882, 639 072 28.79%
Investment | Limited ERBEEA e (note (iiy) (FI=E (iiy)

Sense Media Group Holdings  Inferest of controlled Long
Limited corporations e
REHEERER

Mr. WANG He Inferest of controlled Long
FikksE corporations e
REHEEER
Beneficial owner Long
BRABA 8

Noftes:

0) These 198,288,000 shares of the Company were
held by Great Capital &H.K.) Limited, a corporation
wholly controlled by Swift Success Enterprises Limited
which was in turn wholly controlled by Mr. XIA Boyu.
Accordingly, Swiff Success Enterprises Limited and
Mr. Xia were deemed to be interested in 198,288,000
shares of the Company held by Great Capital (H.K.)
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

(i) These 882,639,072 underlying shares of the Company
were held by Sense Capital Investment | Limited,
a corporation wholly controlled by Sense Media
Group Holdings Limited which was conftrolled
as to 35% by Mr. WANG He. Accordingly, Sense
Media Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Wang
was deemed to be interested in these underlying
shares of the Company held by Sense Capital
Investment | Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary
shares inferested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2019.

882, 639 072 28.79%
(note (ii)) (FI7E (i)

882,639,072 28.79%
(note (i) (F&E (i)

21,920,000 0.71%

B 5
() 72 7%%198,288,0005 B 15
& A /‘%Swﬁ\f Sucéei

% B - Swift Success Enterprises
Limited Il 1 2 1 5= S5 &£ = B 2l ©
Ftt - R 5 75 R B RIS XV &

;Lses Limited
=(EB)AR
8,288,000 i Ak

Al 7% % 882,639,072 1% 18 7 Iz
Sense Capital Investment
| Limited# & * Sense Capital
Investment | Limited & Sense
Media Grou Holdlngs Limited
ié} %l #) 7% E - Sense Media
Grou Holdm%s Limited Al i £
o A 1R B 35% o [ I AR 4K F
FREBERDEXVE - Sense
Media Group Holdings Limited
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(2) Underlying shares of the Company -

unlisted derivatives (convertible bonds)

() RGBSR

— R LWITE

TA (A EF)

Name of substantial Long position/ Number of underlying Percentage of
shareholder Capacity Short position shares interested issued share capital*
TERRER k30 #E/ KR FREZZEBERNEE HERTRFBIL*
Sense Media Group Beneficial owner Long 217,391,304 7.10%
Holdings Limifed ERABA HE (note (i)) (B3 (i)

Mr. WANG He Interest of confrolled Long 217,391,304 7.10%
i corporation R (note (i)) (5T (i)

REH RS
Excel Action Global Beneficial owner Long 552,486,187 18.02%

Limited BRBBA e (note (ify) (P& (i)

VSTECS Holdings L|m|Ted Inferest of controlled Long 552,486,187 18.02%
BLEEABRERD ~corporations He (note (iiy) (FT#E (i)

R EE R
Mr. L Jialin Inferest of controlled Long 552,486,187 18.02%
FEMEE ~corporations e (note (iiy) (P&E (i)

REHEE R
Ms. LIU Li Inferest of controlled Long 552,486,187 18.02%
BF Lt ~corporations He (note (iiy) (FT#E (i)

R EE R
Notes: 5T -
@)  These 217,391,304 underlying shares of the Company ()  AREZZF217,391,304 % A8 BE Ik

(i)

were held by Sense Capital Investment | Limited, a
corporation wholly controlled by Sense Media Group
Holdings Limited which was controlled as to 35% by Mr.
WANG He. Accordingly, Sense Media Group Holdings
Limited and Mr. Wang was deemed to be interested
in these underlying shares of the Company held by
Sense Capital Investment | Limited pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

These 552,486,187 underlying shares of the Company
were held by Excel Action Global Limited, a
corporation wholly controlled by VSTECS Holdings
Limited. Accordingly, VSTECS Holdings Limited was
deemed to be interested in 552,486,187 underlying
shares of the Company held by Excel Action Global
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of underlying
shares inferested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, so far as is
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
no person had registered an interest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of interest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”, at no time
during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
year of age, or were any rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s fotal number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the
Company has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed fo building an environmental-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. The Group strives to minimize the environmental
impact by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials.

Further details are disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the Company prepared in accordance
with Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules which will be published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, during the Year and up to
the date of this report, the Group has complied in all material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its business and operations.
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LITIGATION

Details of the litigation of the Group are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events after the end of the reporting period of
the Group are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

There has been no change of auditors in the past three years.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ascenda Cachet CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2019
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Al Kaiyu
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 September 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors present this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance in maintaining its corporate transparency and
accountability. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Board considers that for the period from 1 July 2018 o
the date of this annual report, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions sef out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, except for the code
provision A.2.1. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the deviation
from the foregoing (if any) are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

Al. Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of creating
value to shareholders, and on behalf of the shareholders,
overseeing the Company’s financial performance.
All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, take decisions objectively and acts in the
inferests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
fransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are led by the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management of the Company. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
foregoing officers and senior management.
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Board Composition
As at 30 June 2019, the Board comprised the following
Directors:

Executive direcfors:
Mr. Al Kuiyu
Mr. LO Pak Ho

(Chairman of the Board)

Independent non-execufive directors:

Ms. LIU Pui Shan (Chairman of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Commiffee,
and member of the
Remuneration Commiftee)

(Member of the Audit Commiftee,
Remuneration Commiftee
and Nomination Commiftee)

(Chairman of the
Remuneration Commiftee,
member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Commiftee)

Mr. LOU Sai Tong

Mr. TONG Kar Hing

For the period from 1 July 2018 to the date of this annual
report, the Board has met the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of having at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one third of the Board) with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism fo the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
"Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related
to one another.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules.
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A3. Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals.

During the period from 1 July 2018 to 10 June 2019 and the
period from 11 June 2019 to 30 June 2019, Mr. POON Man
Sum, the ex-Chairman and Mr. Al Kuiyu, the Chairman of
the Board, had provided leadership for the Board and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board, respectively. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable
information and appropriate briefing on issues arising af
the Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed in a timely manner.

To achieve clear division of responsibilities between the
management of Board and the day-to-day management
of business and hence to ensure balance of power and
authority, there are separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (as stipulated
under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code). However,
after the resignation of Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 23 September
2016, Mr. Poon had taken up the function as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company for a fransitional period
commencing on 18 May 2017 and since his resignation
with effect on 11 June 2019, Mr. Ai has temporarily taken
up the function as Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and this deviated from the code provision A.2.1 since then.
The Group has been looking for suitable candidate to fill for
the post of Chief Executive Officer.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific term of 2 years and is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

According to clause 84(1) of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Besides, according to clause 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
new director appointed fo fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. The Company’s circular, which will be sent to
the Company’s shareholders, contains detailed information
of the retiring directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Training and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and directors’
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are confinually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors will be
arranged as necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company (i) has
organized training conducted by Howse Williams for its
Directors namely, Mr. LO Pak Ho, Ms. LIU Pui Shan, Mr. LOU
Sai Tong and Mr. TONG Kar Hing on the GEM Listing Rules
and amendments; and (ii) has provided reading materials
on regulatory update to all the Directors for their reference
and studying.
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PERERHE
A6. Directors’ Attendance Records A6, EECHERLS
The attendance records of each Director at the Board and SEEHEARTARBE_ZE—NLFXA
Board committee meetings and the general meeting of the —tHLEFERT EETERNESEE
Company held during the year ended 30 June 2019 are set BERMRREANGHREIIEHAT
out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings
HEE/EHUE
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Name of Director Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EEpg Exg ERZERE HFMZEEE REZEE RREFAE

Executive diirectors:

HITEE -

Mr. Al Kuiyu 18/18 - - - 1
NEFRE

Mr. POON Man Sum (note (7)) 16/16 - - - 11
ECARSEE (HE @)

Mr. LO Pak Ho (note (4)) 717 - - - -
B (HEE)

Independent non-executive directors:

BUHHTEE -

Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan (note (1)) 2/2 - mn 171 -
RRE K& (M)

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (note (2)) 717 mn 2/2 171 mn
HEEEE (M 2)

Mr. HUANG Zhiying (note (5)) 16/16 2/2 6/6 3/3 1
BERLE(MEG))

Ms, LIU Pui Shan (note (3)) 13/13 mn 5/5 3/3 -
B+ (7 (3))

Mr. LOU Sai Tong (note (6)) 4/4 - mn mn -
EHREE ()

Mr. TONG Kar Hing 18/18 2/2 6/6 3/3 7
BERELE
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Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of each of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and a member of
Audit Committee of the Company on 5 September 2018.
A total of 2 Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee
meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were held
from 1 July 2018 to the date of his resignation.

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of Audit Committee
and a member of each of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 16 November
2018. A total of 7 Board meetings, 1 Audit Committee
meeting, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings, 1 Nomination
Committee meeting and the annual general meeting were
held from 1 July 2018 to the date of his resignation.

Ms. LIU Pui Shan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of Audit Committee
and a member of each of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 16 November
2018. Ms. Liu was appointed as the chairman of Nomination
Committee of the Company on 24 May 2019. A total of 13
Board meetings, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 5 Remuneration
Committee meetings and 3 Nomination Committee meetings
were held from the date of her appointment to 30 June 2019.

Mr. LO Pak Ho was appointed as an executive Director on
2 April 2019. A total of 7 Board meetings were held from the
date of his appointment to 30 June 2019.

Mr. HUANG Zhiying resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of Nomination Committee
and a member of each of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 24 May 2019.
A total of 16 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings,
6 Remuneration Committee meetings, 3 Nomination
Committee meetings and the annual general meeting were
held from 1 July 2018 to the date of his resignation.

Mr. LOU Sai Tong was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company on 24 May 2019. A total of 4
Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 1
Nomination Committee meeting were held from the date of
his appointment to 30 June 2019.

Mr. POON Man Sam resigned as the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the compliance officer of the
Company on 11 June 2019. A total of 16 Board meetings and
the annual general meeting were held from 1 July 2018 to
the date of his resignation.
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A7. Required Standard of Dealings

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities
(the "Own Code") on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”). Specific enquiry has been made of the Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Required
Standard of Dealings and the Own Code throughout the
year ended 30 June 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Required Standard of Dealings (the
"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely fo
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
“www.sinovisionworldwide.com” and on the GEM website
“www.hkgem.com”. All the Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their dutfies and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2019, the Remuneration Committee
comprised a ftotal of three members, namely Mr. TONG
Kar Hing (Chairman), Ms. LIU Pui Shan, and Mr. LOU Sai
Tong. All of the Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and
the remuneration packages of Directors and members
of senior management (i.e. the model described in the
code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted).
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing tfransparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
generally reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company; reviewed the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewed and recommended the remuneration package of
Mr. LO Pak Ho, Ms. LIU Pui Shan and Mr. LOU Sai Tong upon
their appointment as executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors (as the case may be).

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2019 are set out in section A6 above.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the senior management for the
year ended 30 June 2019 falls within the bands from nil to
HK$1,000,000 and from HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note 8 fo the
consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee

As af 30 June 2019, the Audit Committee comprised a total
of three members, namely Ms. LIU Pui Shan (Chairman),
Mr. LOU Sai Tong and Mr. TONG Kar Hing, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee also possesses the appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing
the financial information and reports of the Group and
considering any significant or unusual items raised by the
financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with
and the terms of appointment of the external auditors and
making the relevant recommendation to the Board; and
reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system and
risk management and infernal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements, results announcements
and reports for the year ended 30 June 2018, for the three
months ended 30 September 2018, for the six months
ended 31 December 2018 and for the nine months ended
31 March 2019; the financial reporting and compliance
procedures; the report from the management on the
Company’s risk management and internal control review
and process; the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties; and considered the
re-appoinfment of external auditors.

The external auditors have attended one of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 30
June 2019, without the presence of executive Directors, fo
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended
30 June 2019 are setf out in section A6 above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditors.
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B3. Nomination Committee

As at 30 June 2019, the Nomination Committee comprised
a total of three members, being three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. LIU Pui Shan (Chairman),
Mr. LOU Sai Tong and Mr. TONG Kar Hing. All of the
Nomination Committee members are independent non-
executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommending any
changes to the Board; identifying qualified and suitable
individuals fo become Board members and selecting and
making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors;
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company,
the Nomination Committee may make reference to certain
criteria such as the Company’s needs, integrity, experience,
skills, professional knowledge and the amount of time and
effort that a candidate will devote to carry his/her duties
and responsibilities. External recruitment professionals
might be engaged to carry out selection process when
necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate fo the requirements for the business of the
Group; recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 1 November 2018; considered
and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. LO Pak Ho, Ms. LIU Pui Shan and Mr.
LOU Sai Tong as executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors (as the case may be) and assessment
of the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors.
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The Board has adopted the "Board Diversity Policy” setting
out the approach to diversity on the Board. It is believed
that a truly diverse board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industrial
experience, background, gender and other qualities of
members of the board. These differences will be taken into
account in defermining the optimum composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for setting
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommends them to the Board for
adoption. The "Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, fo ensure its
effectiveness.

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2019 are set out in section A6 above.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate

governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Required Standard of Dealings and the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees,
and the Company’s complionce with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The management
has provided sufficient explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Group put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Goals and Objectives

The Board has the overall responsibility to evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
fake in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
tfo ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and infernal
control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

C.

EENARAMERR M
RIS

BERNBFEHAGRARABE_Z-—NER
A=tRALFEZHBRRZEE -

$ETFGEML$%EEJJ&EI@§*A%EE BExg
ARARERT BWEZHZEFE T H
NEZHRETE - ABHES QML EMBRE
ZRE-ERECRNESSRUERAZTAR
ER - UBEFEERRE2EFSREZAE
[ 81 7% B R R AR AE A R

ARB WA R H AR B ELE X
Zﬁéﬁ&i@ﬁ%&%Ziﬁ?ﬁ&m?ﬁi%
W

[ By 3R e 9 BB B 4%

B RARE
ERGEPARTGIRELRBERAR
%%a@ﬁmﬁ@?ZHEZﬁg&kr
W HRA D TR KRBT ARZER
B R R RBEE I -

EXemRAREELAMEENEEEE
BERIEIEICS “Eiﬁ%i‘%ﬁﬁ*iﬂ - At
¥%Eﬁia§é&ﬁ$uﬁ}ziﬁaﬁ’iﬁﬁa ERERHEE
EMIEE Y 2 RE



Corporate Governance Report

Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities are summarised below:

Board

To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of
the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation
of an effective risk management and internal control
systems;

To oversee the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems; and

To ensure that the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and internal
audit.

Management

Designs, implements and monifors the risk
management and internal control systems;

Identifies and assesses the risks which threaten the
achievement of the strategic objectives;

Reviews the risk areas and risk level;

Advises on matters raised by employees and the
holding company;

Coordinates and promotes risk management
by ensuring that risk and activities processes
are operated efficiently and effectively and in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules; and

Reports periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

. Identified the risks through discussion with the
management. Risk assessment questionnaire
was used to document the risk identified by the
responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

. Identified the existing controls and analysing risks in
terms of consequence and likelihood in the confext
of those controls.

Risk Response
. Categorised and prioritized the identified risks;

. Determined the strategy to handle the identified risk;
and

. Developed the risk register and internal control audit
plan and determined the frequency of review and
conftrol festing on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

. On-going communication of monitoring results to the
Audit Committee which enables it to assess control of
the Group and the effectiveness of risk management
during the year, including:

- Risk questionnaires completed by the
management, risk register and internal audit
plan; and

- Fact finding report with recommendations on
the review and testing of infernal controls on
certain operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group's
infernal audit function is performed by the management
of the Company, including analysing and appraising
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to
assist the Company fo:

. Perform the risk assessment on identified area and
report the findings and recommendations to the
management; and

. Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material
controls and perform testing of internal controls on
certain operating cycles and areas in accordance
with the Company’s Internal Control Audit Plan.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board has conducted
a review and assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and infernal confrol systems
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management. Such review have been made by
discussion with the Audit Committee, management and
external infernal control consultant of the Company from
fime to time, but at least once a year. The Company also
has an internal audit function to assist the Audit Committee
and the management to conduct internal control review
periodically. The Board will put in place fo address
the identified area that shall be enhanced. The Board
considered that the existing risk management and internal
control systems are adequate and effective.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company'’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited,
the Company’s external auditors, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June
2019 are analyzed below:

S A% BB % 4% B RN =

ARRRINEZBMABE_T—NFRA
=STRALFEARARRMBRER 2 ARBEM
EHZBRARNAFR B B RE] —
B o

REEZT-NFRA=ZTHLEFE #E
PR RIFBZRBEAN A T ARF I
BREEREERGSMEBHIERA AN
BRAIT

Type of services provided by the external auditors Fees paid/payable
MNEZBEFTIRE 2 REEE Bt/ ENEA
(HK$"000)
(F#&x)
Audit services - audit fee for the year ended BERBE-HE_T-NLF~A=1H
30 June 2019 IHFEZE%E 1,100
Non-audit services - tax service fee, fee relating to 3E%$§H|ﬁ%*ﬁ1§ﬁﬁk§ SEE
the special audit, working capital forecast ER LEBESEUENER
review fee and profit forecast review fee RABENEEER -
TOTAL: FEE 1,100
COMPANY SECRETARY PEIWE

On 11 January 2019, Mr. LO Sze Hung resigned as the
Company Secretary and following his resignation, Mr.
CHAN Ngai Fan (*"Mr. Chan”) has been appointed by the
Board as the Company Secretary on the same day. On 24
May 2019, Mr. Chan resigned as the Company Secretary
and on 31 May 2019, Mr. CHEUNG Kai Fung ("Mr. Cheung”)
has been appointed by the Board as the Company
Secretary with effect on 1 June 2019.

According fo Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr.
Cheung has confirmed that he has tfaken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional fraining to update his skills
and knowledge during the period under review
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes
the importance of transparent and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors fo make the best investment decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.sinovisionworldwide.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written
enquiries or requests fo the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 9, 28/F, W50, 50 Wong Chuk
Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders” meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the shareholder’s meetings.
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H. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general
meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings
as follows:

M

&)

®

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene a special general meeting pursuant
to clause 58 of the Bye-laws by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the written requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the
requisition or not less than 100 shareholders may
put forward a proposal at a shareholders” meeting,
pursuant to the laws of Bermuda by sending a writfen
requisition tfo the Board or the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The proposal should be stated in the
writfen requisition and such written requisition should
be submitted as early as practicable to enable the
Company to make necessary arrangement (in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and in case of
any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
clause 85 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a
written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/
her intention to propose such person for election and
also a noftice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general
meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by laws. Shareholders may refer to the Bye-laws for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

During the Year, the Company has not made any
significant changes to the Bye-laws. An up-to-date version
of the Bye-laws is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
Bye-laws for further details of thes rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetfings of
listed issuers shall be voted by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The poll voting results shall be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each shareholders’ meeting.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in which the
declaration of future dividends will depend on, among
others, the Group’s earnings, the business environment
in which the Group conducts its business, the business
strategies of the Group, the capital needs of the Group in
the future and the tax implication of the dividend to our
Group. The potential investors should note that dividend
payments should not be regarded as an indication of
future dividend policy. After considering the factors set out
above, the Board did not recommend any payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil).
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J. INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is fully aware of its obligations under the new
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong effective from 1 January 2013
and the GEM Listing Rules. In September 2013, a policy
has been adopted by the Board which sets out guidelines
to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees of the
Group to ensure inside information of the Company is fo be
disseminated fo the public in equal and timely manner.

On behalf of the Board

Al Kuiyu
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 September 2019
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B

Ascenda CACFEU

RIER[IF]

To the members of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands and re-domiciled and
confinued on 21 August 2015 in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 65 to 227, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
tfrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
ofher ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond fo our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2B RS

FARETEE»

Key Audit Matter
BREGEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFHPEEBERENSEZSZE

»

Allowance for impairment of the loan and interest receivables and frade receivables

ERE R SRR EREZ R 2B EREE

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 fo the
consolidated financial statements for the
directors’ disclosures of the related accounting
policies, judgements and estimates and
nofes 20 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements for further information.

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan and
interest receivables and trade receivables
were approximately HK$93,652,000 and
HK$12,480,000, respectively, as at 30 June
2019 in which allowance for impairment loss of
approximately HK$23,595,000 and HK$2,579,000
were recorded.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group'’s accounting for expected credit loss
impairment by replacing HKAS 39's incurred
loss approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss ("ECL") approach.

E—TERF2HEEVBRRMTI24RIAHE
ERWEAB S BR - A RAE A RERA MR
RIFE20 %22 -

EEEANR_ZE-NhFRAZTHEHZERKRERK
MEBEFUAREBRESGERZERED HNHAR
93,652,000 % 7t 1 12,480,000 7% 7T - 7% B A 15 %
BB B B 5 49 23,595,000 % 7T & 2,579,000/ 7T °

BERUANEMHBEREEER (BREEER]) &
BMRBEGHENEREELEBETE  KANE
BEBHMEENFEIFRDWE BEXEBEMEEESE
WEZEFTRE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the recoverability of the loan and
interest receivables and trade receivables included:

- Obtaining an understanding of how
management estimated the allowance for
impairment of the loan and interest receivables
and frade receivables and evaluating the
historical accuracy of the impairment estimation
by management, including revision of the loan
agreements, sales confracts and invoices,
the controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring of loan and interest receivables and
the credit ferms granted for the customers, and
assessment of the collectability of the debtors,
the borrowers and the guarantors, if any;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the Group'’s
ECL models, including the model input, model
design, model performance for significant
portfolios. We assessed the reasonableness of
the Group’s criteria for impairment of assessing
if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk that allowances for impairment of loan
and inferest receivables and frade receivables
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis. We
also assessed whether historical experience is
representative of current circumstances and of
the recent losses incurred in the portfolios and
assessed the reasonableness of forward-looking
adjustments;

FE L IR E AT R U S R N SR FRUA B B B R R
ZAEEEZRFEEATAR

— T AREIEE AR RT Mk A B R R R B BR B K R R
BESERNBERE YHEEEEELRERE
BRI (BIEERTESR @  HEAORESR
Bz s R EEEWREREMN SRR R
BETEPZBREHUANFEEEA - ERARER
AnE) Z AT EIE)

- & EREEHGEEREAAZAEM BEE
2HAZERBA  BAR BXRR-EEE
EBREBRELNZER EFE BEEEMAZ
WMERFGEEAZE A - BB R E R RS ERR
AR W E SRR 2R EREEZIZEHERES
BEAEETHE BENTHELEREERE
TEMZBEAARKEAATRIDIZEEL Rtk
AR A2
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE»

Key Audit Matter
BREGEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFHPEEBERENSEZSZE

0

Allowance for impairment of the loan and inferest receivables and frade receivables (Continued)

EREFRFISIRHURENE S MR 2 BERE (F)

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group
determined the opening allowance for
impairment of loan and interest receivables
and trade receivables of HK$2,605,000 and
HK$1,991,000, respectively, in accordance
with ECLs as at 1 July 2018 and restated such
balances on accumulated losses as atf 1
July 2018. During the year, the Group further
provided an allowance for impairment of loan
and interest receivables and frade receivables
of approximately HK$990,000 and HK$489,000,
respectively.

The measurement of ECL requires the
application of judgment and estimation by the
management. The Group's policy for recognition
of an allowance for impairment on loan and
inferest receivables and frade receivables
is based on the evaluation of recoverability,
ageing analysis, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates. A considerable
amount of management’s judgement is
required in assessing the recoverability of loan
and inferest receivables and trade receivables
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of the debtors, the
borrowers and the guarantors, if any.

For this reason, we identified the allowance for
impairment of loan and interest receivables and
frade receivables as a key audit matter.

REMEBTBREEREIRKR - EKEN
T-\FLtA-BREEHACEEFRETEREER
R FRERFUA R EUWE 5 IR R 2 BTV E R &5 5
#$2,605,0007% 7T % 1,991,000 7T W S5 = F
—N\FLtA-RZBEMRASERES RER &
SEE-THEEERENSRFAREKE 55K
BB 5 Bl ETHE 5 5 4 990,000 7% 7T & 489,000 7%

JC °

EHEEBR A BARAHEREEH 2 HH R
flat o & 5 [t AR M OB R I B BR U B B MR
B 5 IRRRIE B 2 BOR T AR R A B U 1 2 R A
RN WMOTARMBEHEGANESE - BEE
P RF A B W R R A B B RUA M R R B BR R 2 7]
B IR - ZAEHABHIE (BIEEBA - BRAR
ERA (E) 2 R EE FOB TR -

Ak - FEBBI K ER R ERTARERE S
ERZBERERBREEER -

Assessing the basis of management’s
assessment of recoverability of loan and
inferest receivables and trade receivables with
reference to the management’s evaluation of
the creditworthiness, credit history including
default or delay in payments, settlement records
and subsequent seftlements from customers,
debtors or borrowers and ageing analysis of
each individual customers, debtors or borrowers;

Challenging management the rationale for
expected credit loss rate of different group
of age and type of customers, debtors or
borrowers; and

Recalculating the amount of the allowance for
impairment under ECL approach on the loan
and interest receivables and frade receivables
and assessing the sufficiency of the impairment
as at 30 June 2019.

AHEEEE B U E SRR N SRS R B E B AR
Rzt 2 FFERE WREERBREHER
BERARERAZER  FELH (BEERKIIEN
PR)  HELBEREREEBRARESENES -
BB ARERAZIRE DT 2 5744

EREEERTNRFRANRELZ2ER - EHA
KERAZHREEBRE KR X

RBFBEHEEERTAEFNAEREER LN ER
BTAREEESER O RERBEE AR
E-NFRA=ZTHZRERERH -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2B RS

FARETEE»

Key Audit Matter
BREGEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFHPEEBERENSEZSZE

(i)

Impairment assessment for gooadwill
R 8 T 1S

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 fo the
consolidated financial statements for the
directors’ disclosures of the related accounting
policies, judgements and estimates and note
15 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The Group recognised goodwill with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$82,377,000 as at 30 June 2019 arising from
business combinations regarding the acquisition
of (i) property management and property
agency services; (i) money-lending business;
and (iii) the operation (the "IP Operation”) of
intellectual properties (*IP") rights licensing
and international IP development, media
integrated marketing, distribution agency and
frading of sports and related products business,
respectively.

E-—TERFZHECUBRARMT24R3GHE
=W EAMR ST B - HIE RS A MR A S @
FMFFET5 -

ERERAEREE ) MEREERMERERS : )
fEEETS R (i) /e M ([aER]) ([
EREEDRENBERANBERRE RELGSE
HoDHREREEEDHLHEMBRER ZEHKA
HAEEZERAER S -NAFA=ZTEHNA
82,377,000 % 7T °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

- Discussing with management and the
independent valuer to understand the basis of
valuation approach and methodology, which is
prepared based on the Forecasts;

- Corroborating the management’s assumptions
with applicable external benchmarks used
within an acceptable range;

- Assessing the historical accuracy of the
Forecasts, and sought appropriate evidence for
the major assumptions, including the discount
rate, growth rate, ferminal growth rate, gross
margin and turnover, used by the management
in assessing the recoverable amount of the
CGU; and

- Recalculating the amount of the impairment
on the goodwill, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 30 June 2019.

EEREEEFARERECEFBERATAR

- HEBREMBYMGEMETHR  ATHRHEEREE
K& (RIERIREL

~ BERARGEERZERNEEE REEEE
P B3

- FMEBEAZBEERE TATIBRISBKAER
BEETEBRMER CEEE A E S BT
AR ERE R RE - ERRRIKLA)
54

- EFHEEREREWAR) 228 WAER-E
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE»

Key Audit Matter
BREGEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFHPEEBERENSEZSZE

(i)

Impairment assessment for goodwill (Continued)
BB EFT G ()

During the year, impairment of goodwill of
HK$8,158,000 and HK$49,540,000 on (i) property
management and property agency services
business; and (ii) the IP Operation were
provided.

The impairment review of the goodwill is
estimated by the management through the
application of judgement and estimation. The
Group’s policy for recognition of impairment
on goodwill is based on the evaluation of the
future result of the related cash generating
unit ("CGU"). The management has prepared
future cash flow forecasts (the "Forecasts”) to
determine the recoverable amount of each CGU.
A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU
including the discount rate, growth rate, terminal
growth rate, gross margin and turnover.

For this reason, we identified the impairment
assessment of goodwill as a key audit matter.

FRC EROVECERVERERBLES &
iy 0 38 2 B 4 % 51 4R 79 B R 18,158,000 7T &
49,540,000 7T °

A ERE R i E TR A B R P K R At AT e -

EEE AP BREZRRDBRETEEBR
SEABU(ReELEM]) 2 ARREEMERE -
EEECREARRSREER (A NEES
ReELSU A RESRE RAEREELEN
Z AR E S R - AVEH KB (BRI R - 1
RER - BpiERE - FFRRKA) °

At - EFHRIBEREN A RERETSEAE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2B RS

FARETEE»

Key Audit Matter
BREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RENPREBEERBISTEZSE

(iii)  Provision for contract liabilities under its loyalty p.
BHEEETZEHE ERE

rogram

Reference is made fo notes 2.4 and 3 fo the
consolidated financial statements for the
directors’ disclosures of the related accounting
policies, judgements and estimates and note
29(b) to the consolidated financial statements
for further information.

The Group operates a loyalty program (the
“Loyalty Program”) fo its customers (the "E-com
Customers”) arising from e-commerce business,
which provides reward points (the "Reward
Points”) to the E-com Customers after their
consuming of goods through its on-line sales
platform. The Reward Points could be redeemed
by the E-com Customers as a sales credit for
their future purchases.

The Reward Points was previously accounted for
as a deferred revenue, which represented the
value of outstanding Reward Points expected
to be redeemed by the E-com Customers, as a
separate component of the sales transaction.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the value of the
Reward Points are reclassified as contract
liabilities, which is recognised as revenue when
the Reward Points are redeemed at sales
fransactions.

H—PEANBEL2HEREVBEREMNI24RIBHEE
ERBAEA G - A REFT A RS SR
F K13 29(b) °

BEREAEETAREBELAZERP ((ETABE
Pl E®E—\EREE ((DHETE]) - %73
REFEBEPEBEMLEETRHERMRRR
Higt @D ((RBES ) - RBESTHEF
BB EPRERRBE L REHEER -

REEDBEARIBELERA - 1815 R ER
MOZEE BHREFEBEPEREERSLZ
BBE D Kk o NI BB B ME £ RE 16581%
RBES 2BENVENDBRANAE  IRHE
R 5T AR R D B RER AR ©

Our procedures in relation to management'’s provision
assessment of the contract liabilities under the Loyalty
Program included:

- Discussing with management to understand
the rules and practices of the Loyalty Program;
retrieving and reviewing the data of the Loyalty
Program maintained with the computer system
and assessing the ufilisation and redemption
rates of the Reward Points;

- Assessing the historical accuracy of the provision
assessment and sought appropriate evidence
for the major assumptions, including a review
of the past redemption history, the outstanding
balances of the Reward Points, ageing analysis
of the Reward Points, customers’ behavior from
the past history; and

- Recalculating the provision for the contract
liabilities under the Loyalty Program as at 30
June 2019.

ESHEREUCHEH AT 24 DA MR EFE 2R
FREUATAS :

—  HEEEREETW ATREMEE 2R RER
ERLREBHNAERZGEE 2 DB E S 2ERL
SHEEERD 2 MARRHBE

SHEE B 2 BEEEE UM ETERESHA
BRER(BEEMBENARRE WARIBRRBES
R REESREBRON  EPBELETTR)
K

- ENHER-_Z-NFRAAZ=+TAZAHETEE
TZEWaERE -
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Key Audit Matter
BEENEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFHEEERENSEZLSZE

BHETBET 2N EERE (E)

(iii)  Provision for the contract liabilities under its loyalty program (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the provision for the
contract liabilities under the Loyalty Program
were HK$7,093,000. The provision assessment
of the conftract liabilities is estimated by the
management through the application of
judgement and estimation. The Group’s policy
for recognition of contract liabilities under the
Loyalty Program is based on the evaluation
of the utilisation of the Reward Points in the
future and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the utilisation of the Reward Points
including the past redemption history, the
outstanding balances and ageing analysis of
the Reward Points, as well as the customers’
behavior from the past history.

For this reason, we identified the provision for the
contract liabilities under the Loyalty Program as
a key audit matter.

R-ZZB-AFRAB=1+H BHEABETZ2AH
BER# 27,093,000 T - A A E 2 BER (A H
BEREEBEAHE LA MG - EREER
BHEFEBETZENABZBEDREFER R
REBES 2ERBRAREEEHE MEE - R&F
HEMED 2 ERBERR - AEHARBHE (RS
ERMRE  BREED 2 MR L RERRRE DT
AR EPBERERITR)

At BEFRMEREAE BT ZANAERER
R BT = A -

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019




Independent Auditor’'s Report

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The ofher information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is fo read the ofther information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such infernal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability fo continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intfend fo liquidate the Company or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
infernal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability fo continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AR A EE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Chi Yuen.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02671

Hong Kong
26 September 2019

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BB RER GRS IR HRARE
Z2EF =

REEZZE BB ZEAT  EEEEYH A
RANMBRRZEBNRREEZFR  AMBKE
REEE - BEEERBMBEPHLZEER
BRIFERRERTAFRAAREZSTER  RER
IMERZERT  MAREMETERETEBRE
FHERZBEERRBEELEZ ARNE  ESE
RETEERSPEEZSTH -

HARB I B RS 2 EHAREERRTE -

AEEEETMEBAARLE
HEEFED

I E R P02671

BB
—E-AFARZTRE



Consolidated Statement of Profi’r or Loss

Year ended 30 June 2019 & E =%

|:| \/
\\/

—NEFERAZTRLEFE

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FTER FHET
(ResToTedg
(£<<< i@
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
REVENUE WA ) 4,5 228,677 301,471
Cost of sales and services HE KRB KA 6 (167,547) (206,225)
Gross profit EF 61,130 95,246
Other income and gains H A R zs 5 37,734 11,550
Selling and distribution costs HE R HR A (26,824) (54,498)
Administrative expenses and other 1T ER M M E A
expenses (82,993) (104,9717)
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEE 15 (49.540) -
Impairment loss on other intangible = fth 4 2 & & R (B 5518
assets (1.800) -
Impairment loss on loan and interest & W & 3k & 7 S8R FURE E5 18
receivables (990) (20,000)
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEYE 5 53 MEE‘J’TE (489) 99)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate  fE{k B & 2 &) (&518) i 17 (219) 176
Finance costs Eﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ 7 (12,937) (10,024)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM o B AT T 2 R BB
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 518 6 (76,928) (82,620)
Income tax expense s E A 10 (4.131) (553)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM AEERAFBREERE 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS &8 (81,059) (83,173)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIS
Loss/ (Profit) for the year from REFRBBILEEE 2
discontinued operation B8, Ca Al 11 (1.518) 964
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 15(a) (8.158) (8,251)
(9.676) (7.287)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEFR (90,735) (90,460)
Loss attributable to: MT%??J?EMEE?E :
Owners of the Company NEEBA (78.728) (77.975)
Non-controlling inferests ?H A =5 (12,007) (12,485)
(90.735) (90,460)
Cents Cenfs
Al AL
(Resjo’redg
(=75
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAEEBERERSE AEML
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ZEREER
THE COMPANY 13
Basic R
- Loss for the year —RFEEE (2.62) 2.81)
- Loss from continuing operations —RERESEEBER (2.30) (2.55)
Diluted 5
- Loss for the year —RFEEE (2.62) 2.81)
- Loss from continuing operations —REFELCEEK 2 BHE (2.30) (2.55)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e ERE
Year ended 30 June 2019 HE_Z—NENA=FTHIFFE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FHET
Loss for the year REEEE (90,460)
Other comprehensive income that Hofth 2 T W as A] BEAE DA TR HR RS
may be reclassified o profit or loss B AEE
in subsequent periods:
- Exchange differences arising on —ERIBINERRSELE Y
translation of foreign operations ME =5 (1.410)
- Decrease in fair value of —AHEEREQRTEZRD
available-for-sale investments (7.050)
- Release of investment revaluation —RHEEHEERENKRE
reserve upon disposal of i (B f8 5 120 %
available-for-sale investments 7,445
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEZHEWNZHEE
FOR THE YEAR (91,475)
Total comprehensive income FEfh2E R LR :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EAN/NEIEZ 2SN (78,993)
Non-controlling interests IR AE S (12,482)
(91,475)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre AR

30 June 2019 —E— A FA=+H
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —ZTN\EF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
LB BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERNN & 14 4,995 6,179
Goodwill k- 15 82,377 140,075
Other intangible assets HEpmPEE 16 5,836 8,887
Interests in an associate i Nl v o 17 793 1,085
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 18 - 13,000
Equity investments designated at HEERLTES AR EEK
fair value through other = AR E
comprehensive income ) 19 - -
Loan and inferest receivables JE Y E R A SRR 20 8.057
Deferred tax assets BT IR & B 31 2,991 3,011
Total non-current assets EMBEELTE 105,049 172,237
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories e 21 161 1,656
Trade receivables JFE W B 5 BR R 22 12,480 25,236
Prepayments, other receivables and TR RRIE - H b fEURIE &
other assets HMmEE 23 59,022 84,466
Loan and inferest receivables EUWER LA SR 20 85,595 89,090
Financial assets at fair value through A F(EFFABZS 2 & REE
profit or loss 24 31,621 40,995
Pledged deposits [REAEEYES 25 - 310
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREFHEER 25 24,587 43,046
Total current assets MENEELTE 213,466 284,799
CURRENT LIABILITIES HEBEE
Trade payables JE(TE 58 26 21,583 22,084
Other payables, deposits received and  Hith fE {2018 - 2 Uiz 4
accruals N pEET 27 14,340 52,629
Deposits received in advance ElIE e 28 - 2,258
Contract liabilities aMaE 29 10,887 -
Tax payable JERTRL 3,196 2,799
Contingent consideration payable eI ANRE 36 - 13,156
Total current liabilities Ve RNk 50,006 92,926
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 163,460 191,873
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEME
Convertible bonds AR B 30 116,363 138,179
Contingent consideration payable FET S ARIE 36 - 12,714
Total non-current liabilities EMB A ERRE 116,363 150,893
Net assets BEEFRE 152,146 213,217
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the RAREE AELER
Company
Share capital [N 32 30,661 27,762
Reserves G 33 117,834 169,613
148,495 197,375
Non-controlling inferests JEE R 3,651 15,842
Total equity B 152,146 213,217
Al KUIYU LO PAK HO
XEF ERE
Director Director
o E=a

2019 48§ | FLEER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARNEBE

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE T~ NEXA=+TAILLFE

Year ended 30 June 2019

BE-Z-hAFARA=Z+tHLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAREARE
Treasury
share Available-
Confribufed ~ reserve/ forsale  Fair value
Converfible surplus/ Capital investment reseve  Exchange Accumu-
Share Share - bonds equity Capital ~ redemption  Share option ~ revaluation (non- fluctuation Other lated
capital ~ premium feserve feserve feserve reserve reserve  recycling) feserve reserve losses Total
BB
TEREs B424/ EE/E4 TLERE AVERR
Bk RHEE  BERE  EAEE RERE BRERR  EREE  (FUER) EX9BER MR EMES #it
HK000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKY000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK§'000
27 Tin THR 273 Fin Tin Fin TER TER Tin Fin THR

AT July 2018 RZF-N\EtA-R
Ffect of adoption of HKFRS 9 AN B R4 8
£95.2¥

- Revaluction upon infol -RERERRER
applcation (nofe 2.2) (Hi22)

- Remeasurement of -ENERARR

expected creditloss i (Hit22)

(note 2.2)

ATy 18 (estoted)  H-F-NE

tA-R(8ES)
Loss for the year TEREE
Other comprehensive REREMRENE:
income for the year:

Bichonge difierence arisng - #1230 574%
onfionslafion of foreign 4 2B 28
operafions

Total comprenensive income  AEF2EMELE
forthe year

Releose upon derecognifon KB AT EAT
of equiy investment EFAR2ELE
desgnofedaffoinvolue  ZREREHER
through other
comprehensive income

Foutysetfled shore opfion ~ RAEEEB IR
onongements (nofe3d)  (i£34)

Lapse of share opfions ERERT

Conversion of convertble & T R %
bonds (note 30) (H3t30)

At30June 2019 RB-NERAZ1E
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Non-
controlling
interests

FERER
HKS'000
TERL

Totol
equiy

BRAE
HK$'000
THL




Consolidated Statement of Chonges in EqQuity
g%k

Year ended 30 June 2019 FE ==

Year ended 30 June 2018

Aftioutable to owners of the Company

== N\ 7 z‘-

BE-_Z- ) \FAA=ZTHILFE

N5 ingin
/\\/ N IZI E

—hERA=ZTRIEFE

FAAREARR
Treasuy
share Avaioble-
Contriouted resene/ forscle
Converble surplus/ Capial investment  Exchange Accumt- Non-
Share Share bonds equify Captal ~ redemption ~ Shareopfion ~~ revaluation  fluctucfion Other [oted confroling Totol
copial premium Tesene Tesenve Tesene Tesenve Tesenve Tesenve Tesene Josses Total inferests equily
TERER  R4RB/  HE/EE THHERE
e Ririf EaRE Futr ] RERE  BREEE EREE EX29ER AbRE BifiA 3t | ]
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TEn TEn Tin THR TEn Tin Thn TEn Thn Thn kit Thn
ATy 2017 1762 26387 - 77088 352 - (%) (431) - (130.268) un ) 0
Loss for the year | - - - - - - - - - (711.975) (11975) (12485) (90.460)
Other comprehensive income FERARREYE
forthe year:
Exchange diference arising on
anslafion offoreign operafions - - - - - - (143) - - (1413) 3 (140)
Decrease infair value of
availobleorsale investments - - - - - - (7.00) - - - (7.080) - (7.050)
Release of nvestment revoluaton reseree S EET R EREY
upon disposal of avallableforsale REERRRER
nvestments - - - - - - 1485 - - - 1485 - 1485
Tofol compreensive income TERAEYEER
forthe year - - - - - - k{3 (1419 Smem) sy () ()
Equityseffled shore opfion arongements A& EB S (34)
(note 34) - - - - - 5691 - - - - 5601 - 5691
Deemed partaldisposal of inferestin ﬁ E/ TB5kEE
subsicories (nofe 36) - - - - - - - (8.344) - (8,34) 2834 2000
Issue of convertible bonds (nofe 30) - 3428 - - - - - - - 340 - 3428
Direct transaction costs attrbutable fo
the equfly component (note 30) - (59) - - - - - - - (529) - (59)
30 June 2018 1762 2138M° 3600t 77,088* 3500 5691 - (1.850)" @344 (0823 197375 15,812 nm

of HK$117,834,000 (2018: HK$169,613,000) in the consolidated BrHEERHE(CT
statement of financial position.

2019 4§ |

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves  * ZEFBREIEFRSUMBAMREKPE 117,834,000
—N\&F:

169,613,000/ 7T) °

i ERZER AR AR
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Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

N =i —N
:\‘/T\ Eﬁi/}lb%%
Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z—)\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B oE FTHExT FHET
(Reslcﬁedg
(#e &5
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RKEXHKcRERE
Loss before tax R AT 18
From continuing operations RERFEGEETS (76.928) (82,620)
From discontinued operation PEESIR S (9.704) (7,058)
Adjustments for: EEk-
Finance costs =PI 7 12,937 10,024
Bank interest income RITRE YA 5 (22) @n
Dividend income from financial assets at RAFEAAERZZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEMSREMA 5 1)) a2
Fair value loss on financial assets at RATEAAERZZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEQNFEER 6 11,213 4,284
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair HERATEAABRZ
value through profit or loss CREEREE 37 2,444 -
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREZBZITE
equipment 14 1,701 2,058
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BEREH#HZ
equipment &8 - 14 1,161 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEREZEE
investment ) 6,18 - 20,079
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REM B AR 2 EE 789 -
Impairment loss on other infangible assets  E#b & 2 & &= Ri{E E 18 1,800 -
Impairment loss on loan and inferest W E R F B AR 2
receivables B EE 20 990 20,000
Impairment loss on frade receivables FEWE 5 RRFORE EE 6,22 489 99
Equity-settled share option expenses N 34 1,760 5,691
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREE 12 57,698 8,251
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hofh 28 E N 6,16 1,227 604
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate FE(REE S A A (BEB) SaAl 46 219 (176)
Fair value gain on previously held equity WA PTRE S N A RE 2
interest in associate N ER 35(b) - (2,070)
Written off of property, plant and W - B &R ME
equipment 802 346
Fair value loss on contingent RS ARE AT EEE
consideration payable - 886
Reversal of provision for litigation and BEIFA R EEEREE
legal fee (10,521) (9.452)
Reversal of provision for long service BO KRB BE
payment 5.6 (192)
Reversal of provision for labor claim B T = EE 5,6 (307)
Written back of provision of confingent BEIENSARERE
consideration payable (25,870) -
(27.824) (29,586)
Decreases in inventories FERD 1,495 1,249
Decrease/(increase) in frade receivables FEWE 5 AR A (38 h0) 10,276 (17.787)
Increase in loan and interest receivable JE W B R e ) SRR SR AN (8.157) (14,929)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables F8{% 718 « H i fiE U
and other assets RIE R H & R 39,614 702
Additions of financial assets at fair value NERNFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TEIEE (1.871) (45,060)
(Decrease)/Increase in tfrade payables JERB SERZ G D) /10 (501) 1,304
Decrease in other payables, deposits HibpEEE - elidge &
received and accruals et BRI (27.768) (8.211)
Decrease in deposit received in advance TEUIE & - (10,754)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFAERL
through profit or loss DREE 19(c) (8.000) -
Increase in contract liabilities AR BEEM 8,629 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R A FE A2
at fair value through profit or loss T REEMSRIE 1,000 -
Cash used in operations KEEEHTAR S (13.107) (123,072)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNER (730) (448)
Hong Kong tax refund BEBEM 28 -
Overseas taxes paid B8 INRIE (2.984) (1,266)
Net cash flows used in operating activities & /EBATHEIR SR EF5E (16,793) (124,786)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER

Year ended 30 June 2019 & E =%

—NEFERAZTRLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z—)\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B AE FET FH&T
(Reslcﬁedg
€ <=2
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁfﬂﬁ;ﬁ
Bank interest received HRITHE 22 21
Purchases of items of property, plant and ﬁﬁ %% BERSE#EYIER
equipment 14 (3.318) (5.874)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments & i F 1 X FEF AH A
designated at fair value through other 2HE W 2 RAEE
comprehensive income Fr18 %8 2,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE— R B D RS 2E 37 42 -
Purchases of other intangible assets BELMELEE 16 - (2,555)
Purchase of availableforsale investments & & a] &5 & - (13,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEREHZ
and equipment PSR ) 769 1,860
Net proceeds from deemed partial disposal RIEHEH B R B2
of interest in subsidiaries FriS kI8 )88 38 - 20,000
Dividend received 2R S 9 12
Acquisition of an associate Vgt NE] - (15,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B T 88 1 7 34 - (16,797)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale & 7] f# H &% & 15 208
investments - 9,896
Decrease in pledged deposits B 3077 FOR 310 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEMAREREFE (166) (21,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEBR &R
Interest paid H A2 30 (1.250) (1,451)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 1T AR 18 55 B 2008 30 - 97,500
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing mﬂéé@] (FTR) /FsBEER
activities 2% (1.250) 96,049
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRkAELEEER
EQUIVALENTS O (18,209) (50,174)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHekBEeSEEAR
beginning of year 43,046 94,458
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREE) & FH
changes, net (250) (1,238)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESREELEEEE
END OF YEAR 24,587 43,046
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRkBESESEEEEH®RI N
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTHE 25 24,587 43,046
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No’res fo Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/T\

B PR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the *Company”)
was a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 15 March 2000 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 6 August 2015, the domicile of the Company has been
changed from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of
de-registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as
an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The re-
domicile was completed on 21 August 2015.

The change of domicile has no impact on the continuity
and the listing status of the Company.

The registered office of the Company was located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 9, 28/F., W50, 50 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Wong
Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) e-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform; (ii) money-lending
business; (iii) operation of intellectual properties (*IP")
rights licensing and international IP development, media
infegrated marketing, distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products business; and (iv) provision of
property management and property agency services in
Hong Kong which has been ceased and was classified as
discontinued operation during the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire WIS M

w3 7

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. X aIR&EBE&EN »)
(Confinued)
Information about subsidiaries MBS A Rl E R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARREEWMB AR ZFBEHIMT :
follows:
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
HERA L/ ERR BRTEER/
8 Bend ERRE FARBHEREAL TEXH
Direct Indirect
E& GE3
EPRO E-commerce Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$500 51 - Investment holding
(note b) (MizEb) AERUES 500% 7t RARR
EPRO E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 51 E-commerce and provision
SERTEBARAR B 10057 of ondine sales platform
EFEBR
REMLHETA
Geekdigg Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51 Investment holding
EAETREZRERAA Eh 10,0007 T REARR
HE(UR)EERBGERAR The People’s Republic U$$100,000 - 5] E-commerce and provision
(notes a & b) (fitiEa fb) of China (the "PRC") 100,000% 7T of on-line sales platform
EARLAE (HE]) ETRBR
LB LIHETA
RTHRETHEERAR PRC RMB500,000 - 51 E-commerce and provision
(nofes a &b) (fitiEa fzb) i AR 500,000 of onvline salles platform
ETEBR
REBLHETR
Dragon Champ E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 51 E-commerce and provision
ERETABERAR ik 1AL of onine soles platform
EFAKR
REBLHETA
Lujolujo Asia Limited (note b) (fifib) Hong Kong HK$60,000 9.17 - Dormant
ik 60,0007% 7T TEER
Success Beauty Limited (note b) British Virgin Islands Us$2 100 - Investment holding
RERRAA (W) AERAES 2% RERR
Ever Great Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Money-lending business
BERBERAT Eh 1371 EEXH
2019 £ | FHEBEFZERARAR
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No’res fo Consolidated Financial Statements

\\/T\

Year ended 30 June 2019 &#E =%

1.

B PR

—“NEFERAZTHLEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AEREEER =)
(Confinued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER &)
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and  registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
HEMRYL/ERR BRALER/
B TeEny EfRE KAREEERE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E& L
Central Pearl Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Uss100 100 - Investment holding
(nofe b) EERAES 10057 REARR
ERRERRAF (HED)
Full Profit Property Services Company Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Provision of property
Limited B 18T management and property
ERNERBARAT agency services and became
dormant after cessation of
business during the year
RENFEBRNERERY
REARL L EBREEER
Rainbow Easy Limited (note f) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of management
BEERDA (M) & 10,0007% and administration services
REEE RITHRE
Sense Media Group Limited British Virgin Islands Uss1 100 - Investment holding
(notesb & c) EBRERMES 1%7 RERR
“REEARRE (Wb k)
Sense Media Group Limited (nofe ¢) Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
=BEEERAH (Hitc) ik 137 RARR
TERERRULEEARLA PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 IP rights licensing and
(notes b & ¢) (fizEb c) MmE  ARH5000,000T infernational development,
media integrated marketing
business
HBERRERERER
REGReEEh
Strong Network Infernational Limited British Virgin Islands US$200 100 - Investment holding
(nofes b &d) (fitzb . d) ERRNEE 200%7T RERR
HERRLEEERAR PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Distrioution agency, sales and
(nofes b &d) (fitiEb Jzd) BE  AR20,000,0007 marketing channel of licensed
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Confinued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Group has a

structured entity during the year ended 30 June 2019 and
its information is as follows:

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

PrEIREBEER @

MEARER =)

Bk 3t B J88 X B 9h -

REBE_Z—-NFXA

=STHIEFER AEEHRA —HER&ER
K AR > HBBERWT

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registrationand  registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
ML K BRTLER/
8 REwH ZfBRA  AARELEZREIL TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE &
Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information PRC RMB8,700,000 - 51 Dormant
Technology Limited (notes b & e) RE  AR#8,700,0007T LEEH
AIERE EEERMAERRD A
(b Rke)

Notes: Bt 5

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign owned (@ HEHMBRARDNREPBEERTMEINE
enterprises under the PRC law. BEMRE -

(b)  Not audited by Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited. ) WkERBEHGTMEHBMBRARE

i ST

(c) As detailed in note 35(a) to the consolidated financial (c) HIERE BB EMIFE35(0) FrEfil - 25
statements, these subsidiaries were newly acquired on 7 WBATIN - —+E )\ B+ B3 HEEE -
August 2017.

(d) As detailed in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial (d) FRIERE B IREMIFE35(b) FrEtil - 2%
statements, these subsidiaries were newly acquired on 25 WEBARIRZ-ZE—N\E—HA-_+tTBHE
January 2018. g o

(e) Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information Technology Limited (&) RIEREEGBRMER AR (DRIIE
("Shenzhen Huakai Fugui”) is a structured entity controlled HEE) 2 —HHmAEEE 2 EKEHE
by the Group. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group RN ANFc EERANEBFRELESFEINE
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies HEEmM LS EREREEAMHAESE
of Shenzhen HuaKai Fugui and is required to consolidate EEREBEAPMBEHRENR -
its result info the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

(f)  As detailed in note 37 to the consolidated financial 0) BANER A B IS 3R R I A 37 A EF Al - R MY
statements, this subsidiary was disposed on 25 March 2019. RAIBR-ZZE—HAhFE=A-+HBEBEHE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EERE FLRFVWHAATMBATTE

which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

FERFEEEUBKASEEEFENT
2HD - EEZRR JHEMHMERRNF
B < RIEBRILE -

2019 4 | FHEEERAERAT

75



76

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of the Stock
Exchange and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and contingent consideration payable, which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
and a structured entity (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2019. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. A subsidiary is
not consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements when the control is considered to be temporary.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability fo direct the relevant activities
of the investee). When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a maijority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

2.1 fRIEEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Confinued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries and a
structured entity are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries and a structured entity
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and fo the non-controlling interests, even if it results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balances. All
infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to fransactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
fo one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary
and a structured entity, without a loss of conftrol, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary or a sfructured
entity, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary or a structured entity, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
ofther comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first fime in the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Cusfomers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
2016 Cycle

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4, HKAS 40 and
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new
and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@

Amendments fo HKFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment fransaction; the classification of a share-
based payment fransaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with
the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment fransaction changes its classification
from cash-seftled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments infroduce
an exception so that a share-based payment
tfransaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment fransaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions
of a cash-setftled share-based payment fransaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the fransaction is accounted for as an equity-
settled transaction from the date of the modification.
The amendments have had no impact on the
consolidated financial position or performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any cash-setftled
share-based payment transactions and has no share-
based payment transactions with net settlement
features for withholding tax.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

©)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment)
of HKFRS 9 retrospectively as at 1 July 2018 (date
of initial application) to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 July 2018. The difference
between the carrying amounts as at 30 June 2018
and the carrying amounts as at 1 July 2018 is
recognised in the opening accumulated loss and
other components of equity as at 1 July 2018, without
restating comparative information.

Classification and measurement

The following information setfs out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing HKAS
39’s incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9’s
expected credit losses ("ECLs").

Year ended 30 June 2019 & E =%
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No’res fo Consolidated Financial Statements

ire RN

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 22 EfHREHRIEE o
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (Continued) (o) (#&)
Classification and measurement (Continued) PERFTE S
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under RZE—N\F+tA—H RESEG
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as FTEERIEE 395k 2 R E R IR BB
at 1 July 2018 is as follows: BHMEEREIFREM AR 2 HIR
W
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
EREHENEEHE EAURREENRITHE
Category Amount ECLs Re-clossification Re-measurement Amount Category
il F EHEEEE EiifE Effite F1 ] LF]
Nofes HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000
[iF3 TEn ThL TEnL AL Thn T TEL
Financil assefs tREE
Trade receivables EYESES [0} L&R 26,23 (1.991) - - 8,25 AC
Loon ond inerest receivables BHERRAEES 18 89,00 (2605) - - 86,485 AC
Finonciol assefs included in HABRRE R
prepayments, otherrecevables  SUEREREEZ
and other assefs SHEE 18R 3.0 - - - 3.0 AC
Avallabledorsole invesiments Wﬂiﬁfxﬁ AFS 13000 - (13,000) - - -
To: Fquily invesimens designared i (i
affair value through other
comprehensive income (13,000)
Equityinvestmens designated ERRATERAZ
atfoir value through ofher %@meﬂxé
comprehensive income: N/A - - 13,000 (556) 12444 FVOCI
| Fom: Avolobe-orsal vesments 18 - TELERE (i) 13,000
Financiol assefs ot foir value BATEABSL
hrough profi orloss SBEE FUpL 40995 - - - 409% FVPL
Pleciged deposis BERES &R 310 - - - 310 AC
Cosh and cash equivalents BERBEEHEER 18R 43,04 - - - 4304 AC
20878 (£5%) - G B
TL&R: Loans and receivables ' OL&R: EHREEYGKIE
2 AC: Financial assets at amortised cost 2 AC: REBHERATR e REE
3 FVPL:  Financial assets at fair value through profit or 3 FVWPL: RATFEFABEZIEREE
loss
4 FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other 4 FVOCI: BATFEFAEME2EKE
comprehensive income ZEMEE
5 AFS: Available-for-sale investments 5 AFS: H#HHERE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) (Confinued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)
Note:

0} The gross carrying amounts of tfrade receivables

under the column “HKAS 39 measurement - Amount”

represent the amounts after adjustments for adoption
of HKFRS 15 but before the measurement of ECLs.
Further details of the adjustments for adoption of HKFRS
15 are included in note 2.2(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) As of 1 July 2018, the Group had equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale investments
at amortised cost. These available-for-sale
investments, which passed the contractual cash flow
characteristics test in HKFRS 9, were not actively traded
and were held with the intention to collect cash flows
and without the infention to sell. As af 1 July 2018,
the fair value of these available-for-sale investments
was HK$12,444,000, resulting in a decrease in fair
value of approximately HK$556,000 as af 1 July 2018
upon adoption of HKFRS 9 The impact on the opening
balance of the fair value reserve upon adoption of
HKFRS 9 is as follows:

Impact on the opening balance of the fair value
reserve

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening
balance of the fair value reserve, non-recycling, is as
follows:

ire WIS M
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2.2 B BREEBRHEE =)

by (4
PERFTE®E)
e -

() [EBEHEAFORTE— 28]
— T 2R B8R B A -
AERRMNE BB RS ERE5
SEH BB BB EE B
BRI 2 S8 - BRI BRI T IR
BIZ 155 > % 2 i —
WA BB REME2.2(c) *

(y R-B—NFLH—8 FE@E
B SR T G B8 E 2 RAR
EHBARBHERANE  RET
4 1B 30 8 R B B B T R 2 R A
EORrANBERBRUAR ¥
EEREE HASERDRASHE
RESHE R T NELA—
B ZEa@tteEnaniTEs
12,444,000 T - SN =T — )\
G4 A— BB B I 1L R
SO 14+ 2 F{E R L #)556,0005
T BB I W R O Y
AT AREERNESRFENT -

HATERBRAOGHRZZE

BEETERBRESEREORHA
FERKECTA@E) BEszY
ZmT

Fair value reserve,

AFS reserve non-recycling

DEERKE
AREERERE A E B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 RIBEBE BB REEREH
(available-for-sale investment STEZNFERE (REEE
revaluation ("AFS") reserve under SRR 395 E 2 Al
HKAS 39) HE (TAIHEENRESH
&)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 RIBBFB G ERIE 395
under HKAS 39 RZZE—NFRA=F+HZ
wEER - -
Remeasurement of equity investments  E ¥zt E LRTIEEEE @
designated at fair value through other 2 RI15E 39 5E 4 ik A 5t & 2 35
comprehensive income previously EEAFEFAEMEE K
measured at cost under HKAS 39 H/ZBRRE - (556)
Balance as at 1 July 2018 under REBEEBMBREEREIHR
HKFRS 9, restated FER-_E—-N\FtA—H
Z#ER (R E5) - (556)

There is no changes in classification and
measurement of financial liabilities, all of which are
measured at amortised cost.

ERMEBZOBRELEES i
BERAEGRBIERAE -
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ire RN

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

©)

(Continued)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the ECLs model, it will no
longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before
an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is
required to recognise and measure expected credit
losses as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances. This new
impairment model may result in an earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group'’s frade receivables, loan
and interest receivables and other financial assets.

The following table summarises the impacts of

®

2.2 B BREEBRHEE =)

(&)
e
BRUBHRELRER P ZHRE
BHAATTRMEER R BAMKES
BRI ENFERZIEELEBHEIR
‘t BEEAEEEEESX BES
FREBBSFRTEDRERR -
HXFW&Z ERARBEELFER
RIAV21{E AR EE BB 2 B
EEBRERAREENEERSE-
SEFREAE R AT e S B AR R B 5 5t
FEWE 5085 - S R B BR R
REMSREEEREEEIE -

TREMBEER BN HRE ER

transition to HKFRS 9 on accumulated losses and FORMBE T - N\FEA—HBZEF
reserves at 1 July 2018. ERERFEENEE
HK$'000
FHET
Accumulated losses 2R
Recognition of additional expected credit A T & IBHERBEINEEEEIE
losse on
- Loan and interest receivables — B E R R B AR (2,605)
- Trade receivables — B SRR (1,991
Net increase in accumulated losses RZE—N\F+tA—BHR:T
at 1 July 2018 ESEIE N F R (4,596)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (Confinued)
Impairment (Confinued)
The following table reconciles the closing allowance
for impairment of loan and interest receivables
and frade receivables determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 as at 30 June 2018 with the opening
allowance for impairment of loan and interest

receivables and frade receivables determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 as af 1 July 2018.
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2.2 B BREEBRHEE =)

®

Impairment

allowance under

(&)

AR (#)
TERRBRBEEBSFERFEIORN
Z-NERAZTHETHHRER
ERRFBHRTAREKE 5 RZR
EREFRREETEMBRELDEQ
R T \FLA - HEENH
JE s B R e A B BR SUA R R MR B R
FORER BN -

ECL allowance

HKAS 39 Re- under HKFRS 9

At 30 June 2018 measurement at 1 July 2018

BEFEBIK

REEBET REZREIR

ZR|E 395 RZZE-N\F

R=ZZE-NF tA—-H2

ARA=t+HZ BHEE

WEBE BEHNGE BEREAE

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FAET

Loan and interest receivables & W E K & | B iR R 20,000 2,605 22,605
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 99 1,991 2,090
20,099 4,596 24,695
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) (Confinued)

Impairment (Confinued)

For loan and interest receivables, the Group
applies a general model of recognising ECLs in 2
stages. For frade receivables, the Group applies
a simplified model of recognising lifetime ECLs as
these items do not have a significant financing
component. The Group uses its historical experience,
external indicators and forward-looking information
to calculate the expected credit losses. As at
1 July 2018, additional credit loss allowances
of HK$2,605,000 and HK$1,991,000 have been
recognised against accumulated losses and
respective assets, respectively.

While bank balances, cash and other receivables are
also subject fo the impairment requirements of HKFRS
9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Except as described above, the application of
HKFRS 9 has had no material impact on the amounts
reported set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Hedge accounting

The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group did not have any financial asset and financial
liability by using the hedge accounting.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Confracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also infroduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
the disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The disclosures
are included in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS
15, the Group has changed its accounting policy
with respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts
at the date of initial application or only to contracts
that are not completed at this dafe. The Group has
elected to apply the standard to contfracts that are
not completed as at T July 2018.

There was no material financial impact on the
opening balance of accumulated losses as at 1 July
2018 as the Group did not have material incompleted
contracts at 1 July 2018.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

(@

2.2 B BREEBRHEE =)

(Continued) () (#&)
Set out below are the amounts by which each TXFEAEMNE BT HERELERE
financial statement line item in the consolidated 155RER - N\FELA-—HZE&EE
statement of financial position was affected as at 1 MBRRAKREVBRRBEEELETE
July 2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15: padx-
Increase/
(Decrease)
@, ()
HK$’'000
FAET
Liabilities af&
Deposits received in advance TR S (2.258)
Deferred revenue EEWA (1.452)
Contract liabilities EHEE 3,710
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to () &S (BERMEHREZREZES) 7

determine the date of the fransaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or
pays advance consideratfion in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the fransaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
fransaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments o HKFRS 3

Amendments o HKFRS 9

Amendments fo HKFRS 10 ond
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments fo HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments fo HKAS 19
Amendments fo HKAS 28

HK(FRIC)Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1T January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1T January
2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1T January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Definifion of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negafive Compensation!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and ifs Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtcilment or Sefflement’
Long-ferm Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures!

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments fo HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23'

PACRAN
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
fo be applicable to the Group is described below.

(@

®)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets fo be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability fo create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
oufputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outpufs fo focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects o adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 July 2020.

Amendments fo HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitfutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the fransaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are fo
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments o HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associaftes and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

©

HKFRS 16, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK?SIC)-In’r 15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees fo recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of low-value
assets and short-ferm leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to
make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right fo use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured af cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased fo reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change
in future lease payments resulfing from a change in
an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors fo make
more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retfrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 July 2019. The
Group plans fo adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment fo the opening balance of
accumulated losses at 1 July 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
ri?h‘r—of—use asset will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statfement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. As
the disclosure in note 41 the consolidated financial
statements, as at 30 June 2019, the Group had future
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable
operating leases in aggregate of HK$3,479,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be
needed fo defermine the amount of new rights of use
assets and lease liabilities fo be recognised, including,
but not limited to, any amounts relatfing fo leases of
low-value assets and short term leases, other practical
expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered
intfo before the date of adoption.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

C))

©)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those consolidated financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July
2020. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS
28, including the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments on 1 July 2019 and will
assess its business model for such long-term interests
based on the facts and circumstances that exist on
1 July 2019 using the fransitional requirements in the
amendments. The Group also intends to apply the
relief from restating comparative information for prior
periods upon adoption of the amendments.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply
to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
tfreatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity
makes about the examination of tax tfreatments by
taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without
the use of hindsight or retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application,
without the restatement of comparative information.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1
July 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-
term inferest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position af the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from fransactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group's investments in associates.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration fransferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group fo the former
owners of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
intferests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-conftrolling inferests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
confractual terms, economic circumstances and perfinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separatfion of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity inferest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulfing gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contfingent consideration payable to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration payable classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration payable that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent sefflement is accounted for
within equity.

Gooduwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity inferests
in the acquiree over the idenfifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
unifs or groups of units.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

When goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the disposed operatfion and the porfion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
market parficipants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
info account a market participant’s ability fo generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation tfechniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assetfs and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash generating unit’'s value in use
and ifs fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related o the Group if:

(@

®

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary or the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises ifs purchase price and any directly affributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at infervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33'/,%
Motor vehicles and yacht 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

24 TEEFHBERME =)

M BERRBUARFTE

WE - BE KR ERRARZEITE R
2 REBRIEK - —BYE  BEREHE
ZRABEEBEEREEEERTIERR
K BEVEREE ik 2 (R B R ER A

ME - BE &R 1%&?1&?&2&%3212&”&“
&1%% —RRELHREAHREBERMNE

WEZERRE  UBAREZHAXENE
EEE@@CPQL'K{H’Ei%ﬁZKMhMEE@é
BEREOME - BEE&E MANEEER
RS ARFEAERAFNBYEEL R
I EATEE o

FERSBENE  BFE MR B GEFAER
FH T REME RS EER A B REME
PR e Ut MRz EBFEMT :

HEEE 20% 2 50%
R EERRE 20%
TR B R 18% 2331/ %

R R RE 20% £ 25%
HEB D % - BB MkRE 2 IERFHE 5
REMED - BIZBREEZRAE A IREIK
EZED  BE DD BIEIFTERIE - FRE
B AERFHRNETEELINEVRF
EHE I REE R AR (mEE) -

BFEVE BERRBEEERERRERN
HoRHEARARRERXBETHTESE
@Wﬂ*ﬁﬂéﬁliﬁﬁ?ﬁ%’ AR - MR FARE
SREBRRERHEXEREEZRE 1
ﬁﬁ%ﬁéZﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ"ﬁ@%ﬁEﬁ%ﬁEﬁ@@Z
EF e



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of infangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of infangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Infangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the infangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assetfs with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level. Such intfangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Concession rights on infellectual properties

The concession rights on intellectual properties represented
the concession rights to use certain intellectual properties
in the Greater China Region, which were granted by the
owners of the intellectual properties for a period ranging
from 3 to 5 years. Concession rights on infellectual
properties granted separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of concession rights on
infellectual properties acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the acquisition date.

The useful lives of concession rights on intellectual
properties are assessed to be finite. The concession rights
on intellectual properties with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the concession rights on intellectual properties may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for concession rights on intellectual properties with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s confractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs.
Accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the fransaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for "Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
July 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs fo give rise fo cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers fo how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assefts at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debft insfruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, inferest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018) (Confinued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
frading. The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for frading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required tfo be measured
at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assefs with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018) (Confinued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Confinued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
confract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required fo be classified in its entirety as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets af fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
fransaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for tfrading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as af fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 July 2018) (Confinued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Confinued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for "Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 July 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as atf
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of inifial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for frading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 July 2018) (Confinued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for tfrading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which fime the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of
profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for "Revenue recognition (applicable before
1 July 2018)" below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before

1 July 2018) (Confinued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)
When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and infention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and infention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined o be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018
and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 July 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the statement
of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights fo receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay tfo a third party under a "pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
tfransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither fransferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and tfo what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the fransferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
fo repay.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contfract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit
risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the debt investments are considered fo
have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In making that evaluation, the Group assesses the infernal
and external credit ratings of the debt investments.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when
infernal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely fo receive the outstanding contfractual amounts in
full before taking info account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
tfo impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for accounts receivable and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal fo 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal fo lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

EClLs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific o the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivables and contract assets that contain
a significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or noft, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assetfs with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Inferest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
fransferred to the Group. Include other criteria for writing off
amounts charged to the allowance account against the
carrying amount of impaired financial assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because ifs fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses af the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. "Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income - is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “"prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of inferest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The inferest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss if the subsequent
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
relafed to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 July 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, confract liabilities,
convertible bonds and contingent consideration payable.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 July 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for tfrading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instfruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for tfrading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for frading are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income does not
include any inferest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9
are safisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any inferest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 July 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 July 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for tfrading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they
are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
ferm. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for frading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of inifial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 July 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of fransaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apporfioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition,
the derivative component of the convertible bonds is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating fo the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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No’res tfo Consolidated Financial Statements
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B PR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
ferms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to seftle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis in
finished goods. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible info known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including tferm deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
fo be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted fo their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred ftax.
Income tax relating fo items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (Confinued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of faxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be confrolled and if is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that faxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initfial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
fo the extent that it is probable that the tfemporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset fo be recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (Confinued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
fo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates o an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is infended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
tfo the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value of the
non-monetary assets and released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful lives of
the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with
no or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction
of a qualifying asset, the inifial carrying amount of the
government loans is determined using the effective interest
rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for "Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the
government loans granted with no or at a below-market
rate of inferest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received,
is freated as a government grant and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July
2018)

Revenue from confracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is fransferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for fransferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services fo the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing fransaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contfract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
fransfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July
2018) (Continued)

E-commerce and provision of on-line sales
plafform

Revenue arising from sales of goods arising from
E-commerce service is recognised at a point in fime when
the performance obligation is satisfied upon delivered of
goods and received in advance are normally required
before the sales of goods.

Provision of property management and property
agency services

Revenue from the provision of property management is
recognised over time based on a scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group.
Revenue from property agency services is recognised over
fime when agency services are rendered to the customers.

Franchise income arising from IP rights licensing,
service income arising from international IP
development and mediia infegrated marketing
business

Revenue from franchise income arising from IP rights is
recognised over time based on a scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group.
Revenue from service income arising from international IP
development and media infegrated marketing business
is recognised over time when the IP related services are
rendered to the customers.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July
2018) (Continued)

Distribution agency and frading of sports and
related products

Revenue from distribution agency and trading of sports
and related products is recognised at a point in fime when
the performance obligation is satisfied upon delivered of
goods/products fo the customers.

Revenue from other source

Interest income arising from money lending business

Loan interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Revenue recognition (applicable before
1 July 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@

®

©

@

©)

tfrading of goods via e-commerce and distribution
and trading of sports and related products, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred to the buyer/customer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

provision of on-line sales platforms, property
management and property agency services,
development of infernational IP, media consulting
and integrated marketing income from media
business, when the services are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument fo the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

franchise income arising from IP rights licensing, on a
time proportion basis over the franchise period; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 July
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays the consideration
before the Group fransfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=F—NFNA=THIEFE

24 TEEFHBERME =)

WARZ (R=F—
AIE )
W B S B 6 T R 1S A0 R 25 30 B 5 T
SEIbE BE R TEERR

NFELHA—H

(o) BBREFHBERERRNHENRER
EYNHEEAR BRI AR KLE
BeBRERELEBEBREER BFF
KA EEY A2 EEEREA R
ZEE HATEHEOREZERER
R IR

(o) REHEBLBEETS DEEERME
RERS  FEERNBERE K2
EEL < HREHANERA EHIA
BRI

© HMBEA UEAEEZEMTAZ
aHFHRBERFSOER R RS
ZREWANRESREE <R F
BEZLRFAE

(d) HAERBERELZEFEZRA
VARF R BRI S R LL (0 2 28 © [

(e) MBUWA  RAEXEUWE 2 TG
E RS o

ENRE(AC
REM)
AMBEEAEBED NS URE (5%
REFECHE) TARNEFBRERR
R 2 BT - (PR A R RS RS
BETEPHXARE  AREHNS iﬁ
RIS AR E RE) BRBANAE
NABRTEBRTAORERAKA -

—NFtHA—H

2019 8 | FEERIERARAT 125



126

B PR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Loyalty program

The Group operates a loyalty program (the “Loyalty
Program”) to customers arising from its e-commerce
business which entitles them to redeem the reward
points as a sales credit for future purchases. Revenue is
recognised when the reward points are redeemed at sales
fransactions. Contract liabilities are recognised until the
reward points are redeemed.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the fime of leave.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund refirement benefits schemes (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer confributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The confributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the cenfral
pension scheme.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards fo eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is defermined by an
external valuer using a "Binomial Model”.

The cost of equity-settled fransactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of the reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit tfo the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a year represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken info account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant datfe fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance condifions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been
met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include
a market or non-vesting condition, the fransactions are
freated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the ferms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the datfe that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are freated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (*"HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using ftheir respective functional currency rates ruling at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated af
the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or franslation of monetary items are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (Confinued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., franslation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated info Hong Kong dollars af
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
franslated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated intfo Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management fo make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Group applied judgements in determining the
amount and timing of revenue recognition arising from
(i) E-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform;
(ii) money-lending business; (iii) operation of IP rights
(iv) licensing and international IP development, media
infegrated marketing, distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products; and (v) provision of property
management and property agency services. The Group
concluded that (a) revenue from e-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform, distribution agency and
frading of sports and related products are recognised at
a point in time upon the delivered of goods/products to
the customers; (b) loan interest income is recognised on
an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument; and (c) the remaining revenue are recongnised
over time when services are rendered to the customers.

Income faxes

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain fransactions are required in defermining income tax
provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
fransactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly.
The tax treatment of such fransactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Classification between equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss

The Group determines whether an equity investments
is classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss at the initial
recognition/initial adoption of HKFRS 9, based on the
intention of time to be held. Judgement is made on the
classification of equity investments in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Confingent consideration payable

The fair value of the Group’s confingent consideration
payable has been determined taking info account the
forecasted profits of the acquired entities for the future
periods. The valuation requires the Group tfo make
estimates about future period’s profits of the acquired
entities with reference to their business plan to be
implemented and future market conditions, and hence
they are subject to uncertainty.

Fair value of the equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive
income or financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The fair value of equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss that are not traded in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Where valuation fechniques are used fo determine fair
values, they are periodically reviewed. To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however,
areas such as estimated profit, volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

Provision for expected credif losses on frade
recelvables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
frade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and ratfing, and coverage by lefters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
tfo an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic condifions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade
receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

Provision for expected credit losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group assesses impairment of loan and inferest
receivables based on an estimate of the recoverability
of these receivables. Impairment is applied to loan
and interest receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of loan and
interest receivables under both HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39
requires the use of estimates and judgement.

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs fo its ECLs calculation, the Group
assesses whether the credit risk on loan and interest
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan and
inferest receivables as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the loan and interest receivables
as at the date of initial recognition and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The impairment loss of loan and interest receivables
at 30 June 2019 amounted to HK$23,595,000 (2018:
HK$20,000,000). More details are given in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assefts

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be ufilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely fiming and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in note 31 fo the consolidated
financial statements.
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No’res fo Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovation. Management will change the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different from
the previously estimated lives. It will also write-off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Confingent liabilities in respect of litigations and
claims

Contingent liabilities arising from litigations and claims
have been assessed by management with reference
to legal advices. Provisions on the possible obligation,
if appropriate, is made based on management’s best
estimates and judgements. Further details are stated in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment loss on goodwill

The management of the Group determines whether
goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. During the year ended 30 June 2019, impairment loss
on goodwill of (i) HK$49,540,000 on the Strong Network CGU
(as defined in note 15) (2018: Nil) and (ii) HK$8,158,000
on property management and property agency services
business (2018: HK$8,251,000) were provided. Further
details are stated in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FEEHBRMES @

st RRERE @)

VX - BE KR e E A A A&
R T e 1B (E
FEBEREETHANE  BERRE2 MG
SHER R ABRITE B A - B R AR
BUEERDERODE  BERRENER
AERFRERER - HMAF TS LA
EWE - SREHEERFHRLAEH N
FRTRMABAEERR - ERENGHE
RAE S R B IR I A M
SO, ©

FARFEZ AR E

EREEC2EEARERFALERBRRE
EEZRABE -BEEEETZBE WA T
RERE Z REME RAEED - £ — 5
BENERE M TEIREMFEA5 -

B2 Rl 1B 5 78

AEEEREEVBEBEETRERTERME -
ETEETRAYUEESEREZREES
Bz EREEELAER - B EHEERS
ShASEHRER EE B2 FHBERK
RenEFEhlst TREESEMBE R
EZEHEREZBEE REE-_ZT—NF
NAZ=+RIEFE 3 @0)Strong Network
ReEtsEi (FERMT15) R>A)MEE
BLEMERBRBEES D BIMELHBERE
B 1549,540,0008 T (Z T — \F : ) &
8,158,000/ 7t (= Z — J\ 4 : 8,251,000 %
7o) o E—SHBEERN G M ERERME5 .



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets (other than
goodwill)

The management of the Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life infangible
assets are test for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales fransactions in an arm’s length fransaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries

The policy for the provision for impairment of amounts
due from subsidiaries is based on the evaluation of
recoverables of accounts and on the management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of the amount.

Provision for impairment of interests in subsidiaries
and a sfructured entity

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries and a
structured entity are required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries and a structured
entity in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwiill.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for the confract liabilities under loyalty
program

The Group operates a loyalty program (the “Loyalty
Program”) to its customers (the "E-com Customers”) arising
from e-commerce business, which provides reward points
(the "Reward Points”) to the E-com Customers after their
consuming of goods through its on-line sales platform.

The Reward Poinfs could be redeemed by the E-com
Customers as a sales credit for their future purchases. The
Reward Points was previously accounted for as a deferred
revenue, which represented the value of oufstanding
Reward Points, expected to be redeemed by the E-com
Customers, as a separate component of the sales
fransaction. Under adoption of HKFRS 15, the value of the
Reward Points are reclassified as contract liabilities, which
is recognised as revenue when the Reward Points are
redeemed at sales transactions.

The policy for the provision of contract liabilities under
the Loyalty Program is based on the evaluation of the
utilisation and redemption of the Reward Points in the
future and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the utilisation
and redemption of the Reward Points including the past
redemption history, the outstanding balances of the
Reward Points, ageing analysis and customers’ behavior
from the past history.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in (i) e-commerce
and provision of on-line sales platform; (ii) money-
lending business; (iii) operation of IP rights licensing
and infernational IP development, media integrated
marketing, distribution agency and frading of sports and
related products business; and (iv) provision of property
management and property agency services in Hong Kong
which has been ceased during the year.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their nature and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) e-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform;
(b) money-lending business;

(c) IPrights licensing and international IP development,
media infegrated marketing, distribution agency and
trading of sports and related products business; and

(d) provision of property management and property
agency services, which has been discontinued
during the year.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment (loss)/profit, which is a measure of adjusted
loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group'’s loss before tax except that
interest income, finance costs, gain/(loss) from equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sales investments, as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income (previously
classified as available-for-sale investments), financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude convertible bonds and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE T~ NF A A=+HILEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Conftinued)

REDEH =

BE-_Z-AFAAZ+HLFE

138

Year ended 30 June 2019

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FENEER RIEBEEK
IP rights
licensing and
interational IP
development,
media integrated
marketing,
distribution Provision of
agency and property
E-commerce and trading of sporfs ~ management
provision of and related and property
ondine sales  Money-lending products business  agency services
platform segment  business segment segment segment Total
AEERRER
ERMAERERY.
RGeS
ETERR FHRER
RiAL EEERR RUNEEER X
HETAAD REXBIB EERAREBAR VERERELY @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK'000
T#r T T#R Fi#n T
Segment revenue DHYRA
Segment other income AHEBBA
Segment results PREE
Unallocated other income and gains AAREBMARN R
Unallocated expenses AAELER
Loss from operations HERE
Finance costs RENA
Loss before fax BRHBE
Income fax expenses FEHER
Loss for the year TEEER
Segment assets FHEE
Unallocated assefs AR EE
Total assefs BEE
Segment liabilities AHE%E
Unallocated liabilities AARZEE
Total liabilties #EE
Capital expenditure BERX
Unallocated capital expenditure RPRLERFRL
Depreciation and amortisafion WEREE
Unallocated depreciafion and amortisafion KA 2 7 & Rk
Impairment loss on goodwill BEABER
Impairment loss on other infangible assets EhEVEERERR
Impairment loss on loon and inferest ERERRH ERTAE
receivables Fi
Impairment loss on frade receivables ENESERRESE
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=F—NFNA=THIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFWMER =

(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 BEZF-/\FRA=THALEER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RELEEH s d-E 3}
IPrights
licensing ond
international IP
development,
media infegrated
markefing,
disfrioution Provision of
agency ond property
Ecommerce and trading of sports management
provision of and relafed and property
onfinesales  Moneylending products business  agency services
platform segment  business segment e jment segment Total
EFABR
RS }ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ@& ‘
BETAAH EEXEHD Wﬁﬁﬁun%ﬁm ERBEBAY @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TARL TERL TER
Segment revenue aLON 238,519 8,985 53,967 6,768 308,239
Segment other income ABEMRA 11,298 2 24 17 11,341
Segment results ABRE (28,011 (1.078) 16,194 1193 (21,702)
Unallocated other income and gains ROREMYARYME U4
Unallocated expenses APRZER (58.193)
Loss from operations LEER (79,654)
Finance costs BERR (10,024)
Loss before tox Ww BE (89,678)
Income fox expenses EHER (782)
Loss for the year TEEER (90,460)
Segment assets PHEE 94,479 97,823 175,525 13,769 381,596
Unallocated assefs RPMEE 75,440
Total assets BEE 457,036
Segment liabilifies AHEE 67,393 - 36,317 354 104,064
Unallocated liabilities AAEAE 139,755
Total liabilities “ef 243,819
Capital expenditure BARY 542 - 10272 17 10931
Unallocated capital expenditure KPR ERRY 4,049
14,980
Depreciation and amortisation HERES 292 - 1,186 152 1,630
Unallocated depreciafion and amortisafion KA 2 7 & R 1,032
262
Impairment loss on goodwil BEABER - - - 8,251 8,251
Impairment loss on loan and inferest EREFRFSETAE
receivables B - 20,000 - - 20,000
Impairment loss on frade receivables EUESEIRESE - - 9 - 99
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE T~ NF A A=+HILEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFWBER =

(Conftinued)
Geographical information HEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (o) FESEEFZ A
The revenue information of continuing operations is REREEBZWABHEREPMHE
based on the location of the customers: bax I
Year ended 30 June 2019 HE-B-NFAASTHLEE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia* Oceania  Consolidated
EH R il Bl i KM At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TEn Tén TEn Tén TEn TR
Segment revenue: ABUA:
Ecommerceand provison  E AR R
of ondine sales platform BLEETa
Money-ending business HEER
IPrights icensing and RAEERER

international IP development, BB RHE#R
mediaintegrated markefing, % ¥E&A
distribution agency and - ABRER
frading of spots and related ~ EEEERAER
products business i

T

Eo S mf

HE
3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

(a) Revenue from external customers (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

4, BERBEWN =)

EER E)
(@) FELEBESZ WA ()
HeE—_Z—\FXA=THLEFE

North South
America America Africa Europe Asio* Oceania  Consolidated
B3| R M B o RN At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt TR T T T TERL
(Restoted) (Restated)
(& E51) (&E71)
Segment revenue: AHUA
Ecommerceand provision ~ EFEK R
of onine sales platform BLEETR 2163 31,527 259 133,172 42,653 641 238519
Money-lending business FEER - - - - 8985 - 8985
IPrights licensing and RAEERER
infernational IP development,
media infegrated marketing,
distribution agency ond
trading of sports and related
products business - - - - 53,967 - 53,967
22,163 31,527 259 133,172 105,605 641 30147

*

Further geographical information of continuing
operations on sales which accounted for more than
10% of the total revenue are as follows:

! BRGWABRERIOZHERE 2
FEGEEBS E—SHRERT :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$’000

TET FET

PRC & 109,996 82,023
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFWMER =)

(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) HEER (#)
(b) Segment assets (b)) ZEHEE
Year ended 30 June 2019 BE-_Z-hEXNA=+tHLEE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
&M R #iM Bt ol KM At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TER TEn TEn TEn TEn
Segment assefs PHEE - - - - 318,515 - 318,515
Capital expenditure EARX - - - - 10,831 - 10,831
Year ended 30 June 2018 HE-ZT-N\FRA=THILFE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
JEN BE #M Bl ol AEN Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThnL TEn TERL T TER TEL Thn
Segment assets HPEE - - - - 457,036 - 457,03
Capital expendifure ERRX - - - - 14,980 - 14980
Information about a major customer EBREXEEFZ2EHR
There was no sales to any single external customer from HE_Z-NFRZZE-NFRA=+HIE
the continuing operations that contributed over 10% of the FE - -HEAEEE - INIEFELRERE
Group's total revenue for the years ended 30 June 2019 BrEXB2HEREBRARNERBKA
and 2018. 10% °
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. A - Eftslt AR U2
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and NEBEZ WA~ HAIWA RS 2T~

gains is as follows:

2019 2018
ZE-nF ZT—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers: KEEPAHZWA :
E-commerce and provision of on-line BB RIBHE LEE
sales platform Fa 107,143 238,519
Provision of property management and REMEESERMENRE
property agency services PR 75 30 6,768
Franchise income arising from IP rights M ERREEENE
licensing, service income arising from R 2 WA - B A
international IP development and EREREREBERE
media integrated marketing business* SIS E R R
' ON 58,097 49,310
Distribution agency and trading of DEREREZESH L
sports and related products 18R A m 54,236 4,657
Revenue from other source: KEHEMATRZ WA
Interest income arising from EEEBREENFE
money-lending business WA 9.201 8,985
228,707 308,239
Other income and gains: H A A R g
Bank interest income RITHF S A 22 21
Dividend income from financial assets BATEFAEBZZE/
at fair value through profit or loss BEMBREKA 9 12
Gain on disposal of a domain name o 1 4 W e 15 -
Reversal of provision for litigation and BOSRARERBEAER
legal fee 10,521 9,452
Reversal of provision for labour claim BES T RERE - 307
Government grants received B YT i B 484 102
Ancillary service income S ARSI A 233 541
Reversal of provision for long service payment BRI RBRGE S BE - 192
Written back of contingent consideration BEERSAKE
payable 25,870 -
Others HAth 608 955
37,762 11,582
Total revenue, other income and gains A~ B U T W as 266,469 319,821
Revenue: Yias
Attributable to continuing operations reported  RAr S IEE R R 2 IHE
in consolidated statement of profit or loss A TS 228,677 301,471
Attributable to discontinued operation reported RS I8z R B 2 K 1E
in consolidated statement of profit or loss 4o RS RS (FIEETT)
(note 11) 30 6,768
228,707 308,239
Other income and gains: H o I A Je Weas
Attributable to continuing operations reported iR & Bz & iR 2158
in consolidated statement of profit or loss 1 TSR 37.734 11,550
Attributable to discontinued operation reported R4RA B R B2 48 1E
in consolidated statement of profit or loss I TSRS (FFE1T)
(note 11) 28 32
37.762 11,582
* Included in the amount of approximately HK$58,097,000 N 7% #158,097,000 —E-NE:
2018: HK$49,310,000) was oggroximotef(/ HK220,482,000 49,310,0007 7t ) #5818 1 - 920,482,000
§2018: HKs14,233,ooo; represented the franchise income BT (ZF— )\ ,0007% 7t) 5
arising from ifs IP rights licensing and remaining balance MBEREREES BEZA R
of opproTxigwofer HK$37,615,000 (2918: HKT335,(177‘0(|J(|] %Eﬁ%ég%%?éoo C ‘(EE%%}%#
representeqd service Income arisin rom internariona . . ! 18 Ak /e Gt
deF\)/eIopmenf and media infegrated r%arkeﬁng business. BReEHIBEENRBEA -
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

YA - HiUg AR U )

(Continued)
Disaggregated revenue information DIFBRAEH
2019
—E-hF
HK$°000
FTHERT
Timing of revenue recognition W TR A B i
Sales of goods through its on-line sales platform RE-NHMSEBE LHETAHEE
at a point in time B 107,143
Property management and agency services E—REEANEE 2 YEERERNRIE
transferred over time AR 7 30
Franchise income arising from IP rights licensing, E—REEANEE S ERERERE
services income arising from infernational IP 2SR E A - BIRR AR E R
development and media integrated marketing FERERGEEHEBEE LR
business fransferred over time BUA 58,097
Distribution agency and trading of sports and RE-FERSHRIEREREFH R
related products at a point in time AR 54,236
Interest income transferred over time E—BRFFEAEZRE MM A 9.201
228,707

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

E-commerce and provision of on-line sales
platform

Revenue arising from sales of goods through its on-line
sales platform is recognised at a point in fime when the
performance obligation is satisfied upon delivered of
goods and a full payment received in advance is normally
required before the sales of goods.

Provision of property management and
property agency services

Revenue arising from the provision of property management
is recognised over fime based on a scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the
Group. The payment received in advance is normally
required. Revenue arising from property agency services is
recognised over time when agency services are rendered
fo the customers and payment is generally due within 30
days after the agency services are rendered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Franchise income arising from IP rights
licensing, service income arising from
international IP development and media
integrated marketing business

Revenue of franchise income arising from IP rights is
recognised over time based on a scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group.
The payment received in advance is normally required.
Revenue of service income relating to international IP
development and media infegrating marketing business
is recognised over time when the IP related services are
rendered fo the customers. The payment is generally due
within 90 days after the related services rendered to the
customers.

Distribution agency and trading of sports and
related products

Revenue arising from distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products is recognised at a poinf in
fime when the performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivered of goods and related products fo the customers
and the payment is generally due within 180 days after the
goods/products are delivered to the customers.

Revenue from other source

Interest income arising from money-lending
business

Loan interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZ—Z—NFNA=THILFE

5.

WA Hib i AR U= e

AHEEREELE CRBHEERA -
BRASEEMARRERGSEH
EBRELEZRBUA

HBERESE ZRHFFEERAZRATIRAE
F R E LR AR EBIRMH 2 Mt | &
EERBEEHEE -BREBNER - —RA
S TR UCRIE © 7 B (R B SR E A D B R
BEALHEB ZRBRAZBATINAE
J5 1 {5 R0 280 2 R A R R 5 B A — BB ] PO T
R B—RERFAEPIREAERBEZO0R
MR o

THAEREEEHRABAM®

DHEREREEEGREBAARELEZRA
TRAEFPZNEREERARETKELD
BEEZE-REEER B -REREEF
RINER/A@EI80B AR -

REHMRFRZWA
BEREELZFEUWA

RN SWATIA R B R B ERA X
ReBTAZEFFHAERAMER)
BARRMGEF 2R WAERTREESHEE
ZPREDFEZ L RHER -

Ht A

MBI AT AR EERAERN A RS
BT AZ At FHERHE (WEn) BA
HfEFF 2 RS WA ERNRECHMEEZ R
EFE 2 LR FER -
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Year ended 30 June 2019 &#E =%

6.

B PR

—“NEFERAZTHLEFE

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BR¥ATEIE
The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is REBRABESCEEB ZHRBATERTIR
arrived at after charging/(crediting): Mk (GEA) T3S EEE -
2019 2018
% —Z-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT
(Resfofedg
(=7
Cost of sales and services %ﬁ’%&ﬁlﬁi‘%ﬂz$
Cost of sales ERA 83,535 180,266
Cost of services Hﬁi‘%ﬁk$ 84,012 25,959
167,547 206,225
Technical expenses included in "Cost of sales”in -~ BEEGABRE 2 [HERA]M

the consolidated statement of profit or loss AT B 5,806 7,031
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE Rk REZ T E 1,632 1,352
Amortisation of other infangible assets By A Eg 1,227 604
Auditor's remuneration ZHME S 1,100 1,219
Minimum lease payments under operating leases 1R & i RIEF 2 L&A 2 RIE

in respect of land and building BRRIE 5,025 5,972
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BATEFAERZEREAE

through profit or loss NTEEE 11,213 4,284
Fair value loss on contingent consideration ERNIARBZATESE

payable - 886
Fair value gain on previous held equity interestin -~ AT A RBL D B 2 lkiE 2

associate NP ERE - (2.070)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments,  H&ER fHEREEE @ HE

net (note 18) (HEE18) - 20,079
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value HERRFEFABS 2 SRERE

through profit or loss ZB8 2,444 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE—HMNBARZER

(MTEI 37) 789 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&EWE « BiE k&E 2 BB 1,161 -
Written off of property, plant and equipment W - BB REE M (EE4)

(nofe 14) 802 346
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 15) AR RERE (HE15) 49,540 1,189
Impairment loss on other infangible assets HEthmmAEREEE (FF16)

(note 16) 1,800 -
Impairment loss on loan and interest receivables &M B I M S R SR E AR

(note 20) (Fi5£20) 990 20,000
Impairment loss on frade receivables (note 22) B E 5 8RR EEE (f15£22) 489 99
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration 8 T (BB 8FTil 2

in note 8) E5HS)

Wages and salaries TERES 23,342 24,952

Housing allowances TI};E%/ﬁE 292 314

Equity-settled share option expenses A EERER T 614 1,986

Net pension scheme contribution* BRKSETEIMHTUFEE 2,171 2,366

26,419 29,618
Equity-settled share option expenses BRAGEE BRERX 1,146 3,705
Foreign exchange loss, net INEEBFE 2,037 2,911
Bank inferest income fEfﬁ' | SHA (22) @n
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value 1 WE Jr)\TE BIEREEL

through profit or loss A 9) (12)
Government grants received Euﬂl B 88 (484) (102)
Ancillary service income HYRBIA (233) (541)
Reversal of provision for long service poyment BEORBRESEE - (192)
Reversal of provision for labour claim BT RERE - (307)
Reversal of provision for litigation and legal fee BEFAREREREE (10,521) (9.452)
Written back of contingent consideration payable  # 2l fE {7 sk AR B (25.870) -

- At 30 June 2019, the Group did not have forfeited - RoZE-NFAA=TH  AEEILRARK
contributions available to reduce its contribution to the é*ﬁ%ﬁ%(ﬁ%ﬁa?@gﬁmﬁ%i 2 RIK
ETZaTEITRA =7 AR e

pension scheme in future years (2018: Nil).
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZ—Z—NFNA=THILFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. WMAERAK

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET

Imputed interest expenses on MR ES 2 HEER SR
convertible bonds (note 30) (K5£30) 12,905 10,024
Ofther interest expenses HtF ERZ 32 -
12,937 10,024

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EBERIETBAEMS

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RAEE  BiFEMHA - BB QEHE
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, Sections 383(1)(a). 383(1)(a) * (b) * () K (HIEA KR AT (HE
®). (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance EEFRER BB 2MIBENESRTE
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information THASBHMEMOT

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 470 411
Other emoluments: Hibii< :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e REREDAR
in kind 2,595 2,941
Equity-settled share option expenses % 7 45 5 B8 i 1 B9 % 236 764
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFH B 41 38
2,872 3,743
3,342 4,154
In previous year, certain directors were granted share EFE BTEEEARARBRETEZT
options in respect of their services to the Group under the BIBEYEAEER Y RIGER THERE  E—
share option scheme of the Company, further details of FTHBHENGRAMERERMNTEI4 - T HBEH
which are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial NERGEBRRERLZEREREZAT
statements. The fair value of such options recognised in BEREEBHBEE MEERAFEEEY
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the vesting BREZHBUHNALESTHESRELS
period was determined as at the date of grant and the Al o

amount included in the consolidated financial statements
for the current year was included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

8. EERTETHAEME @

(a) Executive directors (o) BITESE
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses  contributions  remuneration
Fe-
BRR REEH BHhe
1 BENRE BRERX HEIf aye
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
lipd FET TAER FET TER TER
2019 ZE-hF
Mr. Al Kuiyu NEFEE - 1,289 118 18 1,425
Mr. LO Pak Ho BRELE (o) - 237 - 5 242
Mr.POON Man Sam &R %A © - 1,060 118 18 1,196
- 2,586 236 41 2,863
2018 —F-N\E
Mr.POON Man Sam BN A% A - 1,567 382 18 1,967
Mr. Al Kuiyu VEFEE - 1,154 382 18 1,554
Mr. HUNG Kenneth REREE (@) - 40 - 2 42
- 2,761 764 38 3,563
Notes: Bt 5
(a) resigned on 1 November 2017 (@ RKRIZE—tF+—A—BEE
(b)  appointed on 2 April 2019 by RIZE-NFOA-BEZEE
(c) resigned on 11 June 2019 ©) RIZE-AFXAT—HEE
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE=ZF—NFNA=THIEFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Non-executive director

The fees paid to non-executive director during the
year was as follow:

8. EERTETHAEME @

(b) FHITEE
AEEDMERATESEZHREWNT

2019 2018

ZEB-hEF —E-N\F

Notes HK$"000 HK$’000

B 5E FHERT TFHET

Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson RS A (o) 9 180
9 180

Noftes:

(a) resigned on 19 July 2018

MaE -

(@ W-Z—NFLATABRE

(¢) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

(c) BIYHBTES
RFEEENBIIERNTES BN

during the year were as follows: T~
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 51 FET TFHET
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai FRER ks ® 67 137
Mr. ZHOU Jing Btk (@) - 6
Dr. FUNG Kam Man B gL (b) = 17
Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan PREE & E ©) 32 131
Mr. HUANG Zhiying ERARE (@ 142 120
Mr. TONG Kar Hing BRELAE (e) 124 -
Ms. LIU Pui Shan B A+ (9 90 -
Mr. LOU Sai Tong Bt REE h) 15 -
470 411
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(¢) Independent non-executive directors
(Continued)
Notes:

(a)  resigned on 10 August 2017
(b)  resigned on 2 November 2017

(¢) appointed on 10 August 2017 and resigned on 5
September 2018

(d) appointed on 2 November 2017 and resigned on 24
May 2019

(e) appointed on 5 September 2018
) resigned on 16 November 2018
(g) appointed on 16 November 2018

(h)  appointed on 24 May 2019

There was no other emolument payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2018: Nil).

No further emolument was paid by the Group to
the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or fo join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018:
Nil).

The number of directors, whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

8.

EERFETBRAEME @

() BUKAGESE )

(@ R-B—+EAA+ARL
by RZZT—tF+—A-BEHT

(© R-TE—tFN\ATEEEERR
—T \FAAHAEHE

(@) R-ZT—+4+—A-BEZER
RZE—-NFREA=-+MBEET

() MIZZE-NFAARAEEE

" RZZE-NF+-ATRABRE
Q@ RZT—N\F+—A+ - BEZFE
(hy R-Z—AFRA-FMNBEEE

F AL B E RN B IERTE
EZHe(ZT-N\F | o

AEBBERUENTES FATEER
BYFRTEEXINEAEMME - UER
HANA SR INA R B B 2 22 E) 3k 1F 2 B B
ZEE1E -

FALEFEHEARFEEERERFABN
EREAME (ZT—N\F &) -

MEaNF TSR ZEEAZMT

Number of Directors

EEAH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/ 7T 8 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001% 7t 22,000,000/ 7T 2
10 9
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included 2
directors (2018: 2), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining

IEeEHES

EREASBHRAREME (ZF—/\F :
M%) EF 652 MERERN LHEs -
BT=Z (22— N\F: =%) BEHMEE

3 (2018: 3) highest paid employees who are non-directors EEEZHESFBOT :
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FiET
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RBBREWHE
in kind 2,184 4,196
Equity-settled share option expenses &7 4 & BRI 24 76
Pension scheme confributions BRIRBEEIHK 74 145
2,282 4,417

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HeENFTIBENZFEERSFHMES
ZHBEHEHRTX:

Number of employees

EEAR

2019 2018

AL —T-N\F

Nil fo HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/ T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7C21,500,000/% 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 722,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7£%2,500,000/ 7T = 1
3 3
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill") which infroduces the two-fiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed info law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5% during
the year ended 30 June 2019. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue fo be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Taxes on profits in respect of the Group's companies
operating elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the respective tax countries/jurisdictions
in which they operate based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

10. FiSHER

R-ZB-NF=ZR=-+—B FEILEER
BT LERB (B (F75%) GAIESR
(MEPIEZ]D) » SIAFIS T ERMARAS P
ERR-Z-N\F=A-FTN\BEEEXR
EROAINBHEBRTE - BREMNEH X
MRS REBEE_Z-NEFERAZTHILF
E - & &K S EE 5 2000,0005% 7T F
2% 7138.25% » T 838 2,000,000 % 7Tt 7
ZHEFZ16.5% > NFE M EHERRS G
EROEE BB G N EEER6.5%0E
— LR o

BEENEGHRIOIREBEREZ_ZE—/\F A=
HIEFEEEAEE 2B ERVUREF %
16.5% < Fi R 5HRE

AEBREMBRELR 2 AR 25 MR -
BEREBEMEMZBRBEEN 2ERXED &
EERBRRAERRIRITHETE -

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
(Restated)
(#e&E51)
Current tax - Hong Kong BT — BB
Charge for the year REEHRZ 572 356
Over-provision in previous year WA T R R - (20)
Current tax - Elsewhere BUERT 75 — H Ath 3 [
Charge for the year REEHZ 3,502 3,223
Under-provision in previous year BAFEREBTR 37 5
Deferred tax IRAE T IE
Credit for the year (note 31) REEHER (IFE31) 20 3.011)
Total tax charged for the year NEEHIEZ LB 4,131 553
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before
tax from confinuing operations using the statutory rate for
the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expenses at the effective tax rate is
as follows:

Loss before tax BRFATEE

Tax calculated at Hong Kong fax rates 12 &B# RiHERFIE

Effect of different faxation TRBMIEzZE
rate in overseas
Income not subject fo fax EHRBA
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz AZ
Recognition of previously unrecognised iR B1E & R
tax losses WIEEE

Unrecognised deferred tax assefs AERELERELE
Under/ (over-provision) in previous BEFERETR/

year, net (BFEAE)  ¥8
Tax charge af effective fax rate RERBEAEZ
BEZ

RE IR MR

Year ended 30 June 2019 BE—Z—NEXA=+HIEFE

10. FAiBHER @
TR & AR T Y BB AT B A
ARRENBARFEMER Y &b R
WY RIERE Y RENER RS B B

wm
2018
—F-N\F
HK$'000
TRL %
(Restated)
(&=5)
(82,620)
(13,632) 16.5
1,281 1.4
(1,150) 13
6,049 (7.3)
42) -
8,062 9.8)
as) -
553 0.7)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

11.

During the year, the Company announced the decision
of the Directors to cease the operation of the property
management and property agency services business
and the classification of this business as a discontinued

operation.

The results of the property management and property
agency services business for the year are presented as

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

RILEEXRE

RAFEE  ARBEMEERELLELY
EEEMMERERBED  XEREHD

BRKRIMEEER -

MEEBRRWERBRBEBNRAFE 2%

BENWT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRI R T
REVENUE WA 30 6,768
Cost of services R AR A = (1.331)
Other income E A 28 32
Administrative expenses and other THRERRHEMER
expense (1.604) (4,276)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM REKIHELEBY
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BBAT (B518) /B F (1,546) 1,193
Income tax credit/ (expense) FiissiEe, (BR) 28 (229)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REERAKIIELEEB
DISCONTINUED OPERATION (F518) /&7 (1.518) 964
Impairment loss on goodwill EER(EEE (8.158) (8.251)
(9.676) (7,287)
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZ—Z—NFNA=THILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continuea)

The net cash flows incurred by the property management

11. BUEBEEE »
MEEBENERBRELBEL YRR

and property agency service business are as follows: SFENAT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Operating activities e EE (66) (661)
Investing activities REEE (C)) 117)
Financing activities MEEY (3.382) 3,014
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be Ond) mAFE (3.452) 2,236
Cents Cents
Al A
Loss per share: GRREE -
Basic, from discontinued operation BEER REKRIESCEER
(note 13) (HH3E13) (0.32) (0.26)
Diluted, from discontinued e RERIEKEER
operation (note 13) (M5E13) (0.32) (0.26)
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2

The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year

ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil).

FRREEIMAKRE(ZF

EETEBERBE_Z-NFRA=THIL
—N\F g -
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are
based on:

13. AR EERESFAEARE

IEBREBGR

BREABRESEDRAFERAR LT BR
F“*%ﬁ/\fﬁﬁ$¢ﬁéﬁ?§'LA)SiiWE?’E?
17 & B IORE 39 845

BRERRBEEEBENTEENE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Loss attributable to ordinary equity AEFTEERENSEN
holders of the Company, used RATEBRERFE ARMA
in the basic loss per share &8
calculations (78,728) (77,975)
Attributable to: JE15
Continuing operations RBEEER (69.052) (70,688)
Discontinued operation RIS (9.676) (7.287)
(78,728) (77.975)
Numbers of shares
B EE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Shares 17
Weighted average number of BUAESREREBEZFRN
ordinary shares in issue during BT EBARINE T 98
the year used in the basic loss per
share calculation 3,005,717,111 2,776,215,424

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2019 (both
of the continuing operations and discontinued operation)
and 2018 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options and convertible bonds outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
rRa IS ERER MY

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NFA=THIEFE

14. W% - BERRE

Furniture, Computer Motor
Leasehold  fixtures and equipment vehicles
improvements  equipment and software and yacht Total
B - BERRE
HE#E  RERRB REH REREE @ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

30 June 2019
A1 July 2018:

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 July 2018, net of
accumulated
depreciation

Addifions

Depreciation provided
during the year

Disposal during the year

Written off during the year
(note 6)

Exchanges realignment

At 30 June 2019, net of
accumulated
depreciation

At 30 June 2019:
Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net carrying amount

—E-hEXA=TA
RZE-N\F+tA—H:
A
2iHE

REFE

RZT-\F+tA—8"
EHBREHIE

"E
ENTERE

RAEEHE
AR E
(Hf5E6)

ERBE

RZZE-AEX A=1A8"
ENREHITE

REFE

2019 F# | FHEEBERARATF
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements

AR TSR ML

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BMERRE=®

(Continued)
Fumniture, Computer
Leasehold  fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment  and software vehicles Total
R EMEE
HEEE & R E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FET TR FER TR TR
30 June 2018 “Z-NEXRA=TH
At 1 July 2017: RZT—tF+tA—H:
Cost AR 3,728 1,554 2,562 633 8,477
Accumulated ZEHE
depreciation (3.294) (1,254) (2,331) (615) (7,494)
Net carrying amount BEFE 434 300 231 18 983
At 1 July 2017, net of RZZ—+E+tA—-H"
accumulated BHREHIE
depreciation 434 300 231 18 983
Additions RE 1,862 1,067 492 2,453 5874
Acaquisition of subsidiaries Y& M B2 7l
(notes 35(a) and 35(0))  (Hi335(al) & 35(0)) - 720 2813 - 3533
Depreciation provided FRNERE
during the year (740) 51) (558) (509) (2,058)
Disposal during the year ~ RAFEHE - (15) (1,845) - (1,860)
Written off during the year — A S ZHf$4
(note 6) GED) (147) (179) (0) - (346)
Exchanges realignment (B X B 15 38 ) 1 53
At 30 June 2018, net of RZZE-\FR A=1H"
accumulated BB RETE
depreciation 1,424 1,680 1,112 1,963 6,179
At 30 June 2018: RZZE-NFRA=TH:
Cost AR 2,583 2,953 3,222 3,104 11,862
Accumulated 2EHE
depreciation (1.159) (1.273) (2.110) (1.141) (5.683)
Net carrying amount EmFE 1,424 1,680 1112 1,963 6,179
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. GOODWILL

TSR E

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

15. B8

HK$"000
TET

At 1 July 2017
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 July 2017, net of
accumulated impairment
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(notes 35(a)&(b))
Impairment during the year (note 6)

Cost at 30 June 2018, net of
accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2018
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 July 2018, net of
accumulated impairment

Written off

Impairment during the year

Cost at 30 June 2019, net of
accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2019
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

RZT—tF+HA—H
AR AR
ZEHRE

BREFE

RoE—EFEA—HZEA
Sk RFHRE

e 5 0418 2 ] (B 3535 (1) J& (b))

RAFERE (o)

RZZE—NFRA=THZHAE

EHIBRZRRE

R-Z—\FRA=1H
BN
ZFHRE

AREFE

RZFB-NFLA-BZHKAE -
EHBRRRE

i€

WAFEEZRE

RZZB-NFRA=ZTHZHAE

EHBRZERE
RZT—-NFANA=1H

DN

ZEtRE

BRHFE

27,845
(10,436)

17,409

17,409

130,917
(8,251)

140,075

158,762
(18,687)

140,075

140,075

(57.698)

82,377

148,326

(65.949)

82,377
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AR TSR ML

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

15. B& »

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units
("CGU") that are expected to benefit from that business. A
summary of goodwill by each reporting operating CGU is
presented below:

ReE4 BN (BEHE) RENR

BESREEAEEBHAINRZEBERNR
SELBMN([BEEEEMN]) - ZEREL
EReELBENEONEEMEBEHIWT

As at 30 June
RARA=+H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z—)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Property management and property  #)2& 8 I ¥ 3 R I8 RIS
agency services - 8,158
Money-lending business BEXER 1,000 1,000
IP rights licensing and international HBERRERSR a%ﬂ%&%ﬁg
IP development, media integrated FE - HRSGAEHE  HIERE
marketing, distribution agency hEEEBRBBAMES
and frading of sports and related
products business
- arising from the Sense Acquisition —H =B EIE M EE 72,729 72,729
- arising from the Strong Network — 3 Strong Network Yz 8 £ 18
Acquisition MmEE 8,648 58,188
82,377 140,075

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the Group’s cash generating units ("CGUs")
that are expected to benefit from that business. The
net carrying amount of goodwill represented, nil
(after impairment of HK$16,409,000), HK$1,000,000,
HK$72,729,000 and HK$8,648,000 (after impairment
of HK$49,540,000) respectively, as at 30 June 2019
arose from acquisition of subsidiaries in (i) the property
management and property agency services CGU; (ii)
the money-lending business CGU; and (iii) the Sense
Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU regarding
IP rights licensing and international IP development,
media intfegrated marketing, distribution agency
and trading of sports and related products business.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

@

®)

Provision of property management and
property agency services CGU

In previous year, the recoverable amounts of the
provision of property management and property
agency services CGU had been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The Directors engaged an independent
valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited
("Ascent Partners”) to determine the recoverable
amount of the provision of property management
and property agency services CGU as at 30 June
2018 and an impairment loss of HK$8,251,000 was
recognised for the year.

As detailed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group ceased its property
management and property agency services business
during the year ended 30 June 2019. Accordingly,
the carrying value of the goodwill arising from the
provision of property management and property
agency services CGU of HK$8,158,000 (note 11) was
fully impaired during the year.

Money-lending business CGU

In addition, the Directors prepared the cash flow
forecast to determine the recoverable amount of the
money-lending business CGU.

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
senior management of the Group for the next five
years from 2019 to 2023 (the "Budget Period”) with
the residual period.

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and turnover during the Budget Period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.
The terminal growth rate is based on historical
growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGUs operate. These rates do not
exceed the average long-ferm growth rates for the
relevant markets. Budgeted revenue (i.e. the loan
interest income for the range from 8% to 12% on loan
portfolio, respectively) and expenses are based on
historical performance of the CGUs projected with
growth rate not exceed the inflation rate.

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

15. B& »
BeELEEN (BEEE) BHENSR

(&)

(Q) 1REEEETE T 1% 11 RS

®)

HeELEN

LFEE REDEEELRYERER
BREELABMZ KBS EEHFA
MAREREERBEEEHAEEET -
EEZEBUGEMYATESLAE
RAF ((XFHE]D REERHYE
EERMERERBESELSEMN
“E-N\FERA=ZTRZAIKESEE
WA AN 2 HERR0R (B85 15 8,251,000 78

JT °©

BMANAR A B S MR M IV PRt - 10
BE-_T-AFA=ZTHLFE "
AREEKIEEYMEEE MY ERER
BEL Al RENRRDEER
FMERERBREELBENELZ
7% E Bk (E8,158,000/8 7T (M &E11)
Ty BURE

EEXBHREELEN
o BEFEURSRERANEE
BHEBRSELENU 2 ATRESH -

BEREBANDEREEAEESRE
EEME-_T—NEFE_T_ZFF
RAF([BEEH]) RF#GEBE &R
BIISTEE D -

MARERBENTIEBRRAEEH
MEEER X ERER  Ripi k=K F
MERIWAE R - NEBE A R
BRI S EERREERNTHIER
& B A B E R B RO A AT LD R DA
FHREIRE - R R R UABR S EL
BUEEEBIEENELIERE
REE ZEHRY NEBABTS
B FIRIERER - RE K E (BIER
HEZ8%E12%EHMBUWA) K FH
XNHERRTELABNZBEREAE
E o RAHERETSRNERE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(b) Money-lending business CGU (Continued)

©

Based on the cash flow forecast of the money lending
business (the "Money Lending Business Forecast”)
prepared by the Directors, they were of the opinion
that no provision for impairment loss on goodwill
arising from the money-lending business CGU
was considered necessary during the year as the
recoverable amount of the money-lending business
CGU was higher than its carrying amount.

Sense Media CGU and Strong Network
ceu

The Sense Media CGU is a comprehensive operation
platform for IP rights and is also specialising in media
integrated marketing business, including provision of
infegrated marketing, planning and design service
for brands. The Sense Media CGU is also a pioneer
of the “Intellectual Property + Augmented Reality +
Food & Beverage” business concept in the PRC. Its
concession rights on intellectual properties, namely
“Le Petit Chef” and ""Dinner Time Story”: Marco Polo”,
has generated revenue fo the Group.

The Strong Network CGU provides key distribution
channels to the Sense Media CGU and the Group
for their downstream businesses and provision of
steady expansion of commercialised IPs within the
PRC, through engagement with various cooperation
partners which covers different provinces in the PRC.
In addition, the Strong Network CGU also involved
in the distribution agency and trading of sports and
related products.

The recoverable amounts of the Sense Media CGU
and the Strong Network CGU have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted
cash flow method.

The Directors also engaged Ascent Partners to
determine the recoverable amounts of the Sense
Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(c) Sense Media CGU and Sfrong Network

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

15. B& »
BeELEEN (BEEE) BENSR
()
(c) ZBERESELELR

CGU (Continued)

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on the
most recent financial budgets approved by the senior
management of the Group for the next five years
from 2020 to 2024 (the "Sense and Strong Network
Budget Period”) with the residual period.

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
turnover during the Sense and Strong Network Budget
Period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The terminal growth ratfe is based on historical
growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGUs operate. These rates do not
exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
relevant markets. Budgeted revenue based on past
performance and expectations regarding market
development and expenses are based on historical
performance of the CGUs projected with growth rate
not exceed the inflation rate.

Pursuant to the valuation report of the Sense Media
CGU dated 23 September 2019 (the "Sense Media
Business Valuation”), the recoverable amount of the
Sense Media CGU as at 30 June 2019 was higher
than its carrying amount. Accordingly, no provision
for impairment loss on goodwill arising from the Sense
Media CGU was considered necessary.

Pursuant to the valuation report of the Strong Network
CGU dated 23 September 2019 (the "Strong Network
Business Valuation”), the recoverable amount of the
Strong Network CGU as at 30 June 2019 was assessed
to be RMB23,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,612,000). The decrease in the recoverable
amount of the Strong Network CGU was mainly due
to the decline in budgeted revenue. Accordingly, an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$49,540,000 arising
from the Strong Network CGU was provided during
the year.

Strong Network 3 % E £ & i/
(4)

ReneBANERECREESRE
BEMHE-_Z-_ZTEEF_TMERX
kA F ([ =B K Strong Network 18 &
) RFIER B SR B S TEE RS -

BRBREREBENEIEBRRE=2R
Strong Network 78 & 5 A 8 17 & -« 1%
RE KRS RE EMERBKAEH -
ANEERAAIRYEB AT S HE E B
HEENIERRESELSEMETER
B #9 B BT Lb 2R DA AT BE IR 5K o R I8
REDURSEABULLEELMAE
WENESERE AL - ZEHE
WARBBABTIZH I RPERE -
BEREDUATSERNBTERER
BHAEERAIIERREELES
NzBERBREE  BiBEERTH
RBIRE -

REAMA-Z-AFALA-TZ=H
ZREEREELABM 2 HERSE
(=REHEXHHED  =ZBEER
CEAEMNR_T-NAFA=TH
ZAREEERNEEE- B #
AR =REREREELENELEZE
BIEHREEBEREE -

REBHA-_T—NAFALA=-T+=H
2 Strong Network I8 & & 4 ¥ i &
HE RS ([ Strong Network % 7 (&
f&]) » Strong Network i & & 4 &
R-ZZT—AFEXNA=t+BHZAKE
& B W AT A AR ¥ 23,400,000 T
(FHFE R %926,612,0007% L) ° Strong
Network 3} & & 4 B i . A g[8l & 58
WO EEZHRBERA TR
B It - A 7R 4 [E 5142 Strong Network
REEEBNELZHEREBRRE
549,540,000 7T °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

15. B& »
BeELEEN (BEEE) BENSR

15. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill (Continued) (&)
(c) Sense Media CGU and Strong Network (c) =RERBTELEMLL
CGU (Continued) Strong Network 31 % &= 4 & (7
(#)
Apart from the above, the key assumptions used in brEdEIN ARHAEVEETEER

HE -BEEBEN —BERER
& 1B & Strong Network % 7 & E 7 =
ZRK (AFETHERE  KmiER

the calculation of the property management business
valuation, the Money-Lending Business Forecast, the
Sense Media Business Valuation and Strong Network

164

Business Valuation (i.e. average growth rates,
terminal growth rates and pre-tax discount rates
calculations) are as follows:

KRR E) M TR

Average Terminal
growth rate growth rate
in the beyond the Pre-tax
CGUs budget period budget period discount rate
AEHAN EEHEN BiAl
REeEEEN FHBRE RinBR=E B =
Provision of property management and N/A N/A N/A
property agency services TEA TiEA TEA
REWEEE RMERERG (2018: 4.1%) (2018: 3.08%) (2018: 15.71%)
—E-N\F: —E-N\F: —E-N\F:
4.1%) 3.08%) 15.71%)
Money-lending business 3% 3.11% 19.82%
BEER (2018: 3%) (2018: 3.11%) (2018: 19.82%)
—E-N\F: —E-N\F: (ZE—-NF:
3%) 3.11%) 19.82%)
IP rights licensing and international IP
development, media infegrated marketing,
distribution agency and trading of sports
and related products business:
MBERRENRBEBENMEERE HERaEH
DERBREEEY RAAMAMERS
- Sense CGU 5.56% 2.45% 18.17%
—=RREEEEN (2018: 18.5%) (2018: 2.61%) (2018: 19.82%)
—E-N\F: —E-N\F: (ZE-N\F:
18.5%) 2.61%) 19.82%)
- Strong Network CGU 6.50% 2.45% 23.13%
—Strong Network 3% & & 4 B i1 (2018: 12%) (2018: 2.61%) (2018: 25.52%)
—E-N\F: (ZE—-N\F: (ZE—NF:
12%) 2.61%) 25.52%)
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RE IR MR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

16. Hitt | EE

Concession
rights on
On-line sales intellectual
platforms properties Total
HBEEZ
WEHETAR SR REE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Af 1 July 2017 RZZE—+tF+H—H
Cost AR 24,875 - 24,875
Accumulated impairment REHRE (20,975) - (20,975)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,900 - 3,900
At 1 July 2017, net of RZZE—+tF+H—H"
accumulated impairment BBk 2FHRE 3,900 - 3,900
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE B B A A
(notes 35(a) and (b)) (B 35 35(a) & (b)) - 3,018 3,018
Additions AE - 2,555 2,555
Amortisation provided FREEHBE
during the year - (604) (604)
Exchange realignment ME 5 A% - 18 18
Impairment during the year RAFERE - - -
At 30 June 2018, net of RZE—-N\FAA=+AH"
accumulated impairment Bk RFHRE 3,900 4,987 8,887
At 30 June 2018 R-ZZE—N\FA=+H
Cost (DN 24,875 5,591 30,466
Accumulated impairment ZETRE &
and amortisation (20,975) (604) (21,579)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,900 4,987 8,887

At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018

Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 July 2018, net of
accumulated impairment

Amortisation provided
during the year

Impairment during the year
(note 6)

Exchange realignment

At 30 June 2019, net of
accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2019
Cost
Accumulated impairment
and amortisation

Net carrying amount

R=Z2—\FXA=+A
R-E—N\F+A—A

DN
ZERE
FREDSHE

RZE—N\FtHA—H"
E?DF‘%;%:.‘I'/JWE
FREIERE
RAERRME (L 6)
RZZT—NAFAA=1+H"
Bk REHRE
R-ZFE—NFA=+H
B AR

REDRE R

BREFE
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The cost of other intangible assets mainly represents (i)
three online sales platforms for tfrading of merchandises
through internet acquired by the Group during the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2012 respectively; (ii) several
concession rights on infellectual properties leased during
the year ended 30 June 2018.

On-line sales plaiforms

The Directors are of the opinion that the online sales
platforms are indefinite useful life as no expiring date for
each of on-line sales platforms.

Platform 1

The Group made a full impairment of HK$19,260,000 in
previous years on the carrying amount of one of its on-
line sales platforms relevant to a subsidiary to facilitate
the trading of merchandises between sellers and buyers
through the internet platform, which had been closed
down in previous year.

Platform 2

The Group closed down one of its on-line sales platforms
relevant to a subsidiary fo facilitate the trading of luxury
goods through internet platform in the previous year due
to (i) the unsatisfactory performance of the luxury goods
platform; and (ii) keen competition in the e-commerce
business. As a result of the closure of the luxury goods
platform, a full impairment of HK$1,715,000 on the carrying
amount of the luxury goods platform had been provided in
previous year.
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2 HHARERAEAEY -

F&1
AEERENFEERARMBARMEF
—ERRREHREB L& (ERERNFERE)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

On-line sales platforms (Continued)
Platform 3

The Directors engaged Ascent Partners to determine the
recoverable amount of this on-line sales platform relevant
fo business of e-commerce segment.

The fair value measurement is using Level 2 inputs which
are not using significant unobservable inputs and there
is no change in the fair value hierarchy as compared to
previous years.

The key assumptions for the relief-from-royalty method are
those regarding the discount rate, growth rate, royalty rate
and budgeted turnover during the budget period. The
Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the e-commerce segment. The
growth rate used in the budget do not exceed the long-
ferm average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the e-commerce segment
operate. The royalty rate is based on market information
specific fo the e-commerce segment. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
is 20.94% (2018: 21.09%). the royalty rate applied to the
royalty savings from owing the platform was 4.7% (2018:
4.7%) based on turnover, and cash flow beyond the five
years period is extrapolated using a zero growth rate (2018:
zero growth rate).

Pursuant to their valuation report dated 23 September
2019 (the "IA Valuation”), the recoverable amount of
this on-line sales platform as at 30 June 2019 was higher
than its carrying amount of HK$3,900,000. Accordingly, no
provision for impairment loss on this on-line sales platform
was considered necessary.

Concession rights on intellectual properties

As at 30 June 2019, the Concession rights on intellectual
properties represented (i) Le Petit Chef Series and
Marco Polo; (ii) Cocktail Factory; and (iii) Picxel with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$1,819,000
(2018:HK$2,558,000), HK$42,000 (2018:HK$54,000) and
HK$75,000 (2018: HK$2,375,000), respectively.

16.

ire WIS M
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HitBEEE »
WEHETFEW)

FE3
EEZEYATEUETHETFEHLSEH
BELHET A2 AKRESHE -

ATEIEDERS - MBALIE  LmE
REATABEHABE ARBEFEY
AFEBRLES T -

RRMBENRESZ 2 TERRAREHRANZ
BERE EREX CHENBEXLBERAGH -
AEBEZARRBEHISF 2 EEEHE
BERETFEHD B ER L Z B AT RN X E
FHRRIR K - FRE P PER 2RI A G
EFRB O BEBLEMEHERE KM
FEHREERE - FENEXTRETHBED
B2HEMHERGH - REEME KA
TERBEMERE SRR ZBHE

B i B TR AT SRR 2 BT % 5.20.94% (=
T\ 5 21.09%) AR BB &
T & B S B TR 2 SR B R R AT
(ZZ— )\ 47%)  AEMEZ AETE
PETHRERL (T —/\F  THEE) -

BREEEHA-ZT-NFAA-+=R2MH
BERE ((XAFEGE]D  ZBLEEFA
RZZE-NAFARNA=ZTRZAKREESESK
H BR [ {E£3,900,00078 7T« A 1t AR %
WLEEFBEHRERBRERE -

HEERZISTRERE

RZT—NENA=1H - MRERE ST
45 &} 45 (i)Le Petit Chef Series & Marco
Polo : (ii)Cocktail Factory : % (iiiyPicxel -
HEEFED AL A1,819,000%8 T (=%
— J\4% : 2,558,000% 7t) * 42,000/% 7T (=
Z — )\ 4 : 54,000/% 7) K& 75,000/ 7T (=
T — )\ : 2,375,000 7T) °
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Concession rights on intellectual properties
(Confinued)

Le Petit Chef Series and Dinner Time Story:
Marco Polo

The concession rights on intellectual properties (*IPs”),
namely Le Petit Chef Series ("Le Petit Chef”) and Dinner
Time Story: Marco Polo (*"Marco Polo”) (notes 35(a) and
35(b)). were granted by the original IPs" owner to /& &
EH = X LEHE AR AR, a subsidiary of the Group, for a
period ranging from 3 to 5 years. Pursuant to copyright
agreements dated 28 April 2017 and 23 June 2017
(collectively, the "Copyright Agreements”), respectively, the
Group were granted concession rights fo use Le Petit Chef
and Marco Polo in the Greater China Region, including but
not limited to the drawings, written works, story boards and
layouts, videos characters, videos games, video games
printed books, on-line publications and videos.

The Directors engaged Ascent Partners to determine
the recoverable amount of the IPs by using the with and
without method, which is based on the business value of
the Sense Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU as if
the IPs are used or without used. The Group prepared cash
flow projection for the IPs based on the grant period from 3
to 5 years. The key assumptions for the forecast are those
discount rate, growth rate, gross margin and turnover.

Pursuant to their valuation reports dated 23 September
2019, the recoverable amount of IPs used in the Sense
Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU as at 30 June
2019 was higher than its carrying amount. Accordingly, no
provision for impairment loss was considered necessary.

The key assumptions of the used in the calculation of the
recoverable amount of IPs are as follows:

16. Hit B EE =

AREREIBHEERE®

Le Petit Chef Series R i E# F -
Marco Polo
MBERE((MHBER]D (BDLe Petit Chef
Series ([ Le Petit Chef]) K &k 5 :
Marco Polo ([ Marco Polo J)) (Bt 5 35(a)
K 35(b)) 2 EARABEERA A
BYAEEZMBAR BEREHTRXLE
BERAR - HIRAIESF - RIEBHSD A
RIFE—tEFNAZ+NBRZZF—LFN
AZ+=B MRz (REmEnzEl) -
NEBERFTEEE AIRKRPEMESE
ﬁﬁ Le Petit Chef 2 Marco Polo » B1E 18 1R
REE  XFER WARHKR REFTE -
RABHEE, - RIBRERIEN R Z 4L - TR L RY)
AR HE o

EEZRVAFTENEBEREEEIETEA
BERAKEIEE  HER=BEER
& B 4 B M Strong Network 3R < 7 4 B8 {1
ZEEEANE MUONBEEFESER -
AEERB=ZRF 7 RHAGRE M ERE
ZIREREBTEA - TRz FEMB AR E -
ERE EMERKA -

REEAHAE-_ZT-AFAA-+=BZHE
BEWRE  =BEHEREE & E &Strong
Network IR & E £ BN FTA 2 MBEER =
T-NFRAZTHEZAKESESRER
E1E - FEuL - BAEEDRERIERE -

ATEMEBEEZAIREDSEMACEERS
Rl ul N

IPs used in IPs used in

the Sense the Strong

Media CGU Network CGU

=B &K Strong Network

REEEEN REEEEN

FRAZHBERE MAZAHRERE

Intangible asset premium mEERE 1% 1%
Discount rate RLIR & 15.36% 18.99%
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. HittEFEE =)

Concession rights on intellectual properties
(Confinued)

Cocktail Factory and Picxel

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group was further
granted rights to use another 2 IPs namely Cocktail Factory
and Picxel (together with Le Petit Chef and Marco Polo,
collectively the "IP Concession Rights”) from the original IPs’
owner at a consideration of HK$55,000 and HK$2,500,000,
respectively. Pursuant to license agreements dated 1 May
2018 and 10 April 2018, the Group was granted concession
rights to use Cocktail Factory and Picxel in the People’s
Republic of China.

The Directors were of the opinion that the IP Concession
Rights are considered to have a useful life, which are
reference to their corresponding concession period in
according with the Copyright Agreements or with reference
to similar IPs. The IP Concession Rights are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation.

No detailed impairment assessment on Cocktail Factory
was performed as the carrying amount of Cocktail Factory
is immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Directors considered that Picxel was no
longer to generate any income since September 2019
upon the expiry of the existing confract with its customers.
According, an impairment loss of HK$1,800,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year.

AREREIBHEERE®

Cocktail Factory & Picxel
REBEZE-ZT—N\FXA=ZTALFE K&
E—rERANBEEREE NEEERSN
7 T8 %0 3% = # Cocktail Factory & Picxel (&
[E Le Petit Chef & Marco Polo #:## [ J1# &
2] - R{EH 5455000 T
12,500,000 - RIEBRHE-_FT—N\F
FA—BR-ZZ—NFMNA+BZEERZ
NEBERFTIEEE  ATRPEARKRN
B { Ff Cocktail Factory & Picxel e

RIBIRE 2 E R AR E S MR
PUMBERE EFRA FBMERE ZFAL
ERENASBERFY - MBEE 2 FIFL
BRI R AR R AT E D AR

i 7 Cocktail Factory 2 BRI {8 ¥ 48 & BF
HmEME WA EK - B EE Cocktail
Factory #1775 40 R B 51 1d ©

Uboh BEER R Picxel REETF 2 HE
BHEREE - ZT-NFAAERTHBELE
YA e B RAFE  REFA IR R E
R (B k515 1,800,000 /% 7T,
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17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REE QT 2 fE2S
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$"000
FHExT FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost* BRAGTERIE LMD * 793 1,085
Due from an associate JRE Ui B 2 A R RIE - 2,306

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, inferest
free and repayable on demand, which was included in

FEd 2 AR R B LR RERE
REE ]Iaﬂ\i;z%&ﬁ@ﬁ%l& KR (Ff 5E

deposits and other receivables (note 23(b)). The amount 23()) cEZAEEREE_Z-—NERA
had been fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2019. =T HIEFEERSRIM -
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAEEER T EZ ML QT 2B
information of the Group’s associate that are not TEE R E AR
individually material:
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Share of the associate’s loss FEAGHE & A R AN FEEE
for the year (219) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEEREABE AR ZBEEE
Group's investments in the associate 793 1,085

* The investment cost represented 40% equity interest in a
private company (the “Associate”) established in the PRC,
which is principally engaged in the provision of advertising,
exhibition, designing, and IP development. The Associate
was acquired by the Group on 25 January 2018 through the
acquisition a subsidiary, Strong Network Infernational Limited
("Strong Network”) (note 35(b)). Upon the acquisition, the
Group did not take up ifs result during the period from 25
January 2018 to 30 June 2018 as it was immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.

Apart from the above, the Group acquired 25% equity
interests in Strong Network (note 35(b)) at a consideration
of HK$15,000,000 and treated as an associate of the
Company since 22 December 2017. Subsequently, the
Group further acquired 75% equity interests in Strong
Network on 25 January 2018 and which became a
subsidiary of the Company since then (note 35(b)). During
the period from 22 December 2017 to 25 January 2018, the
Group had taken up its result of approximately HK$176,000
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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. BB RGP R B AR 7 B9 — AL A 2 &) ([
gnal) E’]AO‘VJ]x’fE BENAEBRE
k@‘%ﬁii RE Rt RFABEHABERE-
REEFEBWE W J& X 7] Strong Network
International Limited ([ Strong Network J)
(Mi&E350)) R=TE—N\F—A=Z+HBK
BREENE - KRR ARBEDRIEE
HiFaPBRRMELTER  HAKER
:Ei*)\gfﬂ Z+HEBEZZT-N\FX
A=+HHMEARAFARELE -

e bt 35 5h - 7K £ B R Strong Network
25% 8% 1 (M 5£35(b) ) + £ & % 15,000,000
B o TE-_FT—tF+t-_A=-+-HR
BRAAFZHEE AT bR AEERZ
T-NF— A=+ A RA#E—FUWHESrong
Network #) 75% % # - 1 Strong Network
BUbp AR A FHE AR (HFE35)) -
T+t F+ZAZ+= Ei_::*/\i
—AZTHEBYHE AEESBEEED
176,000 et AR e Bk ©



18.

19.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZ—Z—NFNA=THILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AJtHEIRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
Unlisted investments, BT EMIELTRE
at cost - 13,000
- 13,000
The unlisted investments represented (i) 20% equity interest 3E_E TR E IR (i) Flowerfruit Limited K H Fi &
in Flowerfruit Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the AT (F 7 [ Flowerfruit £ 1) 2 20% i (K
“Flowerfruit Group”), which was acquired in year 2018 = Z — )\ BA3& & B 78 10,000,000 7 7t U
at an investment cost of HK$10,000,000; and (i) 10% §8) ¢ K (ii) Great Window Limited X i &
equity interest in Great Window Limited and its subsidiary A A (F71 [ Great Window [ ) 2 10% %
(collectively, the "Great Window Group”), which was T (R == — )\ LAZ & X 7 3,000,000 7%
acquired in year 2018 at an investment cost of HK3,000,000. T RZTE-NFXA=1TH NUE
As at 30 June 2018, the above unlisted investments with JE EiE & 2 BRE (& 13,000,000 7% 7T Jh i Ak
carrying amount of HK$13,000,000 were stated at cost less NEBRES R o RERANE BB 15 & %A
impairment. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 as detailed F 95 (B an4r & B 15 3R Mt 5 2.2(b) AT
in note 2.2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, ) - -RZT-NEFLtA-BZNAERAK
the above equity investments as at 1 July 2018 were re- KRERBFTHBAREBEERATEFAEME
classified as equity investments designated at fair value Wz BRARE (M1 WIEEEEZA
through other comprehensive income (note 19) and was FEEHNFE -
re-measured at their respective fair value.
EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 19. EERAFEFAHMER

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

WSz RARE
2019 2018
e —T-NE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTHET TET

Unlisted investments, at fair value
The Flowerfruit Group (note (a))
The Great Window Group (note (b))

FELEMERE  RAFE
Flowerfruit & & (i F (@)
Great Window 5 [ (&% (b)) = -
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

The movement for equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income

19. #&

ERQFEFAHMERE

sz RARE (=)

BERAFEFAEMEZERRZBAERE

=3

The The
Flowerfruit Great Window
Group Group Total
Flowerfruit Great Window
&5 58 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
At beginning of year REY] - - -
Reclassification of financial HemEERAHREE
assets from available-for- RESHOEEIET
sale investments to equity BAT ER AEAM
investments designated TEWE 2 REERE
at fair value through other
comprehensive income 10,000 3.000 13,000
Remeasurement at its fair value } HEATEET=
(note (a) and (b)) W2t (@) K (b)) - (556) (556)
At beginning of year (restated) REF (KL E5) 10,000 2,444 12,444
Less: Reclassification to financial W BEMOEERATF
assets at fair value through Bt AlBmz e
profit or loss (note (c)) &E (M () - (2,444) (2,444)
Less: Disposal B HEEIA (10,000) - (10,000)
At end of year RER - - -
Noftes: MtsE :
(a) As detailed in notes 2.2(b) and 18 to the consolidated (o) HAERE W ImEMEE2.2(b) K& 18 FraFil -

financial statements, upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Directors
have engaged Ascent Partners, an independent valuer,
to determine the fair value of the Flowerfurit Group as at
1 July 2018, Pursuant to the valuation report dated 23
September 2019 (the “Flowerfurit Valuation”), the fair value
of the Flowerfurit Group was RMB8,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,000,000) by using an income approach
and accordingly, no fair value changes was recognised at
the initial adoption of HKFRS 9. On 11 June 2019, the Group
entered into a sales and purchase agreement with Huang
Tao Tom ("Mr. Huang”), an independent third party, pursuant
to which, the Group disposed of the 20% equity interest in
the Flowerfruit Group to Mr. Huang at a consideration (the
“Flowerfruit Disposal Consideration”) of HK$10,000,000, with
no gain or loss on disposal.
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REME BN BEREEAFEORE  ESC
Z B2 38 {7 (B A 3 Tt 5T (8 LA 8 5E Flowerfurit
EER =T )\FLA—HZAFE " RE
BA-Z-AhFENE-t+=BAZHER
# ([ Flowerfuritf& {&1) - Flowerfurit & & £
RN ETE 2 A F{E A AR 8,800,000
7t (J8Z 7 410,000,0005% 7T)  #HR B R
RNE B BIREERF ORI BER
AFEESH - N_T—NhEXA+—A"
AN [E B — % 98 37 5 = 5 Huang Tao Tom
(THuangZ £ ) AT B & s - Bk
A EEE AR E ([ Flowerfurit it & ZFE K
f&]) 10,000,0007% 7t M Huang % 4 i &
Flowerfurit 82 B 7 20% % # - I # 7 4 H &
Z WSS -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes: (Confinued)

(b) As detailed in notes 2.2(b) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the
Directors have engaged B.I. Appraisal, an independent
valuer, to determine the fair value of the Great Window
Group as at 1 July 2018. Pursuant to the valuation report
dated 23 September 2019 (the “Great Window Valuation”),
the fair value of the Great Window Group was HK$2,444,000
by using the market comparable method. Accordingly, a
fair value loss of HK$556,000 was recognised at the initial
adoption of HKFRS 9 through the restatement of the opening
balance of the fair value reserve (non-recycling) as at 1 July
2018.

(¢) On 9 October 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Love-and-Faith Group Limited and
DA Capital Management Limited, independent third parties,
pursuant to which, the Group further acquired (the "Great
Window Acquisition”) 90% of the equity interest in the Great
Window Group at a cash consideration of HK$8,000,000.
The Directors consider that the Group’s investment in the
Great Window Group is temporary which is intended to be
disposed within 12 months after the completion of the Great
Window Acquisition. Consequently, the Group’s original 10%
equity interest in the Great Window Group was reclassified
to financial assets af fair value through profit or loss aft its
fair value of approximately HK$2,444,000 at the date of
reclassification.

On 25 March 2019, the Group further entered into a disposal
agreement with China Union Arts Holdings Limited, an
independent third party, pursuant to which, the Group
disposed of its 100% equity interest in the Great Window
Group at a consideration of (the "Great Window Disposal
Consideration”) HK$8,000,000 with a loss on disposal of
approximately HK$2,444,000.

The key assumptions used in the calculation of the fair
value of the Flowerfruit Group and the Great Window
Group as at 1 July 2018 are as follows:

Flowerfruit Group

Average growth rate in the budget period 53.35%
Terminal growth rate beyond the budget period 2.61%
Discount rate 18.55%
Great Window Group

Enterprise multiple 17.85 fimes

ire WIS M
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19. EEEQAFEFARMEE
sz RARE (=)

BRE : (8)

®)

©

R e VSRR M 2.2(0) R 18 ATl -
REMNEEMIEREERFEIRE  EEE
Z S8 & B AR A0 B R 5T ik LA 7E Great
WindowEBR ZZ—NF+tA—HZA¥F
B-REBHA-ZT—NFLA=-+=AZ
HERSE ([ Great Window (A& ) » Great
Window( B M5 Al B LB A H
2 AY{E /2,444,000 0 c Bt - RZF
—N\F+tA—B REXRKEEHBERE
HRFEIRKBBEY A TEREE (TAIE
) EAV) 5 R TR A T (BB 18 556,000 7 7T ©

RZZ—N\FTANE AEERBILE
= 73 Love-and-Faith Group Limited }2 DA
Capital Management Limited 5] 32 B &
W@ Bl AEEBRE-—SURERE
8,000,000 7 7T Y i Great Window £ & 2
90% P& # ([ Great Window W EEIE]) - &
=RA - NEERN Great Window & B 2 1%
BEBERRE  #7X Great Window It B =
BREKREIEAAANLE - At - AEER
Great Window & [# 7 R 10% % # 75 7 & 5
NEHBEEH S BEERATETAER
ZEMEE  HATENR2444,0008 7T ©

RZZE—hEZA-+HAB AE£EEE
—# 8 — & ¥ % =} China Union Arfs
Holdings Limited 7] 32 i & #3 & - %t -
KEELRE ([ Great Window i & £
TE X {8]) 8,000,000 7t it & H 1A Great
Window & & 7 100% % 4% - & 2 BB 4
52,444,000 7T ©

=T & Flowerfruit & E & Great Window &
R-ZE—N\FLtA—BZAFEMAZEE
BREEEFIMT -

Flowerfruit &£ &

FEEHRNZ FHEEX 53.35%
TEE R 2 omig R X 2.61%
BhIE = 18.55%
Great Window &

TEBH 17.851%
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20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

20. B ERRFI R ER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Loan receivables JE U B SRR 3K 115,655 108,062
Interest receivables JE U B BR R 1,592 1,028
Impairment WA (23,595) (20,000)
Net carrying amounts BREFE 93,652 89,090
Less: Current portion of loan and B B E R EFBERRZ
interest receivables B (85.595) (89.090)
Non-current portion of loan and JEWE SRR FERR 2
inferest receivables IEMENEL D 8,057 -

Loan and inferest receivables represented outfstanding
principal and interest arising from the money-lending
business of the Group. All of the loan receivables were
entered with contractual maturity within 6 months to 24
months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
loan and interest receivables in order fo minimise credit risk
by reviewing the borrowers’ financial positions.

Except for loans in the amount of HK$13,576,000 which are
intferest free, the loan receivables are interest-bearing af
rates mutually agreed between the contracting parties,
ranging from 8% to 12% per annum. As at 30 June 2019, all
loan receivables of the Group were unsecured.
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20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(Confinued)

The movement for impairment of loan and interest

receivables is as follows:

20. EWEREFERR @

U EFR RN BRI ZREZLBINT

2019 2018

2= =&

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAT

At beginning of year RET] 20,000 -
Remeasurement of the expected R E IR E S I 15 S 2R
credit loss at initial adoption of FORKEFNEEHNEE

HKFRS 9 (note 2.2) &8 (ff5r2.2) 2,605 -

At beginning of year (restated) REX) (KLEF) 22,605 -

Impairment loss recognised (note 6) B #ERIMEE B (izt6) 990 20,000

At end of year RER 23,595 20,000

The loan and interest receivables at the end of the
reporting period are analysed by the remaining period to

contractual maturity date as follows:

RIEHAR - BEE BBIE A AT B

ZEWERRMSERZATMT

| s
===
al 7+

2019 2018
—2-hEF —T-NF
HK$°000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Receivable: JE WK TE
Within 3 months “EAR 18,583 1,002
3 months to 1 year —“EBAE—%F 67,012 88,088
Over 1 year HBim—F 8,057 -
93,652 89,090
Less: Current portion of loan and B B E R RFEERRZ
interest receivables mEE D (85,595) (89.090)
Non-current portion of loan and FEE R R F B BR R 2
interest receivables ERBIE S 8,057 -
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20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(Confinued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
30 June 2019

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since inifial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
30 June 2018

The aging analysis of the loan and interest receivables
that are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

20. EWERRFI 2R @

BE-ZE—-hWEAXAA=1THLEE
BREEBMBREENEIFENRE
JEHIEEEESMIEAREEITER - e ¥
ﬁ‘*ﬁﬁuuiﬁiﬁﬁggiﬁEDE'M:.%J—LIZMWm izl
HEEBERETFHRRKI2MEARNTEEE
EBHEMHmE @ZE’H’LEJ%TE(]QTIH?EHW*
BEEE) -sta e AT FEEEIR N
ZERBmE umﬂﬁﬁﬁ%iii%ﬁ RHT
ﬂl‘ﬁi,ﬁﬂWE’\ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%%@ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ‘l‘ﬁ'ﬁ@ﬂéﬁé
B (2HEREEESE) -

NEREAH  AEEFERTANEE

RRER B VIR ERRAERES - RMEHZ
4@% FEBLBERBREAHEMIAE
ERNEORBRERTEERARERTAE
EMEORR  LEEEHEANHILER
ARELNMAESEERFER BB
ERAEEER -

BE-_Z- \FXAZ+HLFE

REBEEBGERE 39K ARME

TR ER) SR 1 2 B R A
R BRI AT -

2018

—N\F

HK$'000

FHET

Neither past due nor impaired B AR 18 B IR RO (E 89,090
Less than 1 month past due BE AR E A -
1 to 3 months past due BmEA = 3@ A -
Over 3 months past due BERFRB 3 A A -
89,090

Loan and interest receivables that were neither past
due nor impaired relate to 12 debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default and the Group has no
concentration of credit risk accordingly. Based on the
past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary as the
balance is considered fully recoverable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVENTORIES

At 30 June 2019, the Group’s inventories with carrying
amount of HK$161,000 (2018: HK$1,656,000) represented

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

21.

7E
RoE-NEAA=+E ALEEEES
161,000/ 7T (== — )\ 4 : 1,656,000% 7T)

merchandises for sales which were stated at the lower of ZIEERHEEEM  UKASAIZIFEM
cost or net realisable value. EHRRIEEFER -
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. B E 5 R
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$’'000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 HRK 15,059 25,335
Impairment (note 6) WA (M5t 6) (2.579) 99
12,480 25,236

The Group's terms on credit sales primarily range from 30 fo
180 days (2018: 30 to 180 days).

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade receivables relate to diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

REEZHHEBR -MRHBI0OKREI80RTEF
(ZZ—\F : 30RE180K) °

SREEBEMRABNEH EN LA
ERAEEZERESERTDEDBEFE
W MITEEAEERRES ZER - B
BHERRRTEE -
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EREZ IR =)

F#ﬁiﬁﬁﬂi BREZAHNREBERE) &
B2 RWE SRR (R EE) 2 Rk 1

An ageing analysis of the frade receivables (net of
provision) as at the end of the reporting period, based on

the invoice date net of loss allowance, is as follows: ™
2019 2018
—2-hEF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Current BN Ef 10,582 14,245
31 - 60 days 31 -60XK - 6,987
61 - 90 days 61 -90k% 737 3,881
91 - 180 days 91 -180k 1,161 123
12,480 25,236

HEMEREE ZRIREBREEZ I

The movement in the loss allowance for the impairment

of trade receivables during the reporting period are as e
follows:
2019 2018
e —2NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of year RET] 99 -
Remeasurement of the expected E’\éx/\%&iﬁﬂﬁ/’é B 7% ¥R 5 22 R
credit loss at initial adoption of FORKENEEHEE
HKFRS 9 (note 2.2) &8 (ffer2.2) 1,991 -
At beginning of year (restated) REX) (KLET) 2,090 -
Impairment loss recognised BRI EE R (i 6)
(note 6) 489 99
At end of year RER 2,579 99
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
30 June 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix fo measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZ—Z—NFNA=THILFE

22. BB Z R =

BE-Z-NFXA=tHLEE
REERBUBEREEREIRARE
REHE BB RAREERETRED T
AR ETRMIEEAE - BEEDENERE
BRUBREXN S @55 D EET 4 (8
ZInRES  EREL  BSERMTAL
PARAE PR A 7 B B AR B O (RFE AR )
AL EA 0 B BT B o st R R B R AN 4
R EESERAREABTESNEHBHE
BIE A RAREE R RS R
RAFER -

TXEFEREEERSHABAEEER
BEHRNERERRZEN

provision matrix:

As at 30 June 2019 R=ZZE-NAEXA=1+H

Neither past Past due Past due
due nor 1to3 3to 6 Over
impaired months months 6 months Total
ABHR bk pal
KRE 123f8A 3Z6f8A BiB6MEA @t
Expected creditlossrate  FEEIEEEIER 7.62% 23.31% 3291% 100%
Gross carrying amount REEE(TET)
(HK$'000) 12,056 1,364 443 1,196 15,059
Expected credit losses EBEEHE(TET)
(HK$'000) 919) (318) (146) (1.196) (2.579)
11,137 1,046 297 - 12,480
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
30 June 2018

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for an individually impaired trade
receivable of HK$99,000 with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$99,000.

The individually impaired trade receivable relates to a

22. ERE S

R (&)
BE-ZE—-NEXA=1tHLEE
RESBSTERNEIVENEE
Sk FE IR 5 B 2R R 18 7 L B A
£ 5 88 R AR 99,0004 7T « AR E
{499,000/ 7T °

B RERKEZEFERZOSNASHE

customer that was in default in principal payments. FBE@-
The ageing analysis of the frade receivables that are not W6 RIRE (15 18 5 sk B A8 R (E ) 2 FE UK
(neither individually nor collectively) considered to be BHRRZBRROMMAT -
impaired is as follows:
2018
—\F
HK$"000
FHET
Neither past due nor impaired *@Hﬂ&ﬂ%/‘mﬁ 14,245
Less than 1 month past due wmELR—EA 6,987
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=A 3,881
3 to 6 months past due BEA=ENEA 123
Over 6 months i< E A -
25,236

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relafe to customers that have a good frack record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the Directors were of
the opinion that no provision for impairment was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

23. EARE - HittBWRER
HingE

2019 2018

—E-hEF ZE-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHET THET

Prepayments TEfT RIA 879 801

Trade deposits B HEe 20,580 16,384
Deposits and other receivables R RH M EKRIE

(note (a)) (M 5E (a)) 22,258 27,251

Consideration receivables (note (b))  FEUA(E (K :E (b)) 15,000 -

Frozen amounts (note (c)) R 48 A (MR () = 39,156

Tax recoverable AI U [El ¢ T8 305 874

59,022 84,466

Notes: MsE

(@) Included in deposits and other receivables was an amount (@) RZZ—NFRA=1+B BRBEQRR
due from an associate of approximately HK$2,306,000 as at 15 #92,306,00058 70 (— & — hL & « &) B i
30 June 2018 (2019: Nil), details of which were stated in note A RhEMEWZRE  HEHNEETE
17 to the consolidated financial statements. |EMEE17 -

(b)  As detailed in notes 19(a) and (c) to the consolidated (b) HAERE I BHREME19(0) & (C) Frafit -
financial statements, amount represented the outstanding % X IA $E Flowerfurit H & E 1B (B & Great
balance of the Flowerfurit Disposal Consideration and the Window HEEZBREZ RKEEEHS  ER
Great Window Disposal Consideration which have not been “E-AENA=T B EREEN -
setftled as at 30 June 2019.

(©) As detailed in note 45 to the consolidated financial (©) HMEAMBIRRMTIASAFL &

statements, the balances of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,000,000) and US$20,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$156,000) (collectively the “Frozen
Amounts”) had been released during the year.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

5,000,000 3% 7T (#8557 4939,000,000% 7T)
% 20,0003 7T (185 74 47156,000%8 7T) (&
MR RIAD B NAFERERER -

BEALEEABYNERE - Lil&EHE
R eREETEEII N BB R D2 B
HEER -
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25.

B PR

—“NEFERAZTHLEFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24. R FEFAERZZEHME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
2019 2018
—E-NF — N\
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
Listed equity investments, ERAIRE - EmmERHE

at market value 31,621 40,995

The fair values of the equity investments were determined
based on the quoted market prices. The above equity
investments as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

%$&i§2@¥1§ﬁ$ﬁ%§‘ﬁ%1g$§gi°E@

—NERZZE-NFERA=TH" kit
szli?xé%&/‘*ﬁﬁ'ﬁ#fﬁ%fé AR TR
WARARAEEEEREAFEFABRZS
BMEE -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. RERREEEEEREE
PLEDGED DEPOSITS HIFR
2019 2018
—E-hF = — \F
HK$'000 HK$"000
FER FAET
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITAEER 24,587 43,046
Time deposits T HATF 3K - 310
24,587 43,356
Less: Pledged time deposits W RERRERIT REMEE
for securing banking AEmMERZ
and other credit facilities EHTF R - (310)
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEMBEEE 24,587 43,046

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$4,915,000 (2018:
approximately HK$5,535,000) in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible info other currencies. However, under the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitfed fo exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The banking and other credit facilities of the Group were
secured by the Group’s time deposits amounting fo
approximately HK$310,000 as at 30 June 2018 which have
been terminated during the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of tfrade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on payment due date, is as

follows:

ire WIS M
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26.

&+ & 5 AR K
HEA B 5 8RR 98 5 B R 9 BRI 31230
HZEBATMT -

2019 2018

—E—hE —ZET-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Current BNHR 11,355 10,293
31 - 60 days 31 - 60K 4,017 1,163
61 - 90 days 61 -90K 4,074 107
91 - 180 days 91 -180k 1,592 -
Over 180 days Bid 180K 545 10,521
21,583 22,084

27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED
AND ACCRUALS

27.

R RE - Bl RE
5

2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other payables H R FRIB 5,912 1,840
Deposits received Bk & 604 785
Accruals EsrER 6,160 8,552
Deferred revenue BEFEHA - 1,452

Provision for litigation and legal fee A ROE R B RRBE (T ()
(note (a)) 1,664 40,000
14,340 52,629

Note: B 5

(a) The Group was a defendant of a litigation in the U.S.
in respect of its e-commerce business through on-line
sales platforms since August 2012. Last year's balance of
approximately HK$40,000,000 represented the provision
for litigation and legal fee, which had been settled during
the year, details of which are stated in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Current year’s balance
of approximately HK$1,664,000 represented provision of
legal fee and claims on other products sold through the
e-commerce platforms.

Ofher payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and
normally settled within one year.

(@ AEBA-_ZT—-—FN\ARRKERN-EE
REBEPLLHEFRETETRHBED
Z#FEA B E N o /& 80#740,000,000% T
ZEFEHBRFBRREREMZEE AT
RARFEEFE - EFBEHNGE W BHREM
7145 - RBEK) 1,664,000 TT 2 AN R
AEWEBRETHBTAHERMERZ
FREREREZEE -

HipENFALEFERARE  BFR—
FRZANT -
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Normally, a full payment in advance is required from
e-commerce customers (the “e-Customers”) upon
placing orders. As at 30 June 2018, the deposits received
in advance of approximately HK$2,258,000 represented
deposits received from the e-Customers for merchandises
delivered by the Group subsequent to the end of the
reporting period. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15 as
detailed in note 2.2(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, the balance as at 1 July 2018 was re-classified
as contract liabilities (note 29).

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

28. JElIE S
EFRBzEP(EFEFP) —RAEER
RIZBEENR -RZE—N\FA=+AH "
% EFEF R 42,258,000/ T TE M 17
o AEEENREHRREREHEBEREX
RETEP -REMBEMHREERES
St (BUIR#R & B 78 3R R BT 7 2.2(c) A #F )
B RIE-N\FLA-RBZERTDENRD
BREMNAE (HEE29) -

29. & n'J ﬁ{ﬁ

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
Deposits received in advance from BEAEREFPKBMZIZE
customers (note (a)): (F3E ()
E-commerce and provision of online EFAEEMIEHE LIHEF A
sales platform 3,537 -
Media integrated marketing business  f£48 4R 4 & ¥ 257 -
Loyalty program (note (b)) B E (M (b)) 7.093 -
10,887 -
Note: B EE -

(a) The contract liabilities primarily relate to the consideration
received in advance from its e-Customers for merchandises
delivered by the Group subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and from the media integrated marketing
business.

(b) The value aftributable to the reward points of the loyalty
program as part of initial sales tfransaction is deferred to
unearned revenue, until such time as the customers redeem
their reward points.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(@ ANABEIRARAEERREHREKE
KrEmBEAEFEFRAKERSE
HEBRRNKERR

(b) FRERHERS Mo BMEE R
BiESZEE DEEERESKA BEE
EFHBEBES BRI -
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In previous year, the Group issued 2 convertible bonds in
August 2017 (the "August 2017 CB") and December 2017
(the "December 2017 CB"), respectively, with details as
follows:

The August 2017 CB

On 7 August 2017, the Company issued a zero coupon
redeemable convertible bond with nominal value
of HK$70,000,000 due in August 2020, comprising of
HK$40,000,000 (the “1st Tranche Lockup CB") and
HK$30,000,000 (the “2nd Tranche Lockup CB") as part of
the consideration for the Sense Acquisition (as defined
in note 35(a)). The 1st Tranche Lockup CB and the 2nd
Tranche Lockup CB are conditionally convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.138 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments in accordance with the terms of the August
2017 CB).

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.138 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
507,246,376 conversion shares will be allotted and issued,
representing 18.27% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company and approximately 15.45% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the conversion shares.

The 1st Tranche Lockup CB shall be convertible when (i)
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Sense
Media Group for the First Guarantee Period (as defined
in note 35(a)) is issued and the First Year Target Profit
(as defined in note 35(a)) is achieved; and (ii) if the First
Year Target Profit is not achieved, full payment of cash
compensation should be made fo the Company.

ire WIS M
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30. Wi

EEE AEESHNIR-_Z—EFNA(Z
E-—tFNATBREESR) R —tF
TZANZZ—tF+-ATBKRESD %
T4 E S - FIBT

—E-tENATERRES
R-EB—+tEN\A+H ADAIRTEME
/70,000,000 TR = =ZFF )\ A5
MWTEZATEEATRRES B eE
40,000,000 7T ([ — L 258 AT R E %))
12.30,000,000% ¢ ([ —#EE ] R &
%)t A= B U Es £ 8 (M 5 35(a) BT R
E)VMBANRE - B HBETRRES R
B~ f e AR E 5 T A R IR SRR
(B G ARIRAR AR5 0.138 58 T (TIRIE-E—+
ENATRBRESEXT ABE) @R AR
AR LB -

1R B G RIRRAL 17 0.138 B 7T (A F %)
5HE - & % 507,246,376 % ¥ 1% 1% 1 #% T A
Bz N 31T MERARFRACEHITRA
Z18.27% K AR M3 R BT R RN IERZ
RNARE FEITRAL15.45% -

5 — Y2 AR B A LA T R R R B
T 854 ¢ (i) 3 & B B AR ERRT (40P 32 35(ar)
FRE)HAZRERERACERERANE
Rk RIERE — 4 B A (0 £ 35(a) A
RE) R (i)E—F B IERFIRER
AAAREBENREHE -
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The August 2017 CB (Continued)

The 2nd Tranche Lockup CB shall be convertible when (i)
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Sense
Media Group for the Second Guarantee Period (as defined
in note 35(a)) is issued and the Second Year Target Profit
(as defined in note 35(a)) is achieved; and (ii) if the
Second Year Target Profit is not achieved, full payment of
the cash compensation should be made to the Company.

Pursuant fo the convertible bond instrument, the Company
has been granted a redemption right (the "Redemption
Right”) to redeem the 1st Tranche Lockup CB and the
2nd Tranche Lockup CB at any time before their maturity.
Based on a valuation performed by Ascent Partners, an
independent valuer, the Directors were of the opinion that
the fair value of the Redemption Right was not material to
the consolidated financial statements as at the date of
inception and at the end of the reporting period and no
recognition of the fair value of the Redemption Right was
made in the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of the liability component of the August
2017 CB was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The liability component
of the August 2017 CB is subsequently stated at amortised
cost until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the
bonds. The residual amount represented the conversion
option and was included in shareholders’ equity.

Imputed inferest expense on the August 2017 CB is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of 9.90% per annum.

During the year, the First Year Target Profit was achieved
and the 1st Tranche Lockup CB has been converted into
289,855,072 new ordinary shares of the Company on 14
September 2018.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The December 2017 CB

On 1 December 2017, the Company further issued a
convertible bond with nominal value of HK$100,000,000
carrying a coupon rate of 2.5% due in November 2020. The
December 2017 CB is convertible intfo ordinary shares of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.181 per
conversion share (subject fo adjustments in accordance
with the terms of the December 2017 CB).

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.181 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
552,486,187 conversion shares will be allotted and issued,
representing approximately 19.90% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company and approximately 16.60%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the conversion shares.

The fair value of the liability component of the December
2017 CB was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The liability component of
the December 2017 CB is subsequently stated at amortised
cost until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the
bonds. The residual amount represented the conversion
option and was included in shareholders’ equity.

Imputed interest expense on the December 2017 CB is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of 11.90% per annum.

ire WIS M
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30.

AR ESR =

—E-tLtE+-AUERES
RZTE—tF+=-A—H ARRE—FH
77 [ {& 7% 100,000,000 7T 1) 7] 4 i & % -
EEMERA25% HN_E-TF+— AEE -
ZE—tEF T ABRESFTIRVI SRR
EBERIRRRH 0181 BT (IR T —+F
TZAAMBREFNGRTARAR) BigA
PINNESTESo) a

1R B F IR 17 0.181 B T (A FHE%EE)
T H &% 552,486,187 B B 1 #5 T LA
Bl 31T MERARFRACETRA
#)19.90% R 48 Fo 3 K AT IR I IE R 2
RRAEEITRAL16.60%

—EtEF+ANBRRERZBERO R
AR TR & R AN AR A 25 2 35 A R &
He _T—tF+_RAARRESF 2 BE
I BRRIBBIERATIREENEFEEIRR
FHRER R - MRS R RMERE - T
FIABER M 5

ST BABRE S 86
SRR EIFIRE  EREFIE11.90%
B -
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 30. TR ES =)
The December 2017 CB (Continued) “E-tFEt+-AUERES @)
The August 2017 CB and the December 2017 CB have been —E—+FN\RABRKRESR T —+F
split into the liability and equity components as follows: TZARMBRREFE D ARBERERBS W
T
August 2017 CB December 2017 CB Total
“E-tENR “E-t%5t+=h
TaRES TRRES @it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“§-NE -I-\F -B-hE -I-/\F ZB-AE -I-)\%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEE  TEL | TER  TER  TER  TER

Nominal value of convertible BEIURRESEE

bonds issued 70,000 70,000 100,000 100,000 170,000 170,000
Equify component BET5 (12569)  (17259) | (19.252)  (21064)  (31821)  (38423)
Direct transaction costs atfrioutoble  BEHAEHERTHKA*

to the liability component* = - = (1,971 = (1,971)
Liability component BESS 57,431 52,741 80,748 76,865 138,179 129,606
Imputed inferest expense (note 7) EEMSRX (:7) 3,089 4,690 9.816 5,334 12,905 10,024
Inferest poid BHAIS - -0 QB0 (45)  (1L280)  (1.450)
Conversion of convertible bonds garakES (FrE32)

(nofe 32) (33.471) - - - @) -
Liability component af 30 June RAA=TAMEEDH 27,049 57,431 89,314 80,748 116,363 138,179
Less: Classified as current portion B BEARDES - - - - - -

Classified as non-current portion ERRERDHS 21,049 57,431 89,314 80,748 116,363 138,179
* The direct transaction costs arising from the issuance of the * BT —tF+_ARRESELE
December 2017 CB amounted to HK$2,500,000, of which, 22 5 A2,500,0008 7T - PRI H
HK$529,000 was attributed to the equity component and the FE(5529,0008 7T - M BB D EILEE N4
remaining balances of HK$1,971,000 was atfributed to the #:1,971,000 % 7T ©

liability component.
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31. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At 30 June 2019, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2018: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are
as follows:

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

31. EEHE

EEBEER
RIB-NAFAAZ+A AEEUERE
F 018 2 5] 2 SR P (1 2 P At 2 B OB T 7
BEAEMZARRETHARM(Z2—N
i) e

EEMREEE
ERNECHBEAEZZHWT :

Tax losses

HIEEE

HKS$'000

FHET

At 1 July 2017 RZZFE—tF+HF—H -
Deferred tax credited to consolidated FREFAGEBHERZELERE

statement of profit or loss during the year (FFEE10)

(note 10) 3,011
Af 1 July 2018 RZE—N\FLHA—H 3,011
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FAFFAREERER ZBELERIE

statement of profit or loss during the year (fF7E10)

(note 10) (20
At 30 June 2019 RZZE—NFA=1+H 2,991

The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax
assets not recognised calculated at deferred tax rates
in Hong Kong and the PRC at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%), and
25% (2018: 25%), respectively, on cumulative femporary
differences at the end of the reporting period, are as
follows:

BRBEPRZ ZFAEFER  BREEER
PR ZEERE DR R16.5% (T — )\ F
16.5%) 2 25% (—F — )\ : 256%) » st E A
SEARERZELERABEZ TR MHMT

2019 2018

—E2-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHEx FHT

Tax losses HIEEE 44,426 37,433
Accelerated depreciation MR ERTE

allowances 14 160

44,440 37,593
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31.

B PR

—“NEFERAZTHLEFE

DEFERRED TAX (continueq)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$266,161,000
(2018: approximately HK$225,419,000), which are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has
tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately HK$2,038,000
(2018: approximately HK$1,220,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some fime and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings affer 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremifted earnings that are subject o withholding taxes
of the subsidiaries in the PRC (the "PRC subsidiaries”). In
the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that the PRC
Subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of unremitted earnings from
the PRC Subsidiaries was amounting to approximately
HK$24,462,000 (2018: HK$15,109,000).
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RBERR AEERERELEBESD
E#266,161,0008 T (ZF— \F : 4
225,419,000/ 7T) @ MZFEEERHE
RIBHBFBRZ RARARRERBEN - A
S B 7R AR B EE AR 15 2R 5 48 49 2,038,000 8
TE (=% —/\¢ : i’ﬂ 220 0005%7%) H%EA—

ZEEER mﬁkﬁﬁé% Iéiukm
BEEZHBAREZ2E —BERH  TRA
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SR ECEARAIINTREETIRNK
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REAEEMBRIEEREVBIME IR E
ETHRBRERERMBE - REFENERH X
5% 10% - FEt - REBARZ SN H
NR B AR E —TENEFE-H—H
FEEEM R TR D IRA R S BATRINT

RZZE-AFARA=+THE #HERNRTELY
MEAR ((HEMELRDARERRMN (A
BRI E) T RE 1 H TR R SRR T IR
H-BERR PEMBIRANARERD
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes
iR
Authorised : BE
At beginning of year, ordinary — RE4] - SREE EL2
shares of HKS0.01 each Lahk

Atend of year, ordinary shares A A+ BREE001# T

of HK$0.01 each Lahk
Issued and fully paid: BRIRMZ:
At beginning of year, ordinary — AE4] - SREE0 EL2
shares of HKS0.01 each LiEk
Conversion of convertible BaaRES (i o)
bonds (note (a))

Atend of year, ordinary shares MR + BRREE0.01
of HK$0.01 each B ERR

(a) On 14 September 2018, the principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 of the 1st Tranche Lockup CB of
The August 2017 CB (note 30) was converted into
289,855,072 new ordinary shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.138 per share.

(@

32. ®AE

2018
—I-N\E

Number Nominal

of shares value

RiA&E AE

HK$ 000

T
10,000,000,000 100,000
10,000,000,000 100,000
2,776,215,424 27,162
2,776,215,424 27,762

RZE-N\FHLA+NHHE  ZFT—+
FNARKRES (H7E30) 2E—#t
R E AR & % 2 78 & ¥8 40,000,000
BT IRRRESR0.138E THER
BN 7E) 289,855,072 % i@ A% o

2019 F# | FHEEBERARATF
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33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current year are presenfed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 68
and 69 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Company includes
premium arising from the new issue of shares in the current
and prior years netted of share issue expenses.

Under Section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the special reserve and share premium
account is available for disfribution to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Arficles of Associatfion of
the Company which was in effect before the Change of
Domicile (defined as below) becoming effective on 20
August 2015 (Bermuda time) and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the special reserve and share
premium account unless, immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company shall be able fo pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the change of domicile of the Company from the Cayman
Islands fo Bermuda was approved by the shareholders.
The change of domicile of the Company was subsequently
completed on 21 August 2015 (the "Change of Domicile”).
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds
in the share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

The convertible bond equity reserve comprises the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus/Capital reserve

The capital reserve account of the Company includes
the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the group reorganisation
upon listing in July 2000 and the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the amount of approximately HK$44,756,000 standing fo
the credit of the share premium account of the Group was
cancelled and transferred to an account designated as
capital reserve account. Upon the Change of Domicile
of the Company, such account was to be rename as
“Contributed surplus accounts”.
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33. RESERVES (continued) 33. R

Contributed surplus/Capital reserve (Confinued)
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the capital reserve account of the Company is
distributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the distribution or
payment of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

After the Change of Domicile of the Company, under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus
account is available for distribution tfo shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Treasury share reserve/capital redemption
reserve

Balance represented an amount equivalent fo the par
value of the shares cancelled of HK$3,526,000 which
was fransferred from the retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve during the years ended 30 June 2012
and 2013, pursuant to Section 37 of the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Upon the Change of Domicile, such
account was to be renamed as “Treasury share reserve”
account.

Share options reserve

Share options reserve comprises the portion of grant
date fair value of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BERARR EARRHEE
REMBBERAEEE)  ARANE
REERT DR T AR RMSBR - ERE
BEIEH D IREIR R B 1% - AR EEH R
EEAREBEFEDLAEIMESE -

RABEMBE REARE-AN-F2
aE f‘i%ﬁl&ﬁ%ﬁﬁT{ﬁ’\/ﬁ%Hx% T
AL TIER - AR B ANBEIRFIR
BB Eﬁi@%’i%ﬁ(@ﬁ%ﬂw’ﬁtﬁﬁmﬁ :

- ARABEBHERNVEBEEEERE
FMEE =

- ARFEBEEMAEREELCRMNRES
SLOREBERAEBEITRAN LK
7 i (B AR A AN o

=

EERAREEXMEFE

RBE_T——_FR-Z-—=FA=+H
IFFEIEREREEHER M EED 3,526,000
BTHREFENEAERBEE R THKE
FlE SR mED)EI7 E - REMBRZ
ERBERFEEETRG AR BERARRE]

BRERE
BRgEREemRERARN SER MK
RN BFT KRR TARAER 2 R1T
ERRENE LBz A FERSY

AHHEREEMLRHS
A EREBHEERERRENRAMES

AHHERENDFEZEHRFHE - AR
BARA B MR 24 AR ST EUREIE -
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33.

34.

RESERVES (Continued)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
instruments designated as measured at FVOCI under HKFRS
9 that are held at the end of the reporting period with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserve account of the Company includes the
difference between the proceeds from the subscription
for 245 new shares of EPRO E-commerce Group Limited
("EPRO") by subscriber and the 49% carrying value of
EPRO and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EPRO Group”)
of approximately HK$8,344,000 recognised upon the
completion of the subscription. The Group’s equity interest
in EPRO was diluted from 100% to 51% and it is considered
as a deemed partial disposal of EPRO by the Group which
did noft result in any loss of control and was accounted for
as an equity fransaction (note 38).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 1
November 2016, adopted a new share option scheme (the
"New Share Option Scheme”) for the substitution of the Old
Share Option Scheme to issue up to 10% of the shares in
issue on the grant of options under the New Share Option
Scheme. There is no material difference between the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme and the Old Share
Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme should,
unless otherwise terminated or amended, remain in force
for ten years from 1 November 2016.

In order to give the Company the flexibility fo grant share
options to eligible participants under the New Share Option
Scheme as incentives and/or rewards for their contribution
to the Group, the Company refresh the scheme mandate
limit (the "Refreshed Mandate”) pursuant to a resolution
passed on 1T November 2017 which allowed the Company
to grant up to 277,621,542 share options pursuant to the
New Share Option Scheme, representing 10% of the issued
shares as af 1 November 2017.
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E-commerce Group Limited ([ EPRO ) #7
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

In previous year, 277,000,000 share options have been
granted under the New Share Option Scheme, the
movements of number of share options under the New

ire WIS M
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34. BRREE »
F4E [ - 277,000,000 15 B B HE B 2 57 B 18
R BIEL  ATARE-E—\EER-F
— RN A= B LE R AR 8 5 AR T )

Share Option Scheme during the years ended 30 June ZIEREEE 28
2018 and 2019 are as follows:
Number of share opfions
BREHE
Outstanding Granted  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Date of Exercisable  Exercise price
as af during asat during asat grant of period of of share
Name or category of participant 1July 2017 the year 30 June 2018 theyear 30June 2019 share options share options options*
RIB-tE RZZ-N% RZB-0E
th-8 YR = ABZtTH
SEEABINRED HATE  AEERY HATE  REEAN HATE RUBRERE  BRECGRY BRE2GRE
HKS per share
BRERT
Directors
gz
Mr. POON Man Sum - 25000000 25000000  (25000,000) - 12 February 12 August 2018 o 027
AR EE 2018 11 February 2020
(Resigned s on executive director “E-)\% it SIt3
of the Company with effect from “At+zA NATZHZ
11June 2019) “%-%
(BEARAHAEE EZB-NF ZAt-A
ART-RREER)
Mr. Al Kuiyu - 25000000 25,000,000 - 25000000 12February2018 12 August 2018 fo 027
EFiE ZE-\E 11 February 2020
ZRtZH ZEN\E
NA+ZRZ
ZAt-H
Employees - 80000000 80000000 (30,000,000 50,000,000 12February2018 12 August2018to 027
&I ZZ3-J\E 11 February 2020
;g “E-)\E
NA+ZRZ
ZAt+-8
Other participants - 147,000000 147,000,000 - 147000000 12February 2018 12 August 2018 fo 027
A gsE “Z-/\E 11 February 2020
ZRtzH ZE-)\E
NA+tZRZ
S X3
“At-H
- 277000000 277,000,000  (55,000,000) 222,000,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to - EREZITEE R T HARRBEITAR - st

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

ADFBAZ A L BT TR -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date on which these share options
were granted was HK$0.26 per share.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of share options granted on 12 February 2018 under
the New Share Option Scheme:

34. Bz &l (o)

AR N ERFEHZSERER A2

Wi ERER0.26/8TT

SHEIZ T O RT BIY

E-NF-A+=

RN ZBREZ D J?Eﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ AR

Directors and employees Others
ExRkER Hit
Exercise price HKS$0.27 # 7T HKS$0.27 % 7T
1B
Expected volatility 68.712% 68.712%
& HA R 1
Vesting date 12 August 2018 12 August 2018
5 & B —N\FNA+=ZH —N\EFENA+ZH
Expected life 2 years 2 years
TRHEASFHA 2% 24
Risk-free rate 1.287% 1.287%
[ <
Expected dividend yield Nil 4% Nil 4
T8 HAE] ¥ %
Exercise multiple Directors: 1.068 1.095
TR EE EE:1.068
Employee: 1.084
EE8 :1.084
The fair value of the 277,000,000 share options granted to RHEREFER_ZE-NE_A+=

the directors and employees, and other participants on 12
February 2018 under the New Share Option Scheme were
estimated at HK$0.02 and HK$0.033 per share respectively
using the Binomial Model. The expected voldtility used the
historical volatility of the stock price of the Company. Risk-
free rate represents the yields to maturity of respective
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at the valuation date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Group recognised the fotal expenses of approximately
HK$1,760,000 (2018: HK$5,691,000) during the year
ended 30 June 2019 in relation to share options granted
by the Company in which, as to (i) approximately
HK$236,000 (2018: HK$764,000) was included in the
directors’ remuneration; (ii) approximately HK$378,000
(2018: HK$1,222,000) was included in staff costs; (iii)
approximately HK$226,000 (2018: HK$731,000) was
included in marketing expenses; and (iv) HK$920,000 (2018:
approximately HK$2,974,000) was included in legal and
professional expenses.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme was 55,621,542 (2018: 621,542), representing
approximately 1.8% (2018: 0.02%) of the issued share
capital of the Company.

No options were issued/exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme during the year.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 June 2018

(a) Sense Acquisition
On 5 June 2017, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Sense Media Group
Holdings Limited ("Vendor A"), an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Company acquired
(the “Sense Acquisition”) (i) 100% equity interest
in Sense Media Group Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the "Sense Media Group”); and (i) the
outstanding loan (the “Sale Loan”) owing by the
Sense Media Group to Vendor A at a consideration
of HK$80,000,000, in which, (i) as to HK$10,000,000
was satisfied by cash; and (ii) the remaining balance
of HK$70,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of zero
coupon redeemable convertible bond (the "August
2017 CB") to Vendor A, details of the terms and
conditions are stated in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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34.

35.

BTS2
AEERBE-—E—AEAA=TEILE
ERAAREHOBRERRENZH
1,760,000/ 7t (=ZZ — A\ 4 : 5,691,000
#7T) - H R (1) 41236,0008 7T (Z T — N\
17640008 7T) BEAABEEBS : (i)
378,000/ 7T (=& — )\ : 1,222,000 7T)
it A B TR : (iii) #1226,0008 7T (— =
— A\ : 731,000 7) Bat A& Y« &
(v)920,000% 7T (= Z— )\ : 472,974,000
BB AR R EEER -

EARFEHRAE  REMBRES ST EST
B % 17 48 B2 55,621,642 % (=& — )\ 5 -
621,542  HER AR A B HITRALD
1.8%(ZZ—/\F : 0.02%) °

B0 R B RO RE T AN 4 [ AR B R B P o B
17/77f8 -

Wi B Bt /8 2 B

BE-Z-NFXA=1THLEE

(o) =ZBWEFR
RZZE—tEFARAB AQF
f1Sense Media Group Holdings
Limited (B HA] - REBILE=7)
RAIVEERE Bl ALRKE (=
BREEE]D) H=REEER QA
ERHEMBLAR Sl =ZBEES
) v100% R iE: K@) =B EEE
BERETAZABEBEER(HHEE
) X /80,000,000 % jt + H
(1)10,000,000 7% 7t LA & 1+ ¢ K (i)
# T 4 £:70,000,0008 LB BETE
REFELRTBEES (22 —tF
NARBREESD AETAXR A
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HEE30 °
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

(a) Sense Acquisition (Continued)

The Sense Media Group is principally engaged in the
operation of IP rights licensing and international IP
development, media integrated marketing business.
Vendor A had granted a profit guarantee, (the
"Sense Profit Guarantee”) to the Company pursuant
to which, the consolidated net profit after tax of the
Sense Media Group are not less than HK$8,000,000
(the “First Year Target Profit”) for the financial year
ended on 30 June 2018 (the “First Guarantee Period")
and HK$10,000,000 (the “Second Year Target Profit”)
for the financial year ended on 30 June 2019 (the
"Second Guarantee Period”), respectively.

Vendor A shall compensate the Company if there
is shortfall of the First Year Target Profit and the
Second Year Target Profit respectively by way of
cash compensation which represents (i) 5 times of
the shortfall of the First Year Target Profit (subject
to a cap of HK$40,000,000); and (i) 3 times of the
shortfall of the Second Year Target Profit (subject to
a cap of HK$30,000,000). The Sense Profit Guarantee
should be initially recognised as a derivative and
should be stated at its fair value at the end of each
reporting period. However, based on a valuation
performed by Ascent Partners, an independent
valuer, the fair value of the Profit Guarantee was not
material to the consolidated financial statements
and no recognition of the amount was made in the
consolidated financial statements. As af the date of
these consolidated financial statements, the First Year
Target Profit has been achieved.

The Sense Acquisition was completed on 7 August
2017.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (coninued) 35. Y BB B 2 8l @)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued) BE-ZE—N\EXA=+HLEE
(&)
(a) Sense Acquisition (Continued) (@) =ZBWEFE )
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities —EREMEER _ZE—+FE N\ A+H
of the Sense Media Group as at 7 August 2017, being (ZRKBEEEABE) 2 #AIE
the completion date of the Sense Acquisition were as ERBEZATFENT :
follows:
Carrying
amount of Fair value
identifiable  recognised on
assets and the Sense
liabilities Acquisition

ARANEE HR=BWEER
REEZREE BEZAFVE

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - HWE&&E 1,365 1,365
Other intangible assets (note 16) Hib R g E (Mik16) 1,056 1,786
Trade receivables FEWUE 5 BR R 865 865
Prepayments and other receivables &1 2 18 & H th & U 3018 3,698 3,698
Cash and bank balances e RBITHER 7.825 7.825
Trade payables JERE Z R (708) (708)
Accruals and other payables JEET B A K Hoth FE AT R IA 3.774) (3.774)
Due to a related party (note (i)) JEAT — 2 B T 7R (BT (i) (3.786) (3,786)
The Sale Loan HEEMX (8,511) (8,511)
Total identifiable net liabilities ARl e EFEER (1,240)
Assignment of the Sale Loan HREEENR 8,511
Total identifiable net assets at fair BRATESNEZTHBEE
value (excluding the Sale Loan) FEER(TBEHEER) 7.271
Goodwill (note 15) & (H3E15) 72,729
Total consideration RE 80,000
Consideration satisfied by: REUATAHREZ A :
- Cash —R& 10,000
- August 2017 CB (note 30) —ZE—tF/\ A8
&% (P51 30) 70,000
80,000
Nofte: D
@)  The amount is due to Mr. Wang He, a director of Sense () ZeERENEMHLE(CZBEES
Media Group Limited and certain of its subsidiaries, RABIREEFHBRRZES) 2
which is unsecured, interest free and repayable on FIE - AEEE - 2B BARENRE
demand. g o
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZT—NFNA=THIEFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

(a) Sense Acquisition (Continued)
The goodwill arising from the Sense Acquisition is
attributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Sense

35. KEEMI BB (#)
BE-—ZE—N\FEXNA=1THLEE
()
(a) = BWEBEE (&)
BB EENEA Y EENEBR
BRSO E A Y KRR
RIS -

BHE=REBERZHESRESNNN

Acquisition is as follows: A
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration ReRE 10,000
Cash and banks balances acquired P HE 2 38 & R BRI T 4 8 (7.825)
Net outflow of cash and cash AAREEHREREZ
equivalents included in cash flows RekRSEBEEERLFE
from investing activities 2,175
Following the completion of the Sense Acquisition, REBWEEETKE =BEESE

the Sense Media Group contributed HK$24,742,000
of consolidated revenue and HK$7,542,000 of
consolidated profit to the Group during the year
ended 30 June 2018.

Had the acquisition of the Sense Media Group been
taken place at the beginning of the financial year
ended 30 June 2018, the consolidated revenue
and consolidated loss of the Group would be
HK$309,086,000 and HK$90,515,000, respectively for
that financial year.

Details of the Sense Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 June 2017, 23
June 2017, 5 July 2017, 14 July 2017 and 7 August
2017 and the Company’s circular dated 18 July 2017.
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.EA%Z:l: ’_/\ﬁz/\ﬁ +E|JJ:¢
& B 7 5% & & B 24,742,000 7% I 27 47
B U A K 7,542,000 T 2 47 A m A o

HEE = EREERBEE_Z—N
FRA=ZTHLEMBREENEE K
SERZHBEFEE 2 WA RE
& 181§ 5 5l & 309,086,000% 7T
90,515,000/ 7T °

CREEEEZHBHR AR AH
BRZET—tFAREBE ZT—tF
NAZ+=8 - -ZE—+FtAHAHAB -
ZE—+tFELtATHBERZZE—tF
NAEtHZAERARBIRBHAZE
—+tFtA+NBZREK
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

(b) Strong Network Acquisition

On 20 October 2017, the Company entered
info a share subscription agreement with Strong
Network International Limited ("Strong Network”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which,
the Company subscribed (the "Strong Network
Subscription”) for 50 new shares, representing
25% equity interests of Strong Network at a cash
consideration of HK$15,000,000. The Strong Network
Subscription was completed on 22 December 2017.
Upon the completion, Strong Network became an
associate of the Company.

On 22 January 2018, the Company further entered
info a sale and purchase agreement with Reach
Keys Limited ("Vendor B"), pursuant to which,
the Company acquired (the "Strong Network
Acquisition”) the remaining 75% of equity interest
of Strong Network and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the "Strong Network Group”) at a consideration of
HK$60,000,000, in which, (i) as to HK$30,000,000
was satisfied by cash upon the completion; and
(i) the remaining of HK$30,000,000 is payable at
HK$15,000,000 each, upon the satisfactory of the
Strong Network Profit Guarantee (as defined below).

The Strong Network Group is principally engaged in
the operation of IP rights licensing and international
IP development, media integrated marketing,
distribution agency and trading of sports and related
products business.

Vendor B had granted a profit guarantee (the
"Strong Network Profit Guarantee”) to the Company,
pursuant fo which, the consolidated net profit after
tax of the Strong Network Group are not less than
HK$10,000,000 (the “Strong Network First Guarantee”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
and HK$15,000,000 (the “Strong Network Second
Guarantee”) for the financial year ending on 31
December 2019, respectively. Upon the completion of
the Strong Network Acquisition on 25 January 2018,
Strong Network became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Prior fo the Strong Network Acquisition, the Company
held 25% equity inferest in Strong Network which was
accounted for as interests in an associate. Upon the
completion of the Strong Network Acquisition the
previously held interest has been re-measured at
its fair value of HK$17,247,000 with a fair value gain
on previously held equity interest in an associate
of HK$2,070,000 recognised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

35. BB 8l 2
BE-ZE—-NEXA=1tHLEE

(&)

(b) Strong Network i f# % 7

RZZE-—ttHF+A-+RH AR
Al 8% 7 % = 7 Strong Network
International Limited ([ Strong
Network 1) iT Z R fh RE B & - &
it - A2 A BB £ K {8 15,000,000
BITRESORF KRG - HER
Strong Network 2 25% % # ([ Strong
Network R s =18 ) - Strong
Network RIEEHE R T —+ F
+TZAZFTZAEK -REME
Strong Network 5% & 4 A & 2 B & A
2o

RZE-NF—-—A=-+=ZH AR
7] B Reach Keys Limited ([ 5B )
ST VEERH B ARA
U 88 Strong Network & £ K & 2 7]
(% 78 Strong Network £ &) # T~ 2
75% F5 4 ([ Strong Network Yz 88 &
15 ]) - K18 A 60,000,0008 7T E &
(1)30,000,0003 7 B 1 52 B B LA 38 %
St R (i) £ T 30,000,0003% L8 7
# Ak Strong Network i Fl & 18 (F %
530 BEEX 3454 15,000,000 7 7T

Strong Network S Bl = 2 =462 A
BEERERBBENBEERS &
BaGaEH DHEREREEEH R
HEHRA A TS o

&7 BEKFAR AR ([Strong
Network i A #E 4R 1) - #& It » Strong
Network £ [ 8) 47 & & Bt 1% 4 71 5 B
RBEE_ZE—-—NF+=ZBR=+—H
1FE B B 5 7 254 10,000,000 7% 7t
(['Strong Network & {E 1R ]) kR &
ECT-NF+ZA=Z+—HIEMEK
& & 7 % 15,000,0005% 7t ([ Strong
Network £ — B #ER]) e R =ZF— N\
#F— A Z—+ F H 7% Strong Network
Ik 8% = 1E %% - Strong Network ¢ & 2
NAZEEWBAR -

7 Strong Network Y B8 = 35 5 - A&
‘A B £ B Strong Network #) 25% %
- BBEREARIMENRB SRR
1 7% ° 7 58 Ak Strong Network Y B8 ==
B AR EZRRERARTE
17,247,000 L E 7T = BB E
B A A iR #E 2 A B 1255 2,070,000
BILTERGEBmRER -
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

(b) Strong Network Acquisition (Continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the Strong Network Group as at 25 January 2018,
being the completion date of the Strong Network

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

35. BB 2 8 (=)
BE-_Z—N\FXA=1tHLEE
(#)
(b) Strong Network 4/ F 15 ()
Strong Network £ Bl =& — )\ & —
A =+ A (Strong Network U 8§ &
BERABE) ZAHIEEREBEBEZD
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Acquisition, were as follows: FEMAT :
Carrying Fair value
amount of  recognised on
identifiable the Strong
assets and Network
liabilities Acquisition
i Strong
Network
AREBEE Wigs=1R
REBEZEREE BRZAFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB Rz 2,168 2,168
Other intangible assets (note 16) Hihmp & E (MiE16) - 1,232
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 2,469 2,469
Interests in an associate N AN 1,205 1,205
Inventory FE 98 98
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR R 2,486 2.486
Prepayments and other receivables &1 2 18 & H th & U 3018 904 904
Tax recoverable CIRdEIR Rz 41 41
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 15,378 15,378
Trade payables FERE SRR (414) (414)
Deposits received in advance IR S (11,524) (11,524)
Total identifiable net assets at BRATESNEZTHBIEE
fair value FELTE 14,043
Goodwill (note 15) 2 (f5E15) 58,188
Total consideration BRE 72,231
Consideration satisfied by REUAT AR
- Cash —He 30,000
~ Fair value of previously held — 31T FTHF Strong Network
interest in the Strong Network SEERZ A TE
Group 17,247
- Fair value of contingent —# Strong Network i
consideration payable at HIB5ERK B ERES
the completion date of FARERTFE
the Strong Network Acquisition (Pt 3£ 36)
(note 36) 24,984
72,231
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (coninued) 35. Y BB B 2 8l @)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued) BE-ZE—N\EXA=+HLEE
(#)

(b) Strong Network Acquisition (Continued) (b) Strong Network 4/ F 15 ()
The goodwill arising from the Strong Network Strong Network Y 88 S IB AT EE 4 2 78
Acquisition is attributable to the future growth and BEEREBREEGHEMES Y
profitability expected to arise from the business KRR RAFIRE S -

combination.

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Strong A #Strong Network I i5 =18 2 3 &
Network Acquisition is as follows: MEBEBAMNMAT
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE 30,000
Cash and banks balances acquired P HE 2 38 & R BRI T 4 8 (15.378)
Net outflow of cash and cash AAREEDRERECHER
equivalents included in cash flows ReEBEEE RTFE
from investing activities 14,622
Following the completion of the Strong Network 7 Strong Network U & = 18 52 A% 1% -
Acquisition, the Strong Network Group contributed Strong Network S B R & ZE —F — )\
approximately HK$29,225,000 of consolidated ERA=ZTRHITEEAKRER S EL
revenue and approximately HK$5,296,000 of #4929,225,0008 T 2 & WA KL
consolidated profit to the Group during the year 5,296,000 78 7T 2 &R 6 S )

ended 30 June 2018.

Had the acquisition of the Strong Network Group fis Y2 B8 Strong Network £ E A # &= =
been taken place at the beginning of the financial T-NEFERNA=+H LB BFEEE
year ended 30 June 2018, the consolidated revenue £ AREBRZFBREEZEAWA
and consolidated loss of the Group would be R A EEE DR A317,247,000%
HK$317,247,000 and HK$89,310,000, respectively for 7T % 89,310,000 % 7T

that financial year.

Details of the Strong Network Acquisition were set out A B Strong Network iz & %18 ~ &

in the Company's announcements dated 20 October BHAARGHH AT —+F+A

2017 and 22 January 2018. “t+HEEZE-—NF—A-+=-HZ
D
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Year ended 30 June 2019 &#E =%
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36. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

As detailed in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, as part of the sales and purchase agreement
(the “Strong Network S&P"), contingent consideration is
payable in two franches of HK$15,000,000 each, which is
dependent on the achievement of the Strong Network First
Guarantee and the Strong Network Second Guarantee
subsequent to the Strong Network Acquisition. In the event
that any of the Strong Network Group’s consolidated
profit after tax for the financial years ended/ending 31
December 2018 and 2019 are less than HK$10,000,000,
and HK$15,000,000 respectively, the Company is relieved
from its obligation for payment of the two tranches of the
contfingent consideration payable.

The Directors engaged Ascent Partners to determine the
fair value of the contingent consideration payable at
the initial date and as at 30 June 2018. Pursuant to their
valuation report dated 14 September 2018 (the “"Contingent
Consideration Payable Valuation”), the fair value of the
contfingent consideration payable as at the initial date
and at 30 June 2018 was approximately RMB20,242,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,984,000)
and RMB20,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,870,000) respectively, which was determined by
using an income approach. The contingent consideration
payable is required to re-measure at its fair value at each
of the reporting period. Accordingly, fair value changes
of approximately HK$886,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year
ended 30 June 2018.

Since the Strong Network First Guarantee was defaulted
for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was
relieved from its obligation for payment of the contfingent
consideration payable. Pursuant to the Strong Network S&P,
the Directors determined the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable had fair value changes of
approximately HK$335,000 as at 31 December 2018 which
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year ended 30 June 2019. Upon the default
of the Strong Network First Guarantee, the whole balance
of the contingent consideration payable of HK$26,205,000
was written back to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year end 30 June 2019.
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36.

B AKE

WAER A B IS R M s 35(b) Pt - A
E & % ([Strong Network B E i ) 2 —
o - sk AR E LA #315,000,0007%8 7T © 5
283 F LA+ - BUR 7 Strong Network U &
=% 15 1% Strong Network & & #£ & & Strong
Network 88 Z E{E R 2 ZEAK B - MR EZE
—E-NEFERZFE-AF+ZA=+—8H
1F B B 4F JE Strong Network £ & 2 (T i 47
& B #1805 7 9 BI{X 5 10,000,000 5% 7T &
15 000,000 7T + AIJZ A &) 3 R HA 8 1+ sk 74

B2 EEGERER -

EEZBUTFHEREERNRAREBRY]
FHAER-ZZE-NERA=Z+BZRAYF
B-REEEHIHNA-Z-NFAATHT
BzhESRS ((RAKAREGRED @ BN
LARARERNTERER=_F—/\NFXA
=t RZAFED KR AR 20,242,000
7T (F %5 R 4924,984,000%8 7t) M AR
20,700,000 7T (185 5+ 49 25,870,000/87T) -
Ty R AEEE - BN HARBAZER
EREHE A TESEHTE - Bt - BE

E-NERA=ZTHLFE REaER
%ﬁﬁﬂ N {EZE%)886,000/8 7T °

B 7 Strong Network A E (R R B Z = F
—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFEEELN A&
EHEMNIKAREZXNEEHERRE - B
#& Strong Network E E i - EEEER =
E-N\F+ZA=ZFT—HZEMNIARER
FEZ A FEEE43350008 7T HRE
—E-NEFERAZTHLEFEZREBR
KIWFER ° 7 Strong NeTwork%il%‘%L%’ﬂ
&« R SUAARIE 2 & S0 45 #2 26,205,000 7
TIhREZE =T — j'ldi/\ﬁ +HIEFEZ
FeaBEmKRER -
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36. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 36. FE{tSHARKE @)

(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Af beginning of year RFA) 25,870
Initial recognition (note 35(b)) R (M 51 35(0)) - 24,984
Fair value loss on contingent BN AREBEz AT EEE
consideration payable - 886
Less: Written back of provision of A B EM AR ERE
contingent consideration (MF5ES)
payable (note 5) 25,870 -
At end of year RER - 25,870
Less: Current portion of contingent W ENSARBZRBHD
consideration payable - (13.156)
Non-current portion of contingent ERSAREZIERED B
consideration payable - 12,714

Significant unobservable valuation inputs used in the
Contingent Consideration Payable Valuations to determine
the fair value of contingent consideration payable are as

follows:

At initial date

Projected profit affer tax of HK$10,782,000 to
Strong Network, under normal situation HK$15,500,000

Discount rate 3.95%

Discount for non-performance risk 19%

At 30 June 2018

Projected profit affer tax of

Strong Network, under normal situation

Discount rate
Discount for non-performance risk

HK$10,189,000 to
HK$15,188,000

3.48%
19%

S ARB S ET R AT B RAR
EBEXTEFE2EXNTABEGER ABUE

mF -

R¥ZBE#

RIERE BT Strong
Network 2 T8 5t B i
1855

BEIR X

TEITRRITE

R=B-NEXRAZ

RIEEER T Strong
Network 2 T8 5T B¢
1855 F

BRI

TEITRB T =

10,782,000/ L%
15,500,0007% 7¢

3.95%
19%

+H

10,189,000 £ &
15,188,000 7T

3.48%
19%
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 25 March 2019, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with DL Family Office Limited, an
independent third party, pursuant to which, the Company
disposed (the "Rainbow Disposal”) of 100% equity interest
in Rainbow Easy Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, at a
cash consideration of HK$40,000.

Details of the Rainbow Disposal as at 20 March 2019 are as

37.HE—HEMELE

RZE—NAF=ZA=Z+AHB  AQRE—F
¥ 37 % = 75 DL Family Office Limited 7] iZ
BE W& i AR E IR $ A {E40,000
BILTHERRARMNBAREEERAAZ
100% R (&) F B ER1E]) ©

BAFHEFER - T-NAF=A-+HZHF

follows: BEEIIOT
HK$’000
FHET
Cash balance W& MR 1
Prepayment and deposits BRFIERZS 831
Bank overdraft RITHEX ®3)
Net assets disposed of: BREEESFE: 829
Less: Consideration o RE 40
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (note 6) B A R RSB (M 56) (789)
Satisfied by: AR AR AT -
Cash RE 40

An analysis of the net inflow of the cash and cash
equivalent in respect of the Rainbow Disposal is as follows:

FHEFHEER R RREEERAZ
MAERBOMEIN AT

HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReRE 40
Cash balance and bank overdraft disposed of At E R e BB RIRTES 2
Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents BREFLEEE 2 RELECEE
in respect of the Rainbow Disposal
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38. DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTEREST

IN SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 March 2017, the Group enfered into a subscription
agreement (the "Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Che
Xiaofei (the “Subscriber”) pursuant to which, the Subscriber
subscribed (the "Subscription”) for 245 new shares of EPRO
E-commerce Group Limited ("EPRO"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at a cash consideration of
HK$20,000,000.

Upon the completion of the Subscription on 1 August 2017,
the Group’s equity interest in EPRO was diluted from 100% to
51%; and therefore, it was considered as a deemed partial
disposal of EPRO by the Group.

Since the deemed partial disposal of EPRO did not result in
any loss of control, such fransaction was accounted for as
an equity fransaction and the difference between (i) the
proceeds from the subscription and (i) the 49% carrying
value of EPRO and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EPRO
Group”), of approximately HK$8,344,000 is recognised in
other reserve of the Group.

At 1 August 2017, being the completion date of the
deemed partial disposal of EPRO, the net assets value
of EPRO and its subsidiaries and related loss on deemed
partial disposal of EPRO were calculated as follows:

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

38. RIFLEMBE AR #E=

R-E—+tF=ZA=+—8 AEBEEHEEE
Sk ([READ T RERE (RERE]
UL - 5R8E A B R 245 8% EPRO Excommerce
Group Limited ([EPRO * BA RG22 E W
BAR) @M ((REEE]) BHEaREAR
20,000,000/ 7T °

RZZ—tFN\A-HEKRBEFERER A
EE B ZEPROBE A 100% # B =51%
AR R AN S EAR A H & EPRO MY ER 0 4 2 ©

HRRIELEEPROMALO RS F S EH
REBREEMEHRE BRI S IE#E
w2 B - (i) 3B 8B P75 BROA E (i)
EPRO F H P8 A B (417 & [EPRO & E ]) &Y
49% e &5 19 iR [ (B 2 3] 89 2= %8 47 8,344,000
BILERAEE 2 KM REEHENER -

NZZ—tF/\A— B (EMR{EHEEPROK
a3 s 2 5eAk B ER) - EPRO K EL Y & A ]
ZEBEFENRRFELEEPROM A D # a5
ZHEBBEZFENT

HK$'000
FAT
Net assets value of EPRO and its subsidiaries EPROKEMB AR 2 EEFE 57,846
Portion attributable to the non-controlling interests of ~ EPRO & FE#7 5 47 25 FE 45 265
EPRO 28,344
Less: Cash consideration received B B e RE (20,000)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of EPRO RAEH S EPRO M ER D #E 2s 2 B 18 8,344
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As detailed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has material non-controlling interests

39. BAEAFERER 2B
R ZHE QT
BN A BERAN 38 ATEE - A ER
SRR E 5 15 14 R EPROTE A B A 342

in EPRO upon the completion of deemed partial disposal,

details of which is as follows:

B as - SEEESIMT -

2019 2018
—E-NF ZZT—)\F
Percentage of equity inferest held HIEERERFEZ
by non-controlling interests: fRER D
EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited EPRO E-Commerce Group
and its subsidiaries Limited X E Kff &~ &) 49% 49%
2019 2018
—E-hF =T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Year ended 30 June 2019/ HEZ-_ZT—- NG A=+AH
Period from 1 August 2017 (date of HEFEE/BZT—tF
deemed partial disposal) to 30 June NA—BEERHLHEBE)
2018 allocated to non-controlling 2T N\FAA=THEHE
interests DELE IR E RS
The EPRO Group EPRO £ (12,186) (12,456)
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39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 39. HEEXRFERER 2B 2
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS wmEZMB 28 @
(Continued)
The following tables illustrate summarised financial TRIREPROKE 2 IS E R E - AT
information of the EPRO Group. The amounts disclosed are B ATETMARMESY -

before any inter-company eliminations:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Year ended 30 June 2019/ HE-_ZT—-AFA=1H
Period from 1 August 2017 (date of LEE BT —tF
deemed partial disposal) to NA—B GRIEH HERE)
30 June 2018 E-ET-)\FAXAA=+HHME
Revenue WA 107,143 216,239
Total expenses BRI (131,587) (241,666)
Loss for the year/period REE/KNEPEEE (24.444) (25,427)
Total comprehensive income for the REE/AHHEERESE%E
year/period (375) 7
(24.819) (25,420)
At 30 June HANA=+H
Current assets MEVEE 35,845 94,858
Non-current assets FERBEE 4,343 4,411
Current liabilities mENAE (32,582) (66,844)
Total net assets BEFEERE 7,606 32,425
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

40.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

GERERERMEE

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Such leases
are negofiated for the terms ranging from one to three

years.

At 30 June 2019, the Group had fotal future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

Changes in liabilities arising from financing RMEEIHELEEET
activities
Convertible
bonds
AIHARE S
HK$'000
FAET
Af 1 July 2017 RZE—tFtH—H -
Issue of the December 2017 CB BT+ F T AARRKRES 100,000
Less: Direct transaction costs B BEER S (2,500)
Changes from financing cash flows RKEMEREREZE 97,500
Issue of the August 2017 CB as part of the BT Tt FN\AARKRESER
consideration for acquisition of subsidiary WEHB AR 2B RE 70,000
Equity component EmH D (37,894)
Interest expense MEFRZ 10,024
Interest paid ERHE (1,451)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZE—N\FA=+H
EZF-N\FtHA—AH 138,179
Interest expense FERL 12,905
Interest paid ERHE (1,250)
Conversion of convertible bonds HBAIRRE S (33.471)
At 30 June 2019 RZZT—NFARA=+H 116,363
e —
41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. REHH=ZH

FEERBEEANTHEARETHAE
XLBTIES Kz MERERNF—

E e

RZZB-AFRA=1TH BETAHHEEL
B ARBARATFHIN 2 RE&
RENES@ENT

2019 2018

—E-hF ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FET

Within one year —F RN 1,941 6,685
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive FEoEZFRF (REERWMSE) 1,538 8,016
3,479 14,701
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 41 above, the Group had the following capital
commitment at the end of the reporting period:

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

42.

BEARERIE
B LB EEAT T 2 (8 BT EANES) - &
SRR IREE THARALR

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EETA - BEREE
Acquisition of shares B B 1 60,000,000 -

On 14 June 2019, the Company entered into an agreement
with the vendor, an independent third party, pursuant to
which, the Company conditionally agreed to acquire (the
"S-Grill Acquisition”), and the vendor conditionally agreed
to sell, 100% equity inferest in S-Grill Management Limited at
a consideration of HK$60,000,000. As at the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the S-Grill Acquisition
has not been completed.

S-Grill Management Limited and its subsidiaries’ principal
business is a FINTECH company provides solution for
insurance sector in the PRC: including the provision of (i)
innovative management and exhibition tools or insurance
institutions; (i) management tools and services for all
types of large fleets; and (jii) integrated vehicle services for
private car owners.

Further details of the S-Grill Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 14 June 2019 and 2
July 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for those detailed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2019 and
2018.

43.

RZZE—AFARATHEE  KRARIEETE
=RBEAL MR Bl ARAFEIK
HREWE - &S A GERE B ESGril
Management Limited 2z 100% A& # (['S-Grill
WiE=18]) - {8 A60,000,000/8 7T ° %
ZHREVBmER B - S-Gril U F 18 R
TR e

S-Grill Management Limited & £ Hff & 2 7
ZEBEBTDRPBERBESRUERTER
ZEBMBHE AR BIE () RIRBEEREA
FEEBERBRIA (i) ASERREHKIEMH
BRI AR R(i)ALRE FRUEST
B BRI o

SCrilBER 2 E—THBHANREARA A
HRAZZ-NFEFRATHEER-Z-NFLt
RZBzR&E-

HAAE
BEGAMBREN A FERESN  NF
—NERZF-N\FAXASHE  ARER
BEMEARARLM -

2019 4 | FHEEERAERAT

211



Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements
e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 44. BEAELXH RER
BALANCES

The Group had the following transactions with related REBRFANEBAEATIIIATRS
parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the AEEFZEEBRABZBS :
Group:
2019 2018
—E-NF ZZT—)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

Total employee benefits paid to key MEZEBABRN

management personnel ZBREBEREF 4,579 5,550
Further details of directors” emoluments are included in FHEEME 2B ENGEE M mER W
notfe 8 to the consolidated financial statements. L8 e
The number of key management personnel whose benefit BANFTISHE s FEETBASHANT

fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAR
2019 2018
=B-nE T )\F
Nil fo HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 10 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7L £ 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7 2 2,000,000 /& 7T = 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T = 2,500,000 7T o -
12 10
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

45. LITIGATION

On 16 August 2012, the plaintiff (the "Plaintiff”), Klipsch
Group, Inc., filed a suit in the federal district court (the
"Court”) in the United States (the "U.S.”) against certain
defendants, including one of the on-line sales platforms (the
"Subject Domain”) of the Group, in respect of (i) frademark
counterfeiting; (ii) frademark infringement; and (iii) false
designation of origin (the ‘“Litigation”). The Plaintiff claimed
that certain products (the “Klipsch-Branded Items”)
were registered by them in the U.S. and that infringing
Klipsch-Branded ltems had been sold to customers in the
U.S. via the Subject Domain. The Plaintiff sought damages,
attorneys’ fees and sanctions. Hence, the Plaintiff instructed
PayPal to freeze US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,600,000) (the "Frozen Amount”) from the Group'’s
PayPal account on 27 August 2012,

On 21 September 2012, the Group filed sales documents
with the Court indicating that the sales amount (the
“Infringing Sales Amount”) of the infringing Klipsch-Branded
I[tfems intfo the U.S. amounted fo less than US$700. The
Court considered that the Frozen Amount was excessive
and accordingly, the Court entered an order reducing the
Frozen Amount from US$2,000,000 to US$20,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$156,000) on 11 October 2012. The
Plaintiff asserted in December 2012 that the Subject
Domain continued to sell additional Klipsch-Branded ltems.
The Group filed additional sales documents establishing
that the revenues derived from sales into the U.S. of the
additional Klipsch-Branded Iltems were less than US$125.

On 3 December 2013 the Plaintiff filed an amended
complaint naming EPRO E-commerce Limited ("EPRO
EComm”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that
operates the Subject Domain as a defendant in place of
the Subject Domain, and naming as fictitious entities other
domains operated by EPRO EComm.

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as to the
United States laws on 12 August 2014 that the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York (the
"District Court”) entered an order temporarily restraining
the use of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,000,000) (the "Restrained Sum”) in the bank
accounts and other financial accounts of EPRO EComm (in
addition to the Frozen Amount of US$20,000 (equivalent fo
approximately HK$156,000)). A hearing regarding the asset
restraining order was completed on 11 February 2015 (New
York time).

ire WIS M

Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

m
i)
g B>

RZZE—Z—FN\A+B  R&EKlipsch
Group, Inc. ([RED SO BEZREBE : ()&
BEE: RINEBREEREMEEFNES
FE ([ BBREER (DERDHET
WE(REAEEEF—EAREHEETE ([
EAZME]) RRFA(TFR]) - REERE -
®E B M E T E @ ([Klipseh dn i &
@) fiE#EKipsch R ERD B BRE
AZPBEBEFERZER - Bt BRESK
BERE 2MBEHIHE Bt RERZ
T —ZF )\ A =+t BIERPayPal R & 7
&% [E PayPal 8% F 2,000,000 % 7T (M Z 14
15,600,0008 7T) ([R&EREE]) °

A

RZE—=—FhA=+—8 AEEMZER
B E S - BEEAERZ E#Klipsch
mIEEMZHEEE (REHEE]) T2700
ETL AR ERBIRECHEEBBS  Hit -
RZE—ZF+A+—B ZRESHBR
% % %8 /3 2,000,000 2 7T iR 4 2= 20,000 & 7T
(FHZER#156,000/8TT) - RER=ZZT—=
F+Z AR E A2 B4 S I
Klipsch RIS E MR - REBEEIBEREINEEX
- BEH T EB 25 I Klipsch & hg E
EEZWRATRI2ZET -

RZZE-—=ZF+ZA=0 " RERTEER]
B BARBZ2EMBARZEETH
BERRA ([ZEEFRHBK) (HEERS
AZHE) BRWEAN  ARBREA 2@ -
THSEEFHBAEEZLMBEZERE

wERE-

ARBARZZB-—MENA+ - HEEXER
RIBZEREREHN  XEANNERRE
AR ([REDER]) BB w S RRES
#120,0003€ 7T (FHZ X 47156,0008 7T) 2
S MERREIEAZEEFEBRITER
Ko KL b B 75 # 18 B P 95,000,000 % 7T (48
5574 #739,000,00078 7T) B9 5K I8 ([ 254 &
) AHBEREBCZRAR-Z—HF
ZR+—H @ ORRE) K -
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45. LITIGATION (Continued)

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as to the
United States laws on 3 November 2015, the District Court
entered an order to reduce the Restrained Sum from
US$5,000,000 (equivalent fo approximately HK$39,000,000)
to US$25,000 (equivalent fo approximately HK$195,000). The
District Court has also made an order for EPRO EComm fo
pay for reasonable costs and fees incurred by the Plaintiff
during certain legal process relating fo the above matter.
However, the Company was subsequently informed by its
legal adviser as to the United States laws on 4 November
2015 that the District Court had granted an application to
delay the effectiveness of the reduction of the Restrained
Sum.

Another hearing was held on 10 November 2015 (New York
fime), on which the District Court decided to continue to
temporarily restrain the use of the Restrained Sum. On 30
September 2016 (New York time) the District Court entered
an order assessing costs and fees against EPRO EComm in
the amount of US$2,681,406.45 and retaining the Restrained
Sum of US$5,000,000 (the "30 September 2016 order”). On
26 October 2016 (New York time), EPRO EComm filed a
Notice of Appeal against the 30 September 2016 order. The
parties completed appellate submissions and the United
States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit held oral
argument concerning the appeal on 26 October 2017 (New
York time).

On 25 January 2018 (New York time), the United States
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit issued an opinion
affirming the 30 September 2016 Order. On 8 February 2018
(New York time), EPRO EComm filed a motion for rehearing
en banc with the United States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit to reconsider a decision and order of a
panel of the court affirming the 30 September 2016 Order.
On 20 March 2018 (New York time), the United States Court
of Appeals issued the mandate and affirmed the district
court’'s order imposing sanctions. On 12 September 2018
(New York time), the District Court has made an order
that the Plaintiff may obtain disbursement in the sum of
US$2,681,406.45 from the Restrained Sum at the bank and
the bank shall continue to restrain the remainder of the
Restrained Sum pending further order of the District Court.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

45,

Hi/NE )
R-BE—FfF+—A=H AAFEEEEH
EERAFEZARBEBRA  REAREMHD

< X5 % i 5,000,000 %% T (HHE R L
39,000,0007% 7T) i 4> 2= 25,000 % 7T (1%
MR#9195,000587T) - @A B RMhE <

EETEBAXNREERALEEEZ
ETEREBFPABRZAERARER -
BEENR-_Z—RAF+—AWA  KARFAE
HEBZRITEZERBERBAN  REER
HABS G SRS —FRRERZRE -

S—BERAR-ZE—REF+—A+8 @Y

) 2297 - Eﬂéxiﬁmﬁmﬁu‘iﬁs P PR il 52
AEEslesE R-ZE—X"FNLA=TAH (4

HEE) &D@ﬂﬁﬁﬁf we I EHER
FRITEE 15 2,681,406.45 E TR AN | B
ﬁﬁWSU%%—x‘iﬁ%u@%ﬁaooo,oooiﬁ(F:
E-REAA=+EGZ)) - T—NE
+AZ+/"B (@HEFRE) %%T FHEB
H_Z—RXFEALAZTHSSRILFR
Ao HEADTERIZRZ LT MEBEL L
FERE _WEBHECR-_T—t&1+A
Z+NA (MHESR) iz LT O R -

RZZE—NF—-—AZ+EHB (BOERE) -
EEBA EFEFESF _WRBHERERE
R BRZIE-A"FNLA=ZtTAGS K=
TZ-NFZANB (@#HOKHE)  HBEET
P M SR BIE B LR ARE S — O E HfE R
HHERMEZH  EkEMERERAZER
BEZZE—ANFNA=ZTHmSHHA KD
L oRIT-N\EF=ZA =+ B BLHER)
R LEAEREMEE S LI A E R
ERREREHHNGS R _E—\FNA
TZH(B#ORME)  BEUERREBEH G
REAURZRITEH BHRESTREH
2,681,406.45% 7T+ B iR1T 42 B R H I &4

W25 UEEREER SITRMMGS -
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46.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

LITIGATION (Continued)

On 14 November 2018 (New York time), EPRO EComm
entered into a seftflement agreement with the Plainftiff to
resolve all disputes between both parties and agreed to
a settlement payment of US$990,000 and agreed on the
entry of a Permanent Injunction and Final Judgement On
Consent to the District Court. On 6 December 2018 (New
York time), the District Court entered an order on the
Permanent Injunction and Final Judgement On Consent
and released all restrictions placed on EPRO EComm’s
account(s) with the bank. Accordingly, the restrain on the
remaining frozen amount of approximately US$1,328,000
and US$20,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$10,358,400
and HK$156,000) were uplifted and the litigation has been
properly seftled.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
has the following events:

30 June 2018

As detailed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, the First Year Target Profit of the Sense
Acquisition has been achieved and the 1st Tranche Lockup
CB of HK$40,000,000 of the August 2017 CB became
unconditional. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on 14 September 2018, the 1st Tranche Lockup
CB of HK$40,000,000 was converted into 289,855,072
ordinary shares of the Company. Upon completion of the
conversion, the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the convertible bonds in related to the Sense Acquisition
was decreased to HK$30,000,000.

ire WIS M
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45,

46.

np
ajp
3>

NN
B

(%
“Z-N\F+-A+HB (@OBRE) - 5
BEEFRBEREGILNREGZ  AErE
77 89 BB S5 30 175 5E 0 AR B FRIE 990,000 3
T YRABERBREERBONENRAEE
BIKAZELS RREHAR -RZFB—-NF+ =
ARB(EOKRE)  BEERBEGERRAE
ENXABESREEARNGS  BRES
BEFRBRITHERP A PTERSE  Et -
# TR 45 & FE4) 1,328,000 & T K 20,000 3
7T (16 %5 7 4910,358,400 % 7T K2 156,000 7%
7T) R BIE RS - MaZFAC EZEFE -

i ox

BEHKRESEE

RBERE  AEBEHELETIIEE

—E-NFAA=TH

AR A BB HMRMEI0MFL - =B
BERzE-FERENDEXLE-T—t
FANAABBESZ2F - HEETRBRES
40,000,000/8 T E AL A B 1F - R =T — 1\
FAATHBARERRE  F-HEEATHR
fi% &% 40,000,000 /% T 2 # / AR A &) i
% 289,855,072 % - ¥ TER 12 - BRI =
BRBERZJBEERZHAEERNE A
% BRI 4 £ 30,000,000 % 7T °
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instfruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

47. e T HEZ 28

RBERR  SEEBTAZEREENT :

THMEE
BE-S-NEAASTALEE

Financial assets
Year ended 30 June 2019

Financial assets
at fair value

Financial assets

through profit at amortised
or loss under cost under
HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 Total
REEBUE RESBHE
REEREIR REEREIH
BAFEFABE R AR5 iR
ZERMEE ZERMEE ‘st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FERT FEx
Trade receivables EWE SRR - 12,480 12,480
Loan and inferest receivables  FEUE 7 K ) 8 BR 5% - 93,652 93,652
Financial assets included in FAEMARE B R
prepayments, deposits and HWEEZ SRMEE
other assets - 58,143 58,143
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABEZ
through profit or loss CREE 31,621 - 31,621
Cash and cash equivalent RekREEEER - 24,587 24,587
31,621 188,862 306,078
Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZZ—N\FA=tAHLFE
Financial
assets Available-
at fair value Loans and for-sale
through profit receivables financial
or loss under under  assets under
HKAS 39 HKAS 39 HKAS 39 Total
REFAEH REFEST REBLHL:H
AR 55 3957 AR5 395 AR5 3955k
BAFERA =605 A E
BRzemEE Y R IE TRMEE e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Trade receivables B B SRR - 25,236 - 25,236
Loan and inferest receivables  FEE F A SR 7K - 89,090 - 89,090
Financial assets included in FTATBRRIE e
prepayments, deposits and REMRIRFIEAZ
other receivables TRVEE - 31,201 - 31,201
Availoble-for-sale investments At HERE - - 13,000 13,000
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABEZ
through profit or loss ERAE 40,995 - - 40,995
Pledged deposits [RE TS - 310 - 310
Cash and cash equivalents BelkBEL%EEE - 43,046 - 43,046
40,995 188,883 13,000 242,878
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Year ended 30 June 2019 HE—Z—NWFNA=THILFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 47. €T Az 7% @

(Continued)

Financial liabilities cRAaE
Year ended 30 June 2019 BE-_Z-hEXA=1THLEE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost under
HKFRS 9
RIEB B
WMEERE IR
R R AT R
zemaes
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables ERE SRR 21,583
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAEMERKIE - BliRe RIE
deposits received and accruals TERzERAE 12,676
Convertible bonds AmRES 116,363
150,622
Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZZ-N\FA=-tHLFE
Financial
liabilities at
designated
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
upon inifial amortised
recognition cost under
under HKAS 39 HKAS 39 Total
RIEEBEH
A 55 3957 REEEER
R B RIS AR5 3955
BAFEFABE RE R AT AR
o 3= K ZeMmAaE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Trade payables ERNEZER - 22,084 22,084
Financial liabilities included FTAEMBENRIE -
in other payables, deposits BElize kEFERZ
received and accruals TREE - 13,629 13,629
Convertible bonds BB ES - 138,179 138,179
Contingent consideration ERRARE
payable 25,870 - 25,870
25,870 173,892 199,762
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48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

—“NEFERAZTHLEFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate fo fair values, are as

EBRIDNEREERATEET

48. M T AQAFERQFE
B4
ARBSRIAFEERAFEARMAE

follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
FREE ATE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AFE —EF-N\F ZEB-AF = — )\
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FET FAT FE T FHT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value A FE AEZR
through profit or loss ZEREE 31,621 40,995 31,621 40,995
Financial liability SMasE
Contingent consideration FEfTSARAE
payable = (25,870) - (25,870)
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and BEEEBDT GRS RIESEEER  2EE
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, tfrade receivables, BT EBWE SRR ERERRF B ER

loan and interest receivables, financial assetfs included in
prepayments, other receivable and other assets, financial
liabilities included in frade payables, other payables and
accruals, are approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short ferm maturities of these instruments.
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Year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZT—NFNA=+HILFE

48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 48. €M TEAXAFER2TFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) &8 =)
Fair value hierarchy AFERBR
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINTAEEEHMTENRTEFEER

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Fair value measurement using

ATEHERR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3) Total
REBTEHE EXTREGAHE EXTUBERANE
(-8 (#=8) (#z8) Eh

2018 2018 2018 2018
It Sy it:3 2\ 2\ IB)\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

TERL TiEL Tan

TERL

Assets measured at
fair value

Financial assefs
at fair value through
profit orloss

Liabilities measured at
fair value
Confingent

consideration payable

ROTEIBNEE

BROPEARE

LEREE

BOYEHBHAR

BRARRE
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise convertible bonds and other
payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instfruments is to raise funds for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities (e.g. frade receivables and trade payables),
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant inferest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate as at 30
June 2019 and 2018. The Group’s results and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures as the
sales and purchases of the Group were mainly fransacted
in United States dollars ("USD"), Renminbi ("RMB"),
Australian dollars ("AUD"), Canadian dollars (*CAD"), EURO
("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). Approximately
92% (2018: 92%) of the Group’s sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operatfing units making the sale, and almost 50% (2018:
67%) of costs are denominated in the units’ other functional
currency.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. 2RIEREERARRBER @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) YN LB ()

TRETEEZHHMBEBEIFIZZBERT
REE 2 BRI BT B R 7 R B R EDR T -
TARE BIRDAELHABITEX
HIBAIBA R B 2 BURRE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period fo a reasonably possible change in
the exchange rates of AUD, CAD, RMB, EUR and BRL fo HKD,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss

before tax.
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/

(decrease) in in loss (decrease)

exchange rate before tax in equity

ExtH BRBLATE R ‘migm,/

(T®)  #&m/ (D) ORLA)

% HK$'000 HK$'000

% FERT FERT

30 June 2019 —E-hEXA=+H
If HKD weakens against AUD 8 7L R T 55 ) 2 2
If HKD strengthens against AUD it/ 7T 58 5% 5 2 2)
If HKD weakens against CAD 8 7T 5 N 58 ) 2 2
If HKD strengthens against CAD {78 70 i I o 38 5 2 2)
If HKD weakens against RMB BT EAREES () (814) 814
If HKD strengthens against RMB {8 7T 5L A R #8358 5 814 (814)
If HKD weakens against EUR 8 7T BT 58 (5) (149) 149
If HKD strengthens against EUR & T A BT o8 5 149 (149)
30 June 2018 —E-NFXA=+H

If HKD weakens against AUD e T R S5 ) @3) 3
If HKD strengthens against AUD  fii /8 70 38 o838 5 3 )
If HKD weakens against CAD & T 5 TS5 5) 3) 3
If HKD strengthens against CAD {7 70 3, i 7o 838 5 3 3)
If HKD weakens against RMB BT AR ) (1.154) 1,154
If HKD strengthens against RMB {7t i A R ##58 5 1,154 (1,154)
If HKD weakens against EUR T X BT S 5) 77 77
If HKD strengthens against EUR T BT ER 5 77 77)

The Group has no forward foreign exchange contracts

outstanding as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.

RIE-NAFRA=Z+ARZZE-N\F XA
=+8 - AEE I EERREE 2 ERIME
BH e
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
30 June 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 30 June 2019.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets stated in the following tablet:

49. REMEEHE

ENBUR 2

FERRE

AREEERERR M= EﬂZ%:E?Eﬁ
RS o NEB 2 IRE R FTA AR iH B
RHZBEPHRKEERERF - wtoh - LK
SEeREETREG AR B RS EERE
Rz BRI AERX -

REZF-NFNA=ZTHIREME
b K F K e B

TRIRH-Z-—AFAA=+ABREAE
EREEBRZEEEERAR ZRBEEA
% (RIFBRIEBTBERARLS N AR
BHROER TAETBERAHEN) U
RERERSE - M2FSBATRMIE
BEE 2 RE AL

12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
+=@A 25
BHEE BHEE
BE BE
F—BER HE-BER SRR @EitEE st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TR TR
Trade receivables W E SR - - 12,480 12,480
Loan and interest receivables B E R RH BRI 79,704 13,064 884 - 93,652
Financial assets included in STABMFIE - Eb YR
prepayment, other receivables BEREMEEC SREE
and other assets 58,143 - - - 58,143
Cash and cash equivalent ReLBeSEER 24,587 - - - 24,587
162,434 13,064 884 12,480 188,862

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayment, other receivables and other assets are
considered to be "normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assefs had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered fo be “doubtful”.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure as at 30 June 2018

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. For fransactions that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise trade receivables, loan and inferest
receivables, deposits and other receivables, available-
for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Apart from e-commerce, the Group frades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. There is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group.

The Group managed credit risk of loan and interest
receivables at every stage of the risk management system,
including pre-approval, review and credit approval and
post-fransaction monitoring process. All tfransactions
should be subject to the review and approval from credit
department.

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors ifs risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance continuity
of funding and flexibility through various fund raising
exercises.

ire WIS M
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49. £REMREEHERBE @

EERE @)
R-ZFE-NFANA=1HZREGE

FEBEEZEERRAREBRIFZE=TET
R o NEE 2 BURSMA R iH BT
RHpZEPHAKEERERRF - I K
SEERHBEERBUGRAER - AL IR
BEEMNZNREREEZRSME A&
B30 & ARG B R B AR T B AT SR BR A

AEBAZRSHFEOMELZ LMERE
E (BERKE SRR  BIKRER R EERK
BeRAMEKER IELERE &L
FEIABRGZEMEE DEMAERAR
RekBeEEREB) Z2EaEERRAE
A ET R ZIREE

BRTEFEY AEEZRERRAREER
W2E=ZTETRS  WBARARR - FE
REEhBERARERS R RITEES - A
SETBEREERBERER -

AEBEBBRRERERSERERER R
BRFEEEENERRR  BIFEERE
B ERBEURERRSGREURF -FER
U AEHEEMRPIFE R -

RENE & R
AEBERERADESHE TAERAE

SHRER WTAZEEESRTARESR
BE (WEKE SRR 2 28 A A R IR
BrZHRERE -

AEEZABRBRERREENAEEEN
PR R B 2 RS T -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

49.

On demand Less than 3 months
BEREF HR=fA

2019 2018 2019

2018

SR CT-0\F SR CTF

HK$'000  HKS$'000 - HK$'000

HK$'000

No’res tfo Consolidated Financial Statements

SREREERERBE®
REBESEMEZ)

RBEBRR AEEZ2REEREERTD
REBBFIBZBHABERWT

3toless
than 12 months 1105 years Total
ZEAZORT-EA St @it

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

SRNE CF-)\F 2RNE CE)\F SRAE CTNE

HKS'000  HKS'000 - HKS000  HKS'000 = HK$'000  HKS'000

TEér Thr. TEx TExr TEx TEr | TEn  TEr TEm  TiEn
Trade payables EREZEN - - 19446 11563 2137 548 - - 2583 121
Other payables, deposits AbERFE Bhke
received and aceruols REHER 12012 9365 604 4244 - - - - 12676 13629
Contract liobiliies Ahak - - 1087 - - - - - 10877 -
Convertible bonds TaRES - - - - - - 116363 138179 = 116363 138179
Contingent consideration ERSARE
payable - - - - - - - 25800 - 5800
12,072 0385 30921 15807 2137 548 © 116,363 164,049 161499 189,789

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level
of equity indices and the value of individual securitfies.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
significant equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is fo safeguard the Group’s ability fo continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratfios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders of issue new shares.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the fotal capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade payables and other payables, deposits
received and accruals, deposits received in advance,
convertible bonds and contingent consideration payable
less pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes equity attributable to the Company
(including non-controlling interests). The gearing ratios as
at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

ire WIS M
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49.

SREREERERBE®

EXREE#)

AEEERBEAREL R (AEBFERA
BEANMEEBFESHE) EREARN-EH
FEEFENESRAREMCENTE B
Wize MEER  BlRE  ARkES
RENSIAREBREERAFTRERERS
HEAR - BERBEARTE (BEFERER)
[ - NIMEHR  ERBB/LEMT

The Group has initially adopted HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition method chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.2.

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —ZT—)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade payables FERE SRR 21,583 22,084

Other payables, deposits received  EfEMFIE - BEUIES &

and accruals FERT & A 14,340 52,629

Deposits received in advance TElUEE - 2,258

Contract liabilities AREE 10,887 -

Convertible bonds AR ES 116,363 138,179

Contingent consideration payable  Eff e A K (E - 25,870
Less: Pledged deposits o BERTER - (310)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEMEEE (24.587) (43,046)

Net debt B FE 138,586 197,664

Equity attributable to the Company A2 &) fE {5 #Ex 148,495 197,375

Capital and net debt BARERFE 287,081 395,039

Gearing ratio AERAELE 48.3% 50.0%

50. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 50. LEEBIF

AEER-Z-N\FLA-BERRNREE
HHBRELNFERRBEMBMEELE
155% < IRBATEBHVBIEN X LRERAD
TEY - G BRRELHHE - THBREN
MizE2.2
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 51. A2 BB #AR RN T
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the RRARRBERR W BHARAEKER AT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
ZE—NF —ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HKSiOO_O
FEx FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE \
Investments in subsidiaries and a INCIEEYNCINES37 L - VAN
structured entity ZIRE 203,402 294,333
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 13,000
Property, plant and equipment L E IS E - 1,963
Total non-current assets IFmBEELTE 203,402 309,296
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries JE W B BB A R ZRIE 71,696 84,815
Prepayments, deposits and other T FRE - iﬁ/i\ T E At U 2008
receivables \ 17,239 1,396
Financial assets af fair value through &2 A FEFABZZ CREE
profit or loss 29,382 40,995
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEMBEIEL 6,383 13,396
Total current assets MENVEEBRE 124,700 140,602
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FEAS P8 A ARSI 67,072 71,083
Other payables and accruals HmEAREkEGTER 2,250 1,549
Contingent consolidation payable — FEff e A K (E - 13,156
Total current liabilities mEAEETE 69,322 85,788
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 55,378 54,814
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBEAR
LIABILITIES 258,780 364,110
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Convertible bonds AR B 116,363 138,179
Contingent consideration payable — FEff e AR (B - 12,714
Total non-current liabilities nBAREER 116,363 150,893
Net assets BEEFE 142,417 213,217
EQUITY =
Issued capitall BT 30,661 27,762
Reserves i 111,756 185,455
Total equity BT 142,417 213,217
Al KUIYU LO PAK HO
XEF EEE
Director Director
3 -
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 51. AT #ikR T =
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B 5
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARFEEHRZELT
Treasury
share Available-
Convertible ~ Contributed reserve/ for-sale
Share bonds surplus/ Capital Share  investment
premium equity Capital  redemption option revaluation  Retained
account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ERRH
THKES BERH/ RE/ER e
RAGER  BERE  E4BE  BEBE BRERE REEREE  REEA @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt T T T T T T
(Note 30) (Note30) ~ (Note30) ~ (Notedl)  (Note30)
(GER) (MiE30)  (WaEs0)  (MaEs1)  (W3E30)
AT July 2017 R-E-t%5tA-A 203,871 - 95,192 3526 - (395)  (148.849) 213,345
Loss for the year and fofal comprehensive income A EBIER2 AR EAE
forthe year - - - - - - (71.870) (71.870)
Decrease in fair volue of available-forsale A EREATEZHY
investments - (7.060) - (7.080)
Release of investment valuation reserve upon REETREEREDRE
disposal of available for sale investments AERREA - 7445 - 7445
Equity-seffled share option arrangements hrggmahezt
(nofe 34) (Mik34) - 5,691 - - 5691
Issue of converfible bonds (note 30) BTRRES (1330) 38423 - - - 38423
Direct fransacfion costs affrioutable fo the equity ~ EXBAEHEERZHRA
component (note 30) (M 30) (529) - - - (529)
At30 June 2018 RZF-N\ERAZ1A 263871 37,604 95,192 35% 5691 - N9 18545
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZZ-NERA=1ER
“E-N\Eth-A 263,871 37,804 95,192 3,526 5,691 - (220,719) 185,455
Loss for the year and total comprehensive income  AFEFER2ERZLE
for the year - - - - - - (106,031)  (106,031)
Equity-settled share option arrangements RALENBRER S
(note 34) (H3) - - - - 1760 - . 1,760
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - (1,100) - 1,100 -
Conversion of convertible bonds (note 30) BRTARMES (Wi30) 40,433 (9.861) - - - - - 30,572
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NERB=1H 304,304 28,033 95,192 3,526 6,351 - (325650) 111,756

52. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 52. RS |MK 2t &

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
September 2019.

EEESUERIRETE -

2019 8 | FEHEBZERARAA

BEUBBREZER-_ZT-AFNA-+XE

227



Five Year Financial Summary
HFMBERE

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZE—Z— W FNA=THILFE

TXRARESMTEAGRFE 2 EEREE A
BERFEREEHME  DRBEEEAHEERES
MisHREK  WKBEED EFHE -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out

228

below.
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=TALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NFE T\ Zt+% ZRE —“Z-0E
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'0O0
BT TR TER FHT TEx
(Resjotedg (Resjotedg
(=751 (=751
RESULTS %45
REVENUE N 228,677 301,471 319,267 399,736 749,660
Cost of sales and services HERRBE KA (167,547) (206,225) (215,598) (253,031) (435,802)
Gross profit ES 61,130 95,246 108,669 146,705 313,858
Other income and gains 8 ONT 6 37,734 11,550 4418 4,508 4,023
Selling and distrioufion costs BERSERA (26824)  (54498) (80135  (123,580)  (239.937)
Administrative expenses and other T ER L EMER
expenses (82993)  (104971)  (77534)  (135248)  (134183)
Impairment loss on goodwill BHERESE (49,540) - - - -
Impairment loss on other infangible  Eft & A ERERHIE
assets ‘ (1,800) - (1.715) - -
Impairment loss on loan and interest &Y E % I 8 BE 3t
receivables MEEE (990) (20,000) - - -
Impairment loss on frade receivables &8 E 5 & 7R EE B (489) (99) - - -
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate  EIEEE AR 2
_ (B8 /8w (219 176 - - -
Finance costs BARKA (12,937 (10,024) (349) (7,084) (1,528)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING R E#HEMLE£T
OPERATIONS BHRAEE (76,928) (82,620) (51.646)  (114699) (57,767)
Income tax expense e (4.131) (583) @31 (222) (409)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM TEERBHELEEY
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ZER (81,059) (83.173) (61,677) (114,921) (58,176)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEER
(Loss)/profit for the year from REERERIFEEER
discontinued operation 2 (B18) /& (1.518) 964 687 2,006 7,658
Impairment of goodwill AERE _ (8.158) (8.251) - - -
Impairment of assets of a disposal A% AFEME 2 B
group classified as held for sale AERIEERE - - - - (36,394)
(9.676) (7,287) 687 2,006 (28,736)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEER (90,735) (90,460) (50990)  (112.915) (86912)
Attributable to: ANEFEE:
Owners of the Company ARREAA (78,728) (77.975) (50892)  (112,832) (87,003)
Non-controlling inferests SRR (12,007) (12,485) (98) (83) 91
(90,735) (90,460) (50990)  (112.915) (86.912)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE BERFERES
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 318,515 457,036 326,244 234,817 350,599
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (166,369)  (243,819) (85137)  (102798)  (234,040)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS e (3.651) (15,842) 20 (78) (1,039)
148,495 197,375 241,127 131,941 115,520
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